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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EEE R ¥ &5

KIYOTAKA ANDO
RikiBkE
CHARMAN E= &

BiER&

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Nissin Foods
Company Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the
Annual Report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2024.

SINCE THE IPO, ADJUSTED EBITDA HAS CONTINUED TO GROW STEADILY

In 2024, China’s GDP grew at an annual rate of 5%. Despite
this, the trend of consumers’ preference to save money rather
than on individual consumption continued into the first half of
the year. With the implementation of stimulus measures to boost
individual consumption, signs of a shift towards increased individual
consumption began in the second half of the year. In Hong Kong,
GDP grew by 2.5% year-on-year, but individual consumption
remained weak. Notably, the increasing number of people spending
weekends in the Greater Bay Area driven by northbound consumption
contributed to the sluggish retail sales in Hong Kong. Against this
backdrop, the Group has contributed to people’s health and society by
providing the pleasure of eating and tasty food to people, in line with
our founder, Mr Momofuku Ando’s corporate philosophy that “food-
related job is a sacred profession (R A&EH;)".
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In terms of the Group's revenue in 2024, sales of frozen foods,
Japanese-made imported gift confectioneries and beverages, and
others were sluggish due to decreased consumer purchasing power in
both Mainland China and Hong Kong. Despite these challenges, due
to our focus on increasing sales volume of instant noodles across all
regions, revenue was almost flat year-on-year at HK$ 3,811.9 million,
even in the face of the depreciation of the Chinese yuan. Notably, in
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2024, sales grew by 8.4% year-on-year
due to the increased sales volume of instant noodles.

In terms of profits, although depreciation costs increased due to the
operation of new production facilities in Hong Kong, which began
operation in November 2023, the increase in sales volume helped to
reduce fixed costs per unit. Consequently, gross profit increased by
0.7% year-on-year to HK$1,312.1 million, and the gross profit margin
also improved from 34.0% to 34.4%. Operating profit decreased by
4.2% year-on-year to HK$417.4 million due to rising sales promotion
and distribution costs, which led to a decrease in the operating profit
margin from 11.4% to 10.9%. On the other hand, due to our focus
on instant noodles, the profitability of the Group's complementary
businesses such as non-fried noodles, long-life noodles, frozen
foods, and others deteriorated more than initially expected. In light
of the expected continued severity of the business environment, the
Group recorded impairment losses of HK$135.9 million, mainly in
the complementary business, pursuant to Hong Kong Accounting
Standard 36. As a result, net profit attributable to shareholders of the
Company decreased by 39.1% year-on-year, from HK$330.2 million
to HK$201.0 million, with a profit margin of 5.3%. Nevertheless,
adjusted EBITDA, which excludes one-off non-cash expenses, has
shown steady growth since the Company’s listing, and it increased
by 0.8% year-on-year to HK$612.5 million. This indicates a resilient
performance in the core business operations, even amid difficulties in
certain segments.

Regarding shareholder returns, although net profit attributable to
shareholders has decreased, the ability to generate cash flow from
core business activities has remained stable as reflected in adjusted
EBITDA. Additionally, the Group’s balance sheet is healthy, supporting
returns to our shareholders. In fiscal 2024, the final dividend will
be set at 9.63 HK cents per share, while the special dividend will
be 6.19 HK cents per share, totalling 15.82 HK cents per share,
which is consistent with the previous year. The payout ratio will be
approximately 50.0% for the final dividend (the payout ratio in the
prior year was also 50.0%) and 32.1% for the special dividend (there
was no special dividend in the previous year), totalling 82.1%. Cash
and cash equivalents have remained stable compared to the previous
year.
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MERGER AND ACQUISITION AND BUSINESS INVESTMENT

To expand our business further, we acquired companies and
established joint ventures. In June 2024, we acquired Gaemi Food
Co. Ltd. (“Gaemi Food"), a snack food manufacturer in Korea. Gaemi
Food owns the largest domestic market share for crispy rolls and has
Halal certification.

In September 2024, we also acquired ABC Pastry Holdings Pty Ltd
("ABC Pastry”), a frozen dumpling and juicy bun (soup dumpling)
manufacturer in Australia. As the number of Asian immigrants
increases in Australia, demand for Chinese gourmet such as dumplings
and juicy bun is expanding. After the acquisition, we continue to serve
the existing customers and are actively expanding sales throughout
Australia.

In November 2024, we entered into a subscription and joint venture
agreement with Nissin Foods Asia Co., Ltd., being the Southeast
Asian regional leader of Nissin Foods Holdings Co., Ltd.. The new
joint venture aims to promote sales of Nissin brand instant noodles in
Australia and New Zealand.

MARKETING

In fiscal 2024, we focused on sales promotion in Mainland China. In
particular, we conducted a trial-tasting promotion campaign for Cup
Noodles (& %&) in major cities. This campaign featured over 30,000
trial tastings, effectively highlighting the product’s deliciousness to
potential customers. In addition, we collaborated with the Japanese
anime “BLUE LOCK" in Mainland China and Hong Kong to launch a
limited edition of Cup Noodles, targeting young anime fans.

In Hong Kong, we also developed the WeChat Mini program “Nissin
Foodium” for Cha Chaan Teng’s (called local Hong Kong-style
café) shop owners. This initiative included digital marketing that
allowed users to earn points, which could be redeemed for special
prizes. Through this programme, we aim to promote customer
loyalty. Through these activities, we also aim to enhance our brand
recognition and awareness, enabling consumers to experience the
unique appeal of Nissin products.

SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT

Based on the corporate philosophy of “contributing to society
through food” of our founder Momofuku Ando, we are committed to
sustainable management as a responsible corporate citizen, providing
delicious food and promoting health maintenance, and contributing to
sustainable development. In terms of sustainability management, we
recognise food safety and security are the foundation of our business.
To support this commitment, we conduct educational activities for
our employees, ensuring they are well-informed about food safety
and security. In addition, our quality control team issues an internal
newsletter to keep staff updated with the latest knowledge.
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To demonstrate our commitment to food safety, we implemented
thorough testing of fresh-cut vegetable salad products, which we
began producing in 2021, by conducting nucleic acid testing (PCR
method).

We have a safety research institute in Shanghai, in which the Group
owns a 5% stake. This institute has obtained the China Inspection
Body and Laboratory Mandatory Approval (“CMA") certification,
which is issued by a Chinese inspection organisation. With this
certification, we are actively implementing safety measures to ensure
the quality and safety of our products. The institute also participates
in formulating and revising analytical methods for the national food
safety standards (GB) as led by the Chinese government, making a
wide range of contributions.

PROSPECTS FOR 2025

Although the business environment in which our Company operates
is being affected by internal factors such as a sluggish real estate
market and shift in regional population, along with external factors
such as geopolitical tensions, China remains one of the world’s largest
markets. We believe steady economic growth will eventually return to
both Mainland China and Hong Kong.

To increase sales of Cup Noodles (A%3#&) in Mainland China, we
must strengthen our partnerships with distributors. We will also
increase sales of high-end bag-type noodles. The current consumption
trends indicate a strong thrifty mindset among consumers, yet there
remains a significant potential demand. With the rising number of
Chinese tourists and popularity of Japanese ramen shops, | believe
that products such as “Demae Iccho (45— T )”, “Nissin Raoh”,
and “Nissin Chicken Ramen”, will see increased sales as they offer
consumers the opportunity to enjoy the authentic flavours at home.

The distribution business, the non-noodles business, has started to
launch new products and brands. Once again, we aim to expand our
business further through the expansion of sales channels.

In Hong Kong operation, we are focusing on expanding sales of
various high-end bag-type noodles, including Hokkaido Iccho (3t/&
#— T ), which is made from 100% Hokkaido-produced flour, Nissin
Raoh, Nissin Chicken Ramen, and Vietnamese pho rice noodles.
We are also placing strong emphasis on exports. In the frozen foods
business, we are working to expand sales of premium frozen dim
sum, pasta, udon, ramen, and other products. We are committed to
reviving and growing the business.
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In Vietnam, we will continue to strengthen sales in the domestic
market and expand sales channels. The sales company in Taiwan
will focus on expanding transactions with distributors and major
key account retailers to improve sales volume. In Korea, Gaemi Food
will strengthen sales of its mainstay product, Crispy Roll, both in the
domestic market and overseas, while seeking to create synergy with
Nissin. In Australia, we aim to expand the sales of frozen dumplings,
tapping into consumer demand and increasing our market share.

MY DETERMINATION AS CHAIRMAN

The year 2025 is the year of the snake. Snakes shed their skin
many times throughout their lives to grow and adjust to changes.
| believe the key to success is transformation and adaptability in
the changing business environment. | am determined to maximise
business outcomes while efficiently developing the Group’s business
operation and organisation. Our goal is to create long-term value for
all stakeholders, including shareholders and investors of the Company.
The Group is also committed to contributing to local communities,
fostering sustainable growth and making a positive impact.

| believe in enriching the lives of consumers through tasty, secure, and
affordable food, and | share with you the corporate philosophy of our
founder, Mr Momofuku Ando, that “Create food to serve society (&
Bll7tE)”.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS B3 IR ES

KEY HIGHLIGHTS & Z R &

FY2024 FY2023 +/-%
2024 BIBFE | 2023 I BUFE
HK$ million HK$ million
BEERL BEAT
Revenue WA 3,811.9 3,833.2 -0.6%
Gross Profit EF 1,312.1 1,303.1 +0.7%
34.4% 34.0% -
Profit attributable to owners of NAEHER AEE T
the Company 201.0 330.2 -39.1%
5.3% 8.6% -
Segment Results DEBHEER 417.4 435.7 -4.2%
10.9% 11.4% -
Adjusted EBITDA & FHEE EBITDA 612.5 607.8 +0.8%
16.1% 15.9% -
Total Assets wEE 4,756.6 4,683.7 +1.6%
Net Assets attributable to owners of the AABHB AEGEEFE
Company 3,620.2 3,631.4 -0.3%
Final Dividend per share (HK cents) TRRARER S (BIL) 9.63 15.82 -39.1%
Special Dividend per share (HK cents) TR S (B 6.19 - -
Total Dividend per share (HK cents) BRI B E5E (GBI 15.82 15.82 +0.0%
Basic Earnings per share (HK cents) EREGRAF (B) 19.26 31.64 -39.1%
Dividend Payout Ratio (%) k2 (%) 82.1% 50.0% -
Net Asset per share (HK$) BREEFE (BT) 3.47 3.48 -0.3%

TRACK RECORD 1 45 5C £%

Revenue in Mainland China Segment Results in Mainland China Proportion of Revenue
R B A b WA R R it o SR AR by Geographical Region
HK$million B &% 7T HKSmillion B &# 7T B EE D 2 WA LL
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The Board is pleased to announce the annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2024.

RESTORING THE BUSINESS MOMENTUM

In 2024, we witnessed significant changes in the global economy,
geopolitics, international trade, business environment and consumer
behaviour. These changes not only reshaped global supply chains
and consumption patterns, but also created both opportunities and
uncertainties. Under these ever-changing conditions, the Group
recognised an upward trajectory in the second half of the year for its
organic business growth. In addition to remaining agile, the Company
seized the opportunities that arose and completed two acquisitions in
the Republic of Korea (“Korea”) and Australia during the year.

In Mainland China, economic growth was in-line with the target
growth rate set by the Chinese government for 2024, driven by
stimulus measures, strong exports and high-tech investments, despite
challenges in domestic demand amid weak business confidence and
consumer sentiment.

The Hong Kong economy continued to record moderate growth
driven by external trade and investment expenditure during the
year. However, changes in tourist consumption patterns and the
leakage of local consumer spending continued to weigh on certain
local businesses, including those in the retail and food and beverage
industries.

The Group has remained dedicated to continuous product upgrades
and cost optimisation against this backdrop. The timeless great taste
and unparalleled quality of our products have provided vital support
to our premiumisation and differentiation strategies. Riding on our
solid foundation and footholds in Hong Kong and Mainland China, as
well as the rich and diversified product portfolio we have developed
over the years, we are able to grow our influence geographically.

As a responsible corporate citizen, we are committed to protecting
consumers’ well-being by providing a stable food supply. We also
attach tremendous importance to food safety by conducting regular
product testing and pursuing relevant research and development.
Moreover, the Company implements a wide range of environmental
measures and policies to reduce its greenhouse gas emissions, plastic
consumption and food waste in this new era of global boiling, such as
the introduction and evolution of ECO cup.
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FINANCIALS

For the year under review, the Group’s overall business remained
stable primarily attributable to the solid and steady performance of
the Group’s instant noodle business, despite a lackluster demand of
non-noodle business amid changing consumption patterns and the
weakened consumer sentiment in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
Revenue maintained at a similar level as last year with a slight drop of
0.6%, amounting to HK$3,811.9 million (2023: HK$3,833.2 million)
due to the negative effects of foreign exchange rate. Gross profit
increased by 0.7% to HK$1,312.1 million (2023: HK$1,303.1 million).
Gross profit margin increased 0.4 percentage points to 34.4% in
2024 from 34.0% in 2023, which was mainly attributable to the
optimisation of fixed costs led by the increase in sales volume of
instant noodles.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company declined significantly by
39.1% to HK$201.0 million (2023: HK$330.2 million), representing
the net profit margin of 5.3% for the year (2023: 8.6%). The
significant decrease in profit attributable to owners of the Company
was mainly due to the recognition of non-cash charges resulting from
impairment losses on assets of HK$135.9 million made in accordance
with Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36 (“HKAS 36"), details of
which are discussed in the paragraph headed “Impairment Losses”
below. The Group’s basic earnings per share decreased to 19.26 HK
cents for the year (2023: 31.64 HK cents).

At the Adjusted EBITDA level ™, the Group increased by 0.8% to
HK$612.5 million (2023: HK$607.8 million), representing the Adjusted
EBITDA margin of 16.1% for the year (2023: 15.9%).

Note: Adjusted EBITDA is a non-HKFRS measurement used by the management
to assess the performance of operating segments, allocate resources and
make strategic decisions. The measurement basis of Adjusted EBITDA is
defined as net profit before net interest expenses, tax, depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, depreciation of the right-of-use asset
and amortisation of intangible asset. This also excludes share of material
gains or losses which are of capital nature or non-operational related
and fair value changes on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.
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Final Dividend and Special Dividend

Despite a decrease in earnings per share due to the recognition
of impairment losses, taking into account that the Company has
generated a healthy operating cash flow and has built a solid balance
sheet, and in appreciation of the continuous support of our loyal
shareholders, the Board recommends the payment of a final dividend
of 9.63 HK cents per share and a special dividend of 6.19 HK cents
per share, totalling 15.82 HK cents per share to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company as at 16
June 2025, representing the same amount of dividend per share over
the previous year’s dividend (2023: final dividend per share of 15.82
HK cents and no special dividend). The total dividend is expected
to amount to approximately HK$165.1 million. The payout ratio
for the final dividend and special dividend will be 50% and 32.1%,
respectively. The total dividends payout ratio will be 82.1% for the
year (2023: 50.0%).

Impairment Losses

The total impairment loss amounted to HK$135.9 million, which
consisted (i) impairment loss amounting to HK$77.1 million on
property, plant and equipment relating to production facilities under
complementary business such as non-fried noodles and frozen foods
in Mainland China and Hong Kong, (i) impairment loss amounting to
HK$6.8 million on property, plant and equipment and HK$7.9 million
on right-of-use assets in Hong Kong comprising right of use of land
and leasehold property held by Ming Fong Packaging & Chemicals
Limited (“Ming Fong"”), and (iii) impairment loss amounting to
HK$44.1 million on goodwill and intangible assets.
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Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment used in
production

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the sales and profitability
of the complementary businesses in Mainland China were significantly
affected by changes in consumption patterns, such as thriftiness, a
focus on savings, and the competitive business environment. The
complementary business experienced an unexpected low demand of
its products during the year ended 31 December 2024 due to changes
in the market demand and its financial performance was not as good
as expected as the cashflow projection performed in 2023. Overall
market sentiment in Mainland China was considered unfavourable
for the overall complementary business activities, leading to cost
inefficiency in eight production lines which were unable to break
even for the year ended 31 December 2024. Consumer sentiment
is expected to remain weak, industry competition is expected to
remain intense, and the growth of the complementary business
is expected to slow down in the next few years. Accordingly, the
Group’s management recognised impairment indicators for the eight
production lines with carrying amounts of HK$80.4 million.

In view of the decline in business activities and operations, the
Group reviewed the recoverable amount of the property, plant and
equipment based on prudent and conservative accounting principles.
The Group’s management adjusted and downwardly revised the
forecast of revenue of the complementary business for the five fiscal
years ending 31 December 2029. As a result, the recoverable amount
of the manufacturing property, plant, and equipment related to
the eight production lines of the complementary business has been
significantly reduced. The recoverable amount of these production
lines was determined based on value in use using the discounted
cash flow method under the income approach. The valuation method
used to determine the recoverable amount of the production lines
as at 31 December 2024 was consistent with the previous valuation
method. The calculation was based on cash flow projections derived
from the most recent financial budgets for the next five years. Cash
flow projections during the forecast period were also based on
management’s estimation of cash inflows/outflows including gross
revenue, gross margin, operating expenses and working capital
requirements during the forecast period. The assumptions and
estimations were based on past performance and management’s
expectations of the market development. The pre-tax discount rate
was 11.29% (2023: 11.29%), which corresponded to the weighted
average cost of capital (WACC). As the carrying amount of the
manufacturing property, plant and equipment related to the eight
production lines exceeded the recoverable amount, a significant
impairment loss of HK$77.1 million was recognised for the year. The
main assets subject to impairment loss were related to (i) a non-fried
noodle production line in Fujian (approximately HK$18.0 million), (ii)
a long-life noodle production line in Fujian (approximately HK$26.5
million) and (iii) a frozen food production line in Shunde (approximately
HK$21.0 million).
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Impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and
equipment of Ming Fong

In April 2021, the Group acquired 100% of the interest of Ming Fong
which owns a portfolio of plants and machinery, as well as the right-
of-use of the land and leasehold property which are all located in
Hong Kong. Upon entering into the lease agreement, right-of-use
assets of HK$48.8 million were recognised in accordance with HKFRS
16. The Group initially planned to rebuild and utilise the Ming Fong
plant to store finished goods for its operations in Hong Kong.

Nonetheless, the economic uncertainties following COVID has
significant impact on the property rental and sales market, particularly
in sectors like private flatted factories. Based on the statistics from the
Rating and Valuation Department, the private flatted factories price
index fell by approximately 15.0% year-on-year in 2024, whereas
reflecting the broader economic challenges and lower demand. The
downturn of Hong Kong property market, coupled with the high
construction cost in Hong Kong, has prompted the management of
the Company to reassess the initial plan for Ming Fong plant and
decided to put the rebuilding plan on hold (“Change of MF Plan”).
This strategic shift reflects the Group's ability to respond and adapt to
prevailing market conditions and its commitment to cost management
by optimising resources and minimising expenditures during this
challenging period.

The real estate market in Hong Kong faced a challenging year with
high vacancy rates and a sluggish economy. In 2025, the challenges
of oversupply and economic uncertainty are anticipated to persist.
Due to the recent downturn in the real estate market, the Group’s
management had identified indicators of impairment on certain
right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment with carrying
amount of HK$38.7 million and HK$18.1 million, respectively, held
by Ming Fong in Hong Kong. As a result, the Company engaged an
independent valuer with relevant qualifications and experience to
determine the recoverable amounts of these assets. The recoverable
amounts of these assets have been determined on their fair value less
cost of disposal of the assets.
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The independent valuer determined the fair value of the property
using the direct comparison method, assuming sale of the property
in its current condition with the benefit of vacant possession while
referring to similar transactions in the relevant market. The appraised
market value was determined based on direct comparison method as
it was the primary and most commonly adopted method to appraise
the value of property interests where there were readily identifiable
and recent market comparables. Key inputs of the valuation were
the prevailing market prices of comparable properties and the
adjustments on the difference between the subject property and
market comparables in terms of size, features and location. In light of
the Change of MF Plan, as cash inflow generated from this property
in the future would be unpredictable, it was believed that income
approach was no longer applicable and instead the market approach
for the property was adopted in 2024. In 2023, the recoverable
amount of the property was determined based on value in use using
the discounted cash flow method under the income approach.

The independent valuer determined the fair value of the property,
plant and equipment using replacement cost method, reflecting
the amount that would be required currently to replace the service
capacity of an asset. The cost approach was adopted as it was
typically used to value assets that could be easily replaced, such as
property, plant, and equipment. This approach assumed that a market
participant buyer would not pay more for an asset than the amount
for which it could replace the service capacity of that asset. There
was a change in valuation method in the 2024 as a result of the
Change of MF Plan and it was believed that income approach was no
longer applicable and instead replacement cost method for property,
plant and equipment was adopted in 2024. In 2023, the recoverable
amount of the property, plant and equipment was determined based
on value in use using the discounted cash flow method under the
income approach.

As the carrying amounts of certain right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment exceeded their recoverable amount, an
impairment loss of HK$6.8 million on property, plant and equipment
and HK$7.9 million on right-of-use assets were recognised for the
year.
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Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and intangible assets
have been allocated to five individual cash generating units (CGU),
comprising the five subsidiaries, namely Guangdong Shunde Nissin
Foods Co., Ltd, MC Marketing & Sales (Hong Kong) Limited (“MCMS"),
Shanghai Eastpeak Trading Co., Ltd (“Shanghai Eastpeak”), Gaemi
Food Co. Ltd. (“Gaemi Food”) and ABC Pastry Holdings Pty Ltd.
("ABC Pastry”). During the year, impairment losses on goodwill and
intangible assets of HK$22.7 million and HK$12.5 million, respectively
were recognised in respect of Shanghai Eastpeak CGU.

In January 2020, the Company’s non-wholly owned subsidiary,
Shanghai Eastpeak, entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
RERERR(EE)BRAF (English translation: Dachang Dongfeng
Food (Shanghai) Co. Ltd). The acquisition was accounted for using the
acquisition method and was completed on 1 April 2020. Goodwill and
intangible assets recognised on the acquisition date were HK$22.5
million and HK$22.5 million respectively.

After the acquisition, the Group earned additional revenue from
the wholesale business of confectionery and beverages under third-
party Japanese brands in Mainland China. However, as disclosed in
the 2024 interim report, the wholesale business in Mainland China
operated by Shanghai Eastpeak was affected by a decrease in gifts’
spending due to changes in consumption patterns and the weakened
demand for third-party Japanese-brand confectionery and beverage
products attributable to the weak global economy and the cautious
conservatism of consumers. The financial performance of Shanghai
Eastpeak fell short of expected as the cashflow projection performed
in 2023. As the distribution business operated on thin profit margin
from trading, Shanghai Eastpeak was not able to break even for the
year 2024.The market sentiment in Mainland China was unfavorable
to wholesale business activities in general. Due to the above factors,
the management recognised indications of impairment of goodwill
and intangible assets in respect of Shanghai Eastpeak, with carrying
amount of HK$22.7 million and HK$14.3 million, respectively.
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In accordance with the principles of prudence and conservatism in
accounting, the Group’s management has revised downwards and
adjusted the forecasts of sales of Shanghai Eastpeak for the five
business years ending 31 December 2029. The recoverable amounts
of Shanghai Eastpeak CGU were determined based on value in use
calculations. The management has adopted the discounted cash flow
method under the income approach in assessing the value in use of
Shanghai Eastpeak CGU. The income approach was used to assess the
Shanghai Eastpeak CGU because the economic benefits flows based
on the budget plan and planned capital expenditure can be identified
and determined. The valuation method used to determine the value
in use of the Shanghai Eastpeak CGU as at 31 December 2024 was
consistent with the previous valuation method.

The value in use was determined based on the management’s
assessment of the projected cash flows derived from the latest
financial budgets for the next five years, which included parameters
such as budgeted sales, gross profit margin, expected changes in
selling prices and costs. Cash flow projections beyond the 5-year
period were extrapolated using a steady 2% growth rate (2023:
2%). This growth rated was based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and did not exceed the average long-term growth rate
for the relevant industry. The assumptions and estimations were
based on past performance and management’s expectations of the
market development. The pre-tax discount rate, which reflected the
current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGU, was 10.5% per annum (2023: 10.5%). As the
carrying amounts of Shanghai Eastpeak CGU exceeded its recoverable
amounts, impairment loss on goodwill of approximately HK$22.7
million and impairment loss on intangible assets for customer
relationship of approximately HK$12.5 million, totalling HK$35.2
million, were recognised for Shanghai Eastpeak CGU for the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Hong Kong and other regions Operations

The Hong Kong economy recorded moderate year-on-year growth
of 2.5% in 2024, with an accelerated growth of 2.4% in the fourth
quarter over a year earlier, compared with an increase of 1.9% in
the third quarter. According to the Hong Kong Tourism Board and
the Census and Statistics Department, the number of visitor arrivals
reached 42.6 million, representing a year-on-year growth of 8.3%.

Nevertheless, consumption activities remained weak in the midst of
the change in consumption patterns of Hong Kong residents. The total
retail sales value declined by 7.3% year-on-year, mainly attributable to
the leakage of local consumers’ spending to the Greater Bay Region
of Mainland China and the strengthening of the Hong Kong dollar.
The Company suffered from a soft consumption sentiment on daily
necessities.
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Upon completion of the two acquisitions, namely Gaemi Food in
Korea and ABC Pastry in Australia, on 3 September 2024 and 2
December 2024 respectively, their results and assets and liabilities
were consolidated in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Revenue from Hong Kong and other regions operations increased
by 1.8% to HK$1,539.9 million (2023: HK$1,513.2 million), mainly
attributable to the growth in sales of instant noodles in Hong Kong
and other regions operations, offsetting the drop in frozen food
business. Currently, revenue from Hong Kong and other regions
operations accounted for 40.4% (2023: 39.5%) of the Group's total
revenue.

In terms of segment results, the Hong Kong and other regions
operations increased by 4.4% to HK$88.9 million (2023: HK$85.1
million) due to the consolidation of newly acquired businesses in
Korea and Australia, despite an increase in the depreciation expenses
due to the deployment of smart production lines in Hong Kong.

Hong Kong Operations

Instant Noodle Business

For the year under review, the instant noodle business in Hong Kong
remained stable as the sales volume of bag-type instant noodles,
particularly the high-priced premium bag-type instant noodles of the
Hokkaido Demae Iccho series, expanded. In addition to rolling out new
SKUs including the Demae Iccho’s Spicy Series, Nissin Donbei Tempura
Cup Udon, Nissin Donbei Kitsune Handmade Style Bow! Udon (Fresh
Type), and Cup Noodles Big Beef Flavour, we further strengthened
export sales of our bag-type instant noodles to North America, the
United Kingdom, the European Union, Australia and New Zealand. To
further enrich our instant noodle portfolio, the Company launched
various new flavours under the Nissin Raoh, Nissin U.F.O, Fuku and
Doll brands such as Nissin Signature Hansik Stir Glass Noodle with
Korean-style Stir-fried Chicken and Doll Fried Noodle Bow! Scallion Oil
Chicken Chop Flavour.
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Non-Noodle Business

Frozen food products

During the year, the performance of frozen food products was
mediocre as consumers favoured eating out and outbound travelling,
especially weekend trips to Mainland China. As the competitive
landscape of the industry continued to intensify, the Company
expanded its focus on premium frozen food products. While offering
a wider product range of premium products under the NISSIN brand,
the Company increased its exposure via various sales channels,
including catering industry and overseas exports, to drive up sales
volumes.

Distribution business

MCMS is engaged in the distribution of beverages, confectionery,
snacks, Japanese brand seasoning sauce and chilled products in Hong
Kong. In order to increase the market penetration of our key products,
various types of promotion were launched. A number of sales
channels, such as chain restaurants and bakeries, were developed and
expanded. The business recorded growth in 2024 as a result of the
revival of inbound tourism.

Other Products

The Company continued to broaden its non-noodles portfolio with
the launch of various products. It expanded the sales channels of the
KAGOME business in different regions, including convenience stores,
business offices, fine dining restaurants and airline lounge. During
the year, seasonal products such as Kumamoto Dekopon Mixed Juice
were launched. Our Nissin Granola continued to gain traction with
customers support due to their advocacy of health and wellness.
Further efforts were made to enlarge the distribution channels of our
fresh-cut vegetable including supermarkets, cafeterias and coffee
shops. Various new flavours in the low-fat Nissin Yogurt series
were added to penetrate the market. A brand-new product Nissin
Chocolate Potato Chips offering a rich crunchy and savory-sweet taste
experience was launched during the year.
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Other regions Operations

Nissin Vietnam

Vietnam remained one of the fast-growing economies in Southeast
Asia. GDP grew by 7.09% year-on-year in 2024, driven by strong
exports and robust foreign investment inflows, as reported by the
General Statistics Office of Vietnam. In addition, the total retail sales
of consumer goods and services grew by 9.0% over the previous year.
During the year under review, the Company proactively explored and
expanded different sales and distribution channels in the domestic
market with a focus on the youth segment to bolster its growth. New
bag-type noodles products such as Mi tron NISSIN Spaghetti and
Mi Cay NISSIN Thai Tom Yum were rolled out. In 2024, its business
achieved an excellent performance and the business outlook remains
encouraging.

Taiwan Office

The Company established a wholly-owned subsidiary in Taiwan
engaging in trading activities in late 2023, in response to growing
interest in NISSIN products among local consumers. By establishing a
subsidiary in the area, our distributors and wholesalers in Taiwan were
provided with clearer sales direction and more sales and promotional
support, which has contributed to sales momentum and growth.

Gaemi Food

On 3 June 2024, the Company and Sung Gyung Food Co., Ltd.
entered into a share purchase agreement (the “Share Purchase
Agreement”) in relation to the acquisition of 100% equity interest
in Gaemi Food at a total consideration of KRW48,000 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$271.7 million). Upon completion of
the acquisition on 3 September 2024, Gaemi Food became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and its confectionery brand,
Kemy, has been added to the Company’s non-noodle business
portfolio.

Gaemi Food is a manufacturer of crispy roll snacks, being a top
national brand in the domestic crispy roll market in Korea. It has a
national brand portfolio that includes its flagship product line Baked
Crispy Roll and other product lines targeted at the high-value market
of kids and toddlers’ snacks. It also supplies private brands and
original design manufacturer products to many customers. During the
year under review, its business achieved a satisfactory performance
and solid growth.
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ABC Pastry

On 27 September 2024, the Company (as purchaser) and Gaoyang
Family Pty Ltd and Min Investments Pty Ltd (as sellers) entered into
the share sale and purchase agreement (the “Share Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) in relation to the acquisition of 100% issued share
capital in ABC Pastry at a total consideration of AU$33.7 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$178.6 million). Upon completion of
the acquisition on 2 December 2024, ABC Pastry became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company and its own brand ABC Pastry has
been added to the Company’s non-noodle business portfolio.

ABC Pastry is a leading manufacturer of frozen dumplings which are
either company branded (i.e. ABC Pastry) or third party branded in
Australia. The products are dumplings and juicy buns (also known as
soup dumplings) which are sold to food distributors, Asian grocers,
contract manufacturers and supermarkets across Australia. ABC
Pastry is a nationally recognised brand renowned for its premium
quality dumplings. Recently, ABC Pastry has been growing the
frozen business together with local networks and distributors to
cater to nationwide retailers. The Company believes that with our
existing expertise and rich experience in operational and financial
management as a listed company, the acquisition would contribute to
ABC Pastry’s long-term development and enable the Group to diversify
its business portfolio and broaden its income sources, which benefits
the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

Mainland China Operations

The Mainland China’s economy grew at 5.0% year-on-year in 2024
as reported by the National Bureau of Statistics of China. This
demonstrated the determination of the authorities to maintain growth
momentum despite an increasingly complex global and domestic
environment.

However, consumer demand remained a weak spot. Despite a
moderate year-on-year growth of 3.5% and 2.7% for total retail
sales of consumer goods and supermarket retail sales respectively, the
consumer price index rose only slightly by 0.2% year-on-year in 2024,
suggesting insufficient domestic demand and a lack of consumer
confidence amid job insecurity and the prolonged property downturn.

For the year under review, revenue declined by 2.1% (in local
currency: -0.9%) to HK$2,272.0 million (2023: HK$2,320.0 million),
owing to the change in consumption patterns for the confectionery
products involved in the distribution business and the negative effects
of foreign currency translation, despite the growth in sales of cup-
type instant noodles. Currently, revenue from the Mainland China
operations accounted for 59.6% (2023: 60.5%) of the Group's total
revenue.
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In terms of segment results, the Mainland China operations decreased
by 6.3% (in local currency: -5.1%) to HK$328.5 million (2023:
HK$350.6 million), mainly attributable to the higher production cost
in the second half of the year.

Instant Noodle Business

During the year, the Company adhered to its premiumisation strategy
and continued the geographical expansion of its business in Mainland
China. Consequently, with the strategic focus on cup-type instant
noodles, the overall performance of the instant noodle business
remained stable. A pick-up in the sales of cup-type instant noodles
was recorded due to the expansion of sales channels in the western
and northern regions, particularly for CUP NOODLES BIG. Premium
bowl-type noodles Nissin Donbei Kitsune Handmade Style Bow!l Udon
(Fresh Type) and Nissin Donbei Tempura Handmade Style Bow!l Udon
(Fresh Type) were launched to cater to the needs of consumers for
good value items. To further enhance publicity and brand awareness,
the Company made different promotional efforts, including the
collaboration with a Japanese anime named “Blue Lock” (B f&ZE
[% ) for a crossover involving Cup Noodles, the promotion on social
networking sites such as Red Note and the participation of a food
exposition in Shanghai.

Non-Noodle Business

Distribution Business

The Company’s distribution business is conducted through Shanghai
Eastpeak which is engaged in the distribution of confectionery and
beverages in Mainland China. During the year, its performance was
affected by reduced consumer spending on gifts due to changes in
consumption patterns. However, during the second half of the year,
efforts were made to expand product lines and brands, including
a European bottled water brand, a Japanese carbonated beverage
brand, a Korean snack food brand and a Japanese chocolate and
cookies brand.

Other Products

Nissin Koikeya Potato Chips achieved a good performance during
the year as the distribution channels continued to expand. Crisp
Choco, our baked corn flakes chocolate snack, continued to receive a
positive response from the market. Our green juices series successfully
attracted the attention of health-conscious customers with vending
machines availability further increasing product exposure. The easy-
to-cook microwavable frozen food products met the needs of city
dwellers looking for convenient and time-saving products.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2024, the total assets of the Group amounted to
HK$4,756.6 million (31 December 2023: HK$4,683.7 million), and the
total equity was HK$3,670.0 million (31 December 2023: HK$3,674.7
million). The Group’s working capital was HK$1,477.2 million (31
December 2023: HK$1,608.0 million), represented by the difference
between the total current assets of HK$2,419.9 million (31 December
2023: HK$2,504.2 million) and the total current liabilities of HK$942.7
million (31 December 2023: HK$896.2 million). The current ratio was
2.6 as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: 2.8).

The financial position of the Group remained healthy, with net cash of
approximately HK$1,402.5 million (31 December 2023: HK$1,365.6
million) and HK$820.0 million (31 December 2023: HK$820.0 million)
in available banking facilities as at 31 December 2024. The Group
had no external borrowing, and the gearing ratio was nil as at 31
December 2024 (31 December 2023: Nil).

Capital Expenditure

The Group's capital expenditure was approximately HK$570.4 million
during the year under review (2023: HK$329.6 million), mainly due to
the acquisitions of Gaemi Food and ABC Pastry, as well as the capital
investments in the production plants in Hong Kong and Mainland
China.

Capital Commitments

The Group had a capital commitment for the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment contracted for but not provided HK$14.6 million
as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: HK$50.0 million).

Financial Risk Management

The Group had not entered into nor traded derivative financial
instruments for hedging or speculative purposes. The Company and
several subsidiaries have foreign currency sales and purchases, which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk. As HK Dollar is currently
pegged to US Dollar, the Company considered that the Group's
exposure to fluctuation in HK Dollar against US Dollar is limited.
Other foreign currency exposures including Vietnamese Dong, Korean
Won, Australian Dollar and New Taiwan Dollar are still minimal. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily the Japanese Yen and
Renminbi against HK Dollar. The Company continues to manage and
monitor these exposures to ensure that appropriate measures are
implemented in a timely and effective manner.
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Contingent Liability
As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no material contingent
liability (31 December 2023: Nil).

Pledge of Assets
The Group did not have pledged assets as at 31 December 2024 (2023:
Nil).

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Company is cautiously optimistic about the long-term business
development in various countries and regions and continues to
control costs and improve operational efficiency. Premiumisation and
diversification strategies are the keys to achieving growth under this
ever-changing environment.

Looking ahead to 2025, Hong Kong is set to embrace change to
achieve prosperity. The Hong Kong government unveiled a new five-
year development blueprint for the tourism industry. While upgrading
the city’s abundant visitor attractions, the development blueprint has
also highlighted the development of new market sources, products,
themes and growth. Along this line, the Company continues to roll
out more premium products to delight consumers, offering them
great taste and superior ingredients. Moreover, in view of the rising
health awareness among consumers, the Company will continue to
diversify its business portfolio and enrich its product lines to broaden
the income base.

In Mainland China, the per capita spending continues to rise and
the per capita income gap between urban and rural residents is
narrowing. Revitalising domestic demand continues to be placed
with the top priority in the government’s 2025 agenda. Efforts will be
made to drive new quality productive forces through technological
empowerment. In addition to reactivating the sales of existing regions
and developing more sales channels, the Company continues to
expand its business territory and penetrate into other areas.

In Vietnam, the retail industry experiences a remarkable growth
fueled by favourable economic conditions and changing consumer
behaviour. The rise in consumer confidence, growing disposable
incomes, burgeoning middle class and increasing urbanisation have
all contributed to growing retail demand. Consumer preferences also
saw transformation into value-driven consumption, seeking healthy,
high-quality products from trusted brands. The Company continues
to expand its sales and distribution channels to capitalise on these
lucrative opportunities.
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The Company also continued its geographical expansion into Taiwan,
Korea and Australia. Leveraging our solid foundation and strong
presence in Hong Kong and Mainland China, the geographical
expansion will broaden the income base and generate additional sales.

Building on its solid foundation and pursuing a well-diversified
product portfolio and the premiumisation strategy, the Company is
well-positioned to deliver continuous revenue and earnings growth
in the coming years, as well as to expand its business territories with
increasing brand recognition in Hong Kong, Mainland China and
other regions.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 3 June 2024, the Company and Sung Gyung Food Co., Ltd.
entered into a share purchase agreement in relation to the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in Gaemi Food at a total consideration of
KRW48,000 million (equivalent to approximately HK$271.7 million).
Upon completion of the acquisition on 3 September 2024, Gaemi
Food became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 3 June 2024 and 19
June 2024 for details.

On 27 September 2024, the Company (as purchaser) and Gaoyang
Family Pty Ltd and Min Investments Pty Ltd (as sellers) entered into
the share sale and purchase agreement in relation to the acquisition
of 100% issued share capital in ABC Pastry at a total consideration
of AU$33.7 million (equivalent to approximately HK$178.6 million).
Upon completion of the acquisition on 2 December 2024, ABC Pastry
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 27 September 2024 for
details.

On 11 November 2024, the Company and Nissin Foods Asia Co.,
Ltd. (“Nissin Asia”) entered into the subscription and joint venture
agreement in relation to, among others, the formation of a joint
venture company in New South Wales, Australia, which will be owned
as to 51% by the Company and 49% by Nissin Asia. Please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 11 November 2024 for
details.
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On 13 December 2024, the Company and Mitsubishi Corporation
("Mitsubishi”) entered into a share sales and purchase agreement,
pursuant to which the Company agreed to purchase, and Mitsubishi
agreed to sell, 190 ordinary shares of MCMS, representing 19% of
the total issued shares of MCMS at a consideration of approximately
HK$11.1 million. Upon completion of the acquisition on 6 January
2025, MCMS became a wholly-owned subsidiary. The acquisition
of such interest did not constitute a notifiable transaction of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, except for the aforesaid acquisitions,
there were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures by the Group and the Group did not
hold any significant investments.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2024, the total number of staff of the Group
was 3,737 (31 December 2023: 3,409), with staff costs (excluding
directors’ remuneration) amounting to approximately HK$733.6
million for the year. The remuneration package is determined with
reference to individual performance, qualification and experience of
employees concerned and prevailing industry practices. The Group
also provides medical benefits, internal and external training and
discretionary bonuses based on individual performance. The share
award scheme is in place to provide long-term incentives to the
selected key staff of the Group.
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As at 26 March 2025
M202563 A26H

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Kiyotaka Ando

Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa

Mr. Shinji Tatsutani

Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada (resigned on 1 July 2024)
Mr. Kiyoshi Matsuura (appointed on 1 July 2024)
Mr. Katsunori Hiroi

Mr. Xi Xiaotong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Masaru Takahashi

Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano

Professor Toshiaki Sakai

Professor Keiko Ito

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Masaru Takahashi (Chairman)
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano
Professor Toshiaki Sakai

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Masaru Takahashi (Chairman)
Mr. Kiyotaka Ando
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Kiyotaka Ando (Chairman)
Mr. Masaru Takahashi
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lo Tai On

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

LEGAL ADVISORS

CFN Lawyers
Broad & Bright Law Firm
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Akifumi Aiba (appointed on 1 July 2024)

Mr. Hijiri Fukuoka (appointed on 11 August 2024)
Mr. Gu Chunlei

Mr. Takeshi Kikunaga

Mr. Yutaka Komori

Mr. Lau Wing Leung Max

Mr. Gen Matsunobu (resigned on 11 August 2024)
Mr. Kiyoshi Matsuura (resigned on 1 July 2024)
Mr. Tatsuya Sakai (appointed on 11 September 2024)
Mr. Takeshi Shigemi

Ms. Tang Yuen Man Amy

Mr. Tse Chi Ping Roy

Ms. Wong Wai Fong Blanche

Mr. Zhao Xiongda

(The order is alphabetised by the last names

of the senior management members.)

REGISTERED OFFICE

21-23 Dai Shing Street
Tai Po Industrial Estate
Tai Po

New Territories

Hong Kong

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

11-13 Dai Shun Street
Tai Po Industrial Estate
Tai Po

New Territories

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Mizuho Bank, Ltd.
MUFG Bank, Ltd.

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

CONTACT INFORMATION

Website: www.nissingroup.com.hk
Investor Relations Email: ir@nissinfoods.com.hk
Media Relations Email: pr@nissinfoods.com.hk

STOCK CODE

1475
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W Mr. Kiyotaka Ando

ZHEEEE BRAERIB AL
Executive Director, Chairman of the Board Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer HITES

WITER EER X BREHTE

E Mr. Xi Xiaotong W Mr. Masaru Takahashi
43 % nca BRBEE
Executive Director Independent
HWITES Non-executive Director
BIFRITES
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ﬁ Mr. Katsunori Hiroi

E Mr. Shinji Tatsutani

RABER®E WHRKE EHZRAIEE
Executive Director and Executive Director Executive Director
Chief Financial Officer HITES WITES
WITES X 5RVKE

Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano ﬁ Professor Toshiaki Sakai E Professor Keiko Ito
P EETHIR IR FREHUIR FPERETFHER
Independent Independent Independent
Non-executive Director Non-executive Director Non-executive Director
BYIENITES BN IERITESR B IFNTES
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Kiyotaka Ando, aged 45, is Executive Director, Chairman of
the Board and Chief Executive Officer. He is responsible for strategic
planning and managing the overall business and operations of the
Group. Mr. Ando joined the Group in March 2009 and has been
a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ando
obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from Keio University
in Japan in March 2004. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ando worked
in Mitsubishi Corporation from April 2004 to December 2007. In
January 2008, Mr. Ando joined Nissin Foods Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Nissin
Japan”) and its subsidiaries (“Nissin Japan Group”) as the deputy
general manager of marketing division and is currently a managing
executive officer and chief representative, China & East Asia of Nissin
Japan, and a director of eight subsidiaries of Nissin Japan (non-
executive in nature).

Currently, Mr. Ando is a guest member of the standing committee
of Tier | Association and vice president of Tier Il Association of
Noodle Products Branch of the Chinese Institute of Foods Science
and Technology; a member of the Food Wise Hong Kong Steering
Committee under the Environment and Ecology Bureau, the HKSAR
Government; the chairman of the advisory committee, Nissin Foods
(Hong Kong) Charity Fund; a vice chairman of the International Affairs
Committee, Federation of Hong Kong Industries; a director of The
Hong Kong Japanese Chamber of Commerce & Industry; a director
of School Management Committee, Hong Kong Japanese School and
Japanese International School, Hong Kong; a member of the advisory
board of the Research Centre for Comparative Japanese Studies, The
Chinese University of Hong Kong; and an advisor to Our Hong Kong
Foundation.

Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa, aged 65, is Executive Director. He is a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company and is responsible
for overseeing and managing overall research and development
functions of the Group. Before joining the Group, Mr. Fujinawa
joined Nissin Japan in 1982 with his last position being the executive
officer and deputy head of NISSIN Global Innovation Center of Nissin
Japan. Between April 2008 and March 2014, Mr. Fujinawa served as
deputy managing director of research and development division of
the Company. Mr. Fujinawa has extensive experience in the fields of
research and development related to food products. He obtained a
Bachelor of Agriculture degree from Obihiro University of Agriculture
and Veterinary Medicine in Japan in March 1982. In May 2021, Mr.
Fujinawa was appointed as a member of the standing committee of
Tier Il Association of Noodle Products Branch of the Chinese Institute
of Foods Science and Technology.
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Mr. Shinji Tatsutani, aged 60, is Executive Director, and Chief
Financial Officer of the Group. He is responsible for overseeing and
managing overall finance functions of the Group. Mr. Tatsutani
obtained a Bachelor of Economics degree from Osaka Prefecture
University in Japan in March 1987. Mr. Tatsutani has over 33 years
of experience in finance and accounting. Mr. Tatsutani joined Nissin
Japan in April 1987 and worked in accounting division until November
1996. From November 1996 to March 2002, Mr. Tatsutani was
assigned to Guangdong Shunde Nissin Foods Co., Ltd.. From March
2002 to March 2008, Mr. Tatsutani was re-assigned to Nissin Japan
with his last position being manager in finance division. In March
2008, after re-joining the Group, Mr. Tatsutani has been a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company and is also a director of
Food Safety Evaluation & Research Institute Co., Ltd. (“Food Safety
Institute”).

Mr. Kiyoshi Matsuura, aged 56, is Executive Director, and the
general manager (China & Hong Kong production), responsible for
overseeing and managing overall production of the Group. He is
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Before this, he
was a general manager of Zhejiang Nissin Foods Company Limited.
Mr. Matsuura graduated from Kochi University in Japan majoring
in Agronomic Chemistry in 1991. Mr. Matsuura joined Nissin Japan
in April 1991 and took up various roles focusing on production.
From March 2012 to March 2016, he was appointed as a director of
Nissin Foods Vietnam Co., Ltd. which was then a subsidiary of Nissin
Japan. Prior to joining the Group in March 2020, Mr. Matsuura was
appointed as a director of Nissin Foods (Thailand) Co., Ltd. from
March 2016 to March 2020.

Mr. Katsunori Hiroi, aged 51, is Executive Director, and the general
manager of eastern and northern China of the Group, responsible
for overseeing and managing overall sales. He is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. He was the chairman and managing
director of Zhuhai Golden Coast Winner Food Products Limited and a
director of Winner Food Products Limited between September 2019
and March 2023. Mr. Hiroi obtained a Bachelor of Arts in International
Relations from Ritsumeikan University in Japan in March 1996. Mr.
Hiroi joined Nissin Japan in April 1996 and worked in various roles in
marketing and sales function until March 2013. He joined the Group
in March 2013 and was appointed as a director of the Company until
May 2015. From May 2015 to September 2019, he was the deputy
managing director of Nissin Foods (Thailand) Co., Ltd.. He rejoined the
Group in September 2019.
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Mr. Xi Xiaotong, aged 55, is Executive Director, and the general
manager of southern China of the Group, responsible for overseeing
and managing overall sales. He is a director of Nissin Foods (China)
Holding Co., Limited. Mr. Xi obtained a Bachelor of Economics degree
from Nihon University in Japan in March 1996. Before joining the
Group, Mr. Xi had worked in Nissin Japan in April 1996 and had
served various positions until December 2013, and had been assigned
to Shanghai Nissin Foods Co., Ltd. between 2001 and 2004 and
between 2008 and 2009. He joined the Group in December 2013.

Mr. Masaru Takahashi, aged 72, is Independent Non-executive
Director appointed by the Company on 1 July 2021. Mr. Takahashi
is currently a special advisor of CENXUS GROUP, a tax accounting
corporation in Japan since January 2018, and a non-executive director
of Fukui Computer Holdings Inc., a company listed on the Tokyo Stock
Exchange (stock code: 9790) since June 2018 and a non-executive
auditor of Mental Health Technologies Co., Ltd., a company listed on
the Tokyo Stock Exchange (stock code: 9218) since March 2022.

From October 1980 to December 2017, Mr. Takahashi worked in
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in Japan with his last position being a
partner and served as a specially-appointed professor in international
accounting in the Graduate School of Asia University in Japan from
April 2014 to March 2020. Mr. Takahashi obtained a Bachelor of
Law degree from Gakushu-in University in Japan in March 1976. He
qualified as a Certified Public Accountant in Japan in 1984.

Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano, aged 60, is Independent Non-
executive Director appointed by the Company on 21 November 2017.
Professor Nakano obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree from Carleton
College in 1987, a Master of Philosophy degree from Yale University in
the United States in 1990 and a Doctor of Philosophy degree in 1998
from the same University. Since August 1995, Professor Nakano has
been working in The Chinese University of Hong Kong and is currently
the chairman and a professor at the department of Japanese studies.
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Professor Toshiaki Sakai, aged 50, is Independent Non-executive
Director appointed by the Company on 1 April 2020. He is currently a
professor of Physical Education of Keio University Institute in Japan, an
executive director of Japan Tennis Association and a deputy director
of Keio University Athletic Association in Japan. Professor Sakai
has extensive experience in the sport coaching and management,
specializing in tennis. Professor Sakai is a director of Kabushikikaisha
Egg Ball (k=& TV 7R—)L), a limited liability company
incorporated in Japan, which is principally engaged in tennis coaching
business. Professor Sakai obtained a Bachelor’s degree in political
science from the Faculty of Law of Keio University in Japan in March
1997, a Master's degree in sports science from Waseda University in
Japan in March 2007 and a Doctoral’s degree from Keio University
Graduate School of Media and Governance from Keio University in
Japan in February 2014.

Professor Keiko Ito, aged 53, is Independent Non-executive Director
appointed by the Company on 1 July 2023. Professor Ito is currently a
professor at the Graduate School of Social Sciences of Chiba University
in Japan. From April 2018 to March 2022, she was a professor at the
Faculty of Commerce of Chuo University in Japan. From April 2004 to
March 2018, she worked in Senshu University in Japan, with her last
position as a professor of the Faculty of Economics. From April 2002
to March 2004, she was a senior research fellow at the International
Centre for the Study of East Asian Development. Professor Ito
obtained a Bachelor’s degree in industrial management from the
Faculty of Science and Engineering of Waseda University in Japan
in March 1994, a Master’s degree in area studies from University of
Tsukuba in Japan in March 1999 and a Doctoral’s degree in economics
from Hitotsubashi University in Japan in March 2002. She is an
economist whose research focuses on trade and economic policy in
the Asian region, including China.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Akifumi Aiba, aged 49, joined the Group in March 2012 and is
currently deputy managing director in Nissin Foods (H.K.) Company
Limited and managing director of Kagome Nissin Foods (H.K.) Co.,
Limited, responsible for overseeing the sales functions in Hong Kong.
Mr. Aiba is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Before this, he was the general manager — Marketing Department
of Nissin Foods Co., Ltd. from April 2012 to September 2014. From
September 2014 to September 2019, he was appointed as managing
director of Zhuhai Golden Coast Winner Food Products Limited. From
September 2019 to March 2021, he was appointed as a director of
Nissin Foods (China) Holding Co., Limited, responsible for overseeing
and managing all functions in southern China of the Group. From
March 2021 to March 2023, he was transferred to Nissin Japan. He
was appointed as the managing director of Nissin Foods Vietnam Co.,
Ltd from April 2023 to December 2024. Mr. Aiba obtained a Bachelor
of Business Administration degree from Kyoto Sangyo University in
Japan in March 1999.

Mr. Hijiri Fukuoka, aged 58, joined the Group in September 2009
and is appointed as managing director of Zhuhai Golden Coast
Winner Food Products Limited and a director of Winner Food Products
Limited in August 2024. Before this, he was Executive Director
from December 2017 to July 2018. He was the General Manager in
eastern China and southern China of Nissin Foods (China) Holding
Co., Ltd. from March 2014 to March 2017 and from March 2017 to
August 2019 respectively. He was a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. From September 2019 to July 2024, Mr. Fukuoka was
transferred to the subsidiary of Nissin Japan located in Thailand. Mr.
Fukuoka obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree majoring in Commerce
from Waseda University in Japan in March 1989. He has over 33 years
of experience in marketing and management. Mr. Fukuoka joined
Nissin Japan in January 1992 and worked in the marketing division.

Mr. Gu Chunlei, aged 48, joined the Group in February 2014 and is
currently the acting general manager of Nissin Foods (China) Holding
Co., Ltd., responsible for overseeing and managing overall sales of
the group in southern China. Mr. Gu graduated from Jiangxi Open
University in 1998, majoring in Finance. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Gu worked in Dingyi Food Co., Ltd. and Jinmailang Foods Co., Ltd..
He has extensive experience in food sales and marketing.
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Mr. Takeshi Kikunaga, age 52, joined the Group in March 2014 and
is currently the chairman of Taiwan Nissin Foods Co., Ltd. (formerly
known as: Nissin Demae Iccho Co., Ltd.), responsible for managing
Taiwan and Oceania regions sales business. Mr. Kikunaga is also the
managing director of Australia Nissin Foods Pty. Ltd. and a director of
ABC Pastry Holdings Pty Ltd. He joined Nissin Japan in April 1997 and
performed various sales and marketing positions in Nissin Japan until
March 2014. Mr. Kikunaga obtained a Bachelor of Engineering degree
from Aoyama Gakuin University in Japan in March 1997.

Mr. Yutaka Komori, aged 61, joined the Group in October 2019 and
is the chairman and general manager of Shanghai Eastpeak Trading
Co. Ltd. and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr.
Komori was appointed as senior executive officer for sales in northern
China of the Group from March 2020 to March 2021, responsible
for overseeing and managing overall sales in northern China region.
Before this, Mr. Komori was the deputy head of northern China
Business. Mr. Komori obtained a Bachelor of Law degree from
Waseda University in Japan in March 1986. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Komori worked in Mitsubishi Corporation from April 1986 to
September 2019, with his last position being the general manager
of overseas marketing group of Mitsubishi Shokuhin, a subsidiary of
Mitsubishi Corporation.

Mr. Lau Wing Leung Max, aged 59, joined the Group since August
2018 and is currently the general manager of Business Management
Department of Nissin Foods (H.K.) Management Company Limited.
Mr. Lau is also the managing director of ABC Pastry Holdings Pty Ltd.,
responsible for managing the overall business and operational matters.
Mr. Lau obtained a Master of Arts degree (major in marketing)
from Macquarie University in Australia in October 1995, a Master
of Business Administration degree from Asia International Open
University (Macau) in July 1996 and a Master of Electronic Business
degree from City University of Hong Kong in November 2002, and
Advanced Management Programme from INSEAD of France in 2004.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Lau had worked in Cony Electronic,
British American Tobacco and Lee Kum Kee between 1983 and 1988.
And he worked with John Swire & Sons (H.K.) Limited between July
1988 and December 2017, and had been assigned to Taikoo Sugar
Limited between 1988 and 2011 with last position as director and
general manager and to Swire Foods Holdings Limited as managing
director between 2012 and 2017.
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Mr. Tatsuya Sakai, aged 55, joined the Group in September 2024
and is appointed as managing director of Winner Food Products
Limited, responsible for overseeing and managing overall business
and operational matters. Mr. Sakai joined Nissin Japan in April 1993
and worked in the sales department. He was appointed as deputy
managing director of Nissin Foods Singapore Pte, Ltd. in April 2018
and as managing director in April 2019. Mr. Sakai obtained a Bachelor
of Arts degree majoring in Economics from Waseda University in
Japan in March 1993. He has over 30 years of experience in sales and
management.

Mr. Takeshi Shigemi, aged 62, joined the Group in March 2014
and is currently director in Nissin Foods (H.K.) Management Co., Ltd,
in charge of administration, public relations and business planning
functions. In March 2015 he was first appointed as senior executive
officer for sales in southern China of the Group, responsible for
overseeing and managing overall sales in southern China of the
Group. From April 2017 to March 2018, Mr. Shigemi was responsible
for overseeing and managing overall sales in eastern China of the
Group and his title was changed to senior executive officer for sales in
eastern China. He graduated from the Chinese language curriculum
of Kyoto Sangyo University in Japan in March 1985. He has nearly 27
years of experience in sales and marketing. From April 1985 to August
2013, Mr. Shigemi worked in Panasonic Corporation, with his last
position being head of the marketing division. From August 2013 to
March 2014, Mr. Shigemi was the manager of the marketing division
of Nissin Japan.

Ms. Tang Yuen Man Amy, aged 59, joined the Group since
September 2003. She is currently the general manager of quality
management department, responsible for overseeing and managing
overall quality management matters of the Group. Ms. Tang obtained
Bachelor of Science degree and Master of Quality Management
degree from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1992 and 1998
respectively. Ms. Tang was responsible for lab testing and quality
management work of edible oil factory and refinery under Hop Hing
Group during 1988-2003 before she joined the Group.

Mr. Tse Chi Ping Roy, aged 63, joined the Group in January 2008
and is currently the general manager of human resources department
(China and Hong Kong). Before this, Mr. Tse was a senior executive
officer for sales in Nissin Foods (H.K.) Company Limited (“Nissin
Foods HK"), responsible for overseeing and managing the sales
functions of Nissin Foods HK. Mr. Tse obtained an Honours Diploma
in Business Management from the Hong Kong Baptist University
(previously known as Hong Kong Baptist College) in November 1985
and obtained a Master of Business Administration degree from the
Open University of Hong Kong in June 2002. Mr. Tse has accumulated
34 years of experience in sales and marketing of consumable
products having previously worked under sales department in various
companies.
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Ms. Wong Wai Fong Blanche, aged 53, joined the Group in
May 2018. She is currently the general manager of public relations
department, responsible for overseeing corporate affairs, media
relations, customer care centre, community relations, and internal
communication of the Group. Ms. Wong obtained a Bachelor of
Social Sciences in Communication (Journalism) degree from the Hong
Kong Baptist University in 1994 and a Master of International and
Public Affairs degree from the University of Hong Kong in 2005. She
started her career as a court reporter and then spent five years in the
marketing of U.S. produce in Mainland China and Hong Kong. She
began serving as an in-house public relations professional in 2004,
and brings with her a wealth of experience from industries across
home appliances, payments, banking and NGO. Currently, Ms. Wong
is serving as an executive committee member of Group 8 (Food,
beverages and tobacco), Federation of Hong Kong Industries.

Mr. Zhao Xiongda, aged 55, joined the Group in February 2001.
He is currently the general manager for sales in western China of
the Group, responsible for overseeing and managing overall sales.
Mr. Zhao obtained a Bachelor of Engineering degree in enterprise
management from Shanghai University of Engineering Science in July
1991. Before joining the Group, Mr. Zhao worked for Pepsi Cola,
US Campbell’s and other food manufacturing companies. He has
extensive experience in food sales and marketing.
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The Company is committed to the maintenance of good corporate
governance practices, with reference to the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix C1
to the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange. The Board is of the
opinion that during the year, the Company had complied with the
code provisions as set out in the CG Code except for the following
deviation:

Pursuant to Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Kiyotaka Ando is currently the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer, responsible for
strategic planning and managing of the Group’s overall business and
operations. Mr. Ando has been responsible for overall management
of the Group since 2009. The Board believes that the current structure
enables the Company to make and implement business decision swiftly
and effectively which promotes the Group’s development in line with
other strategies and business direction. The Board considers that the
balance of power and authority, accountability and independent
decision-making under the present arrangement will not be impaired
because of the diverse background and experience of the independent
non-executive directors. Further, the Audit Committee, which consists
exclusively of independent non-executive directors, has free and
direct access to the Company’s external auditors and independent
professional advisers when it considers necessary.

In order to maintain good corporate governance, the Board will
regularly review the need to appoint different individuals to perform
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer separately.

CULTURE

The Company upholds high standards of integrity, transparency,
and accountability in its business. It strives to foster a culture of
compliance, good corporate governance, and ethical behaviour with
its stakeholders to build trust and credibility.

“Peace will come to the world when there is enough food (& & tF)",
“Create foods to serve society (R &) &tt)"”, “Eat wisely for beauty and
health (2B &)” and “Food related jobs are sacred profession (& &
EEE%)", the four tenets adopted by Mr. Momofuku Ando, the founder
of Nissin Japan, provide the basis for the Group’s philosophy and serve
as the abiding values of its foundation. The Board is committed to
developing a positive culture that is built on its core values to provide
guidance on employees’ conduct and behaviours as well as the
business activities, and to ensure they are embedded throughout the
Group’s vision, mission, policies and business strategies.
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DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
C3 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities
of the Company by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, upon
specific enquiries made by the Company that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year.
To ensure Directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company (the
“Securities”) are conducted in accordance with the Model Code, each
Director is required to notify the Chairman of the Board in writing and
obtain a written acknowledgement from the Chairman or designated
director prior to any dealings in the Securities. Relevant employees
of the Company are also bound by the Model Code, which prohibits
them to deal in the Securities at any time when they possess inside
information.

THE BOARD

Board Composition

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate to the
business of the Company. During the year and up to the date of this
annual report, the Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kiyotaka Ando (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa

Mr. Shinji Tatsutani

Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada (resigned on 1 July 2024)

Mr. Kiyoshi Matsuura (appointed on 1 July 2024)

Mr. Katsunori Hiroi

Mr. Xi Xiaotong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Masaru Takahashi

Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano

Professor Toshiaki Sakai

Professor Keiko Ito

In compliance with Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules, Mr. Kiyoshi
Matsuura, who was appointed as an Executive Director on 1 July
2024, obtained legal advice on the requirements under the Listing
Rules applicable to him as a Director and the possible consequences
of making a false declaration or giving false information to the Stock
Exchange on 11 June 2024 and had confirmed he understood his
obligations as a Director.

The biographies of all Directors are set out in the section headed
“Board of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
The Company publishes and maintains on its website and on the
Stock Exchange’s website an updated list of the Directors identifying
their roles and functions. The Chairman is responsible for formulating
business strategies and providing leadership to the Board, ensuring
effective running of the Board, including that all appropriate issues
are discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The Chairman ensures
that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at the Board
Meetings and receive adequate, complete and reliable information.
The Chairman also encourages all Directors to make a full and active
contribution to the Board’s affairs and take the lead to ensure that it
acts in the best interests of the Company.
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The Directors have devoted sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Group, and they have disclosed to the Company their
commitments (e.g. directorship) in other listed companies and
organisations as well as updated the Company on any subsequent
changes.

During the year, the Board at all times has met the requirement of
Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors with at least one
independent non-executive director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee has assessed their independence based on the guidelines
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and the Company
considered them to be independent.

The Independent Non-executive Directors come from diverse business,
varied background and experience. Through the participation in the
Board Meetings and various Committee Meetings, the Independent
Non-executive Directors bring in independent judgment, extensive
experience and valuable contribution to the Board. The Board believes
that the composition of Executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient
balances that protect the interests of the shareholders and the Group
as a whole.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE

The Company recognises that Board independence is pivotal in
good corporate governance and Board effectiveness. Following
mechanisms are adopted by the Board and reviewed annually by the
Board to ensure their effectiveness and the Board considered that the
mechanism was effective for the year under review:

1. The Board must have at least three Independent Non-executive
Directors and must appoint Independent Non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board. Currently
there are four Independent Non-executive Directors on the
Board, accounting for 40% of the Board.

2. On an annual basis, all Independent Non-executive Directors are
required to confirm in writing their compliance of independence
requirements pursuant to the Listing Rules, and to disclose the
number and nature of offices held by them in public companies
or organisations and other significant commitments.

3. External independent professional advice is available as and
when required by individual Directors.

4. The Chairman of the Board meets with Independent Non-

executive Directors annually without the presence of the
Executive Directors.
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THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group. It
oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions, internal control,
risk management and performances. The management team is
delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the
daily management of the Group. The delegated functions and work
tasks are periodically reviewed. Major corporate matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board to the management including: (1)
the preparation of interim and annual reports and announcements
for the Board's approval before publishing; (2) implementation of
adequate risk management and internal control systems; and (3)
compliance with relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and
rules and regulations. It is the responsibility of the Board to determine
the appropriate corporate governance practices applicable to the
Company’s circumstances and to ensure processes and procedures are
in place to achieve the Company’s corporate governance objectives.
There is a procedure agreed by the Board to ensure the Directors,
upon reasonable request, to seek the independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstance, at the Company’s expenses.

The Board has maintained the necessary balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the business requirements and objectives of the Group
and for the exercise of independent judgement. The Directors with
various professional qualifications, experience and related financial
management expertise have contributed to the effective direction
of the Company and provided adequate checks and balances to
safeguard the interests of both the Group and the shareholders.
Hence, the Board believes that the current Board composition satisfies
the corporate governance requirements with regard to the balance of
expertise, skills and experience as well as the ongoing development
and management of its business activities.

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall strategy
as well as the operation and financial performance of the Group. The
Directors may participate either in person or through electronic means
of communications. The Directors are given an opportunity to include
matters for discussion in the agenda. At least 14 days’ notice prior
to the date of regular Board Meeting is given to the Directors and
the agenda together with Board papers are normally sent to them at
least three days before the intended date of a Board Meeting. Draft
minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to all Directors for their
comment before being tabled at the next Board Meeting for approval.
All minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection by any Director.

Pursuant to Code Provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, the Board should
meet regularly and board meetings should be held as least four times
a year. The Board convened six meetings during the year.

To the best knowledge of the Board, the Directors do not have any
material financial, business, family or other relationships among
members of the Board. Should a Director has a potential conflict of
interest in a matter being considered at the Board Meeting, he or she
will abstain from voting and the Independent Non-executive Directors
will be present on dealing with such conflict of interest issues.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy of the Company (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) which specifies the objective and approach
to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance
the effectiveness of the Board. The Board Diversity Policy provides that
the Company should endeavour to ensure that the Board members
have the appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives that are required to support the execution of its business
strategy.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Company seeks to achieve
Board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to professional experience, skills, knowledge,
gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity and length
of service. The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness and will
disclose in the corporate governance report about the implementation
of the Board Diversity Policy on annual basis. The Board considered
that the Board Diversity Policy was effective for the year under review.

Summary and Measurable Objectives of the Board
Diversity Policy
During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the diversity
of the Board from perspectives the composition of the Board from
diversified angles:

Gender Age Group
TR Fhe#a R

’

No. of Directors

No. of Directors

EEIN EFEAY
Female Z 14 41 —50
® Male B 51 —60
® 61—70
® 71—80

* The length of service is calculated since listing.

The Nomination Committee considered that the Board had achieved
gender diversity and possessed skill and expertise and a diverse mix
appropriate for the business of the Company and will review the
composition and diversity of the Board on an annual basis to ensure
its continued effectiveness.

The Company has also taken and will continue to take steps to
promote gender diversity at all levels of the Company, including but
not limited to the Board and senior management levels and improve
the composition of the Board in order to develop a pipeline of
potential successors.
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As at 31 December 2024, the Group's total workforce gender diversity
is approximately at 0.9:1.0 male to female ratio. The gender diversity
ratio for senior management is at 5.0:1.0 male to female ratio. The
Group will continue its endeavor to maintain female representation in
its workforce.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management members
by band for the year ended 31 December 2024 is set out below:

R2024F12 318 AEBEE2EETHRZ T
£ Bathfl$950.9:1.0° &REEBURNZT
£ B A5.0:1.0 - REEGFEES NRT
ZHEE TEBFRRERE -

EEEgNEREEEMNE
HE2024F12A3MHILFE EE R HEE
ABZMEHESHINWOT ¢

T8

Number of Personnel

Emoluments B < N ¢
Nil to HK$2,000,000 Z2 2,000,000 77T 17
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7T E 3,000,000 7T 3
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 7T E 4,000,000 87T 1
HK$7,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 7,000,001 7T & 8,000,000 87T 1

Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix D2 to the Listing Rules are set out in Notes 12 and 13 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company, whereas each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company.
Their term of service is set out below:

Directors =
Executive Directors HITEF
Kiyotaka Ando ZHEEE
Toshimichi Fujinawa BRERm
Shinji Tatsutani RAER
Kiyoshi Matsuura R
Katsunori Hiroi E#H5 Al
Xi Xiaotong By
Independent Non-executive Directors BUIFHNITEE
Masaru Takahashi STtz
Lynne Yukie Nakano HREFSET
Toshiaki Sakai WIHZ
Keiko Ito FEEET

BIELHRAMSED2 BT HEZEENAERS
FATHE 2 E—THBHARNFREA FIER
REFFE1213

ZEREESS

BTEFHEARRG ARG HE - S B
WITEFHEARRGI LR TR - HERRS LR
AT

Term of Service

P75 HARR

1/7/2023 - 30/6/2026
1/7/2024 - 30/6/2027
1/7/2023 - 30/6/2026
1/7/2024 - 30/6/2027
1/7/2023 - 30/6/2026
1/7/2023 - 30/6/2026

1/7/2024 - 30/6/2027
1/7/2023 - 30/6/2026
1/4/2023 - 30/6/2025
1/7/2023 - 30/6/2026
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Their service agreements and letters of appointment are subject to
the termination in accordance with the respective terms and may
be renewed in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”) and applicable Listing Rules.
Pursuant to the Articles of Association, all directors are required to
retire from office by rotation at annual general meeting.

Pursuant to Article 107 of the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the directors (including the managing
director) or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, the
number which is nearest to and is at least one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation. A retiring director shall be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Mr. Shinji Tatsutani, Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano and
Professor Toshiaki Sakai will retire by rotation and being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles of Association, the directors
may appoint a person who is willing to act to be a director, either
to fill a vacancy or as an additional director, provided that the
appointment does not cause the number of directors to exceed any
number fixed as the maximum number of directors. A director so
appointed shall hold office only until the next annual general meeting
and shall then be eligible for re-election, but shall not be taken into
account in determining the directors who are to retire by rotation
at the meeting. All directors are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. Accordingly, Mr. Kiyoshi Matsuura,
being new Director appointed on 1 July 2024, will hold office until
the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, will offer
himself for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Upon appointment of director(s), each new director receives an
induction package covering business operations, policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently
aware of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other
relevant regulatory requirements.

The Directors, on an ongoing basis, will receive updates on the relevant
laws, rules and regulations. The Company encourages the Directors
to enrol in a wide range of professional development courses and
seminars relating to the Listing Rules, Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”), and corporate governance practices so that they can
continuously acquire their relevant knowledge and skills. Pursuant to
Code Provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, during the year, the Company
has organised a seminar conducted by qualified professionals and has
provided updates on the Group’s business, operations, and financial
information, as well as other information and briefings from time to
time to all Directors.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A

BERRBE L REERERIES BIER T AR
b WAMRIBEAR R RAGERAA ([AEHER4
A1) MERe ETRIEEHAR - REABERR
AR 2REEVARBRREAFRGHFERE -

RIBABEREMAFE 107K REERREEFX
L =02 EF (BREFALE)  JWE
EMABIIE==0EE AIREOEADR
=2 ANBHEZARERET REEETA
BRERET - Bt RABRELE - RHFT
BEFIRANEBEEREERREFRE Lk
BERE UFAEMEMEERSMT -

RIBEBEREMAE 121G EFEERERE
TEFBUZALTRES  WEMERIUERFH
BES ERFRETEEREFTAMBHETE
LR - EAHZNHERENEFEEBRETERER
BERE  AFEERBEEE  EREEHR
FLHERINEZTH ST AR - EEE
AELE=FHERE—X - Bt tERR 2024
FTATVREZENHES  NBRLE/RIR
ETEBRRAFAE  LABBRERET -

EEMEAMEHEERERER

REEER  BRHTESHEATEN  RDTE
EARBZEREE  BREREF  URERE
2R EERETEME UBREED TH#
ERRAIREMABEERE T 2EE -

EEHRHERIBEMER RANERZEHE
e ARTEMESLRZAE FHRY - FE
AR 622 EEB ARG ([ RRMER)) Rb%
BEARHRABMCERERAELMTE  BUER
SRARHELERRAME NI - RIFAEER
SFRIZFRMEXECA1 416 FR - AARIEHE
BHABERIEXALEBRZANE U TRAEZ
REERHEMAEERY - 2ERMBERIU
REAMER M AN G R H -



The participation of each of the Directors in continuous professional
development (“CPD") during the year is summarized as follows:

B’ BT

FEFNAFE2AFEIXER ([HFEFXE

Participated in CPD ®ote)

Directors = R P e R TR (D)
Executive Directors HiTEE

Kiyotaka Ando OB R 4
Toshimichi Fujinawa BEABN A 4
Shinji Tatsutani REER v
Yasuhiro Yamada (resigned on 1 July 2024) ILIEFSHE (R 20244 7 A 1 HFHF) v
Kiyoshi Matsuura (appointed on 1 July 2024) MR (1R 20244 7 A 1 BHEZE(F) 4
Katsunori Hiroi B F 7 Al v
Xi Xiaotong HEfY 4
Independent Non-executive Directors BUIHHITEE

Masaru Takahashi =i v
Lynne Yukie Nakano e T v
Toshiaki Sakai I v
Keiko Ito FEEET v

BsE - HE AR R R BT & S BIEERET e -

EEREEAEBEMR

ARAERECEEDTHHEFRAREDE
REZ EMARTE - AEERERABRIHE
EORBRE - ZRBREEESTE -

Note: Attended a seminar arranged by the Company or read relevant materials.

DIRECTORS' AND OFFICERS” LIABILITIES

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken
against Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities. Such insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS TtEERHEE
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance EERAERITUTREE R -

duties as set out below:

N

HERBRTARBA ZEEERRRRE
B BREFENBRZTIBE - BRE
EERRBUBHNOBGIALRRER
BOR - W fEe

1. develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance, including the board diversity
policy, mechanisms to ensure independent views of the
Board and shareholders communication policy, and make
recommendations;

BUYLEREERGRERRE 2 HIIRFF
BEEHRR

R RERARAREEZREK  BRES
BXREBZITTEIE - REBBBER LR
EERIUBYE R AMHIIA KRB TIAR
MEEMESTENER

HE - R REREENRES ZRTER
RERFM (WA) : &

2. review and monitor the training and continuous professional 2.
development of directors and senior management;

3. review and monitor the Company’s policies, including board 3.
diversity policy, shareholders communication policy and
mechanism to ensure independent views of the Board and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

b

4. develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance 4.
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

5.  review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and 5. REBLWMRAMSECIRIARARETRE
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under Appendix ERTRZBERARE [REERRSTI A2
C1 to the Listing Rules. BEE o
During the year, the Board has performed the above duties. FR - EFSCRITLARE -
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees (the “Board Committees”)
and has delegated various responsibilities to the committees including
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. The Board Committees perform their distinct roles
in accordance with their respective terms of reference which are
available to shareholders on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange respectively. The Board Committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek the independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A Nomination Committee has been established by the Board on 21
November 2017 with specific terms of reference in compliance with
the CG Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors, and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange respectively.

The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director and two
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kiyotaka Ando, Mr.
Masaru Takahashi and Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano. Mr. Kiyotaka
Ando is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the year, two Nomination Committee meetings were held
to (i) review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
have concluded that members of the Board have possessed the
expertise and independence to carry out the Board's functions and
responsibilities, (i) assess the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors, (iii) review and consider the appointment of new
director and make recommendation to the Board, (iv) recommend,
amongst its other duties, to the Board retiring Directors standing for
re-election at the annual general meeting and (v) review the Board
Diversity Policy.

The Board has adopted a nomination policy. The nomination of
candidate(s) is made in accordance with certain selection criteria:
(a) reputation for integrity; (b) accomplishment and experience; (c)
commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest; and
(d) diversity in all aspects including but not limited to professional
experiences, business perspectives, skills, knowledge, gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity and length of service,
in assessing and selecting proposed candidates for directorship.
The relevant procedures are set out in nomination policy for the
Nomination Committee to follow subject to provisions in the Articles
of Association and applicable Listing Rules. The Board recognises
the need for appointment or re-election of directors, the following
nomination procedures should be followed:
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(@  The Nomination Committee shall review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

(b)  The Nomination Committee shall identify individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships.

() The Nomination Committee shall assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors.

(d)  The Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or re-election of directors and
succession planning for directors.

(e)  Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as
an independent non-executive director at the general meeting,
the Nomination Committee should set out in the circular to
shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying the
notice of the relevant general meeting.

(f)  The Board shall have the final decision on all matters in respect
of the recommendation of candidates to stand for election or
reelection at any general meeting.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A Remuneration Committee has been established by the Board on
21 November 2017 with specific terms of reference in compliance
with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code and the majority
of the members of the Remuneration Committee are Independent
Non-executive Directors. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee include making recommendations to the Board on the
policy and structure for all Directors’ remuneration, reviewing and
approving the management’s remuneration proposals with reference
to the Board's corporate goals and objectives and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration. The terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange respectively.

Each of the Directors will receive a fee which is subject to an annual
adjustment at a rate to be reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
and be determined at the discretion of the Board.

The Remuneration Committee comprises one Executive Director and
two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kiyotaka Ando,
Mr. Masaru Takahashi and Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano. Mr. Masaru
Takahashi is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
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During the year, two Remuneration Committee meetings were held to
review and make recommendations to the Board on the policy and the
remuneration packages of new director and structure for directors’
and senior management’s remuneration.

The Board has adopted a directors’ remuneration policy. It aims to set
out the Company’s policy in respect of remuneration paid to Executive
Directors and Non-executive Directors.

The directors’ remuneration policy sets out the remuneration structure
that allows the Company to attract, motivate and retain qualified
Directors who can manage and lead the Company in achieving its
strategic objective and contribute to the Company’s performance and
sustainable growth, and to provide Directors with a balanced and
competitive remuneration. Such policy will be reviewed and updated
from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.

The directors’ remuneration package is determined with reference to
a matrix of factors including the individual performance, qualification
and experience of Directors concerned and prevailing market practices.
No Directors or any of his/her associates is involved in deciding his/her
own remuneration.

Details of emoluments paid to each Director are set out in Note 12 to
the consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An Audit Committee has been established by the Board on 21
November 2017 with specific terms of reference in compliance
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee include the review and supervision
of the Group’s financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems, review of the Group’s financial information,
overseeing the relationship with external auditor of the Company
(including but not limited to making recommendation to the Board
on appointment and/or removal of external auditor, approving the
remuneration and terms of engagement of that external auditor,
reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards), and overseeing the corporate governance
and compliance matters. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange respectively.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Masaru Takahashi, Professor Lynne Yukie
Nakano and Professor Toshiaki Sakai. Mr. Masaru Takahashi is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.
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During the year, four Audit Committee meetings were held to review
the Group’s financial results including the annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2023 and the interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2024 before their submission to the Board and
monitored the integrity of such financial statements.

The Audit Committee has also reviewed the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and considers
them to be effective and adequate.

FRN - BEREECERITMNASH  BHEAEE
MBTISEE4E - BIEEIZE2023F 12 A3 HIEFE
MEFEENEE2024F6 A30BIE~EAZ
PHIEBERFRRERTESES  UERZSUG
WERZTEMY -

EnZBaNCAEENEREE M ABIEE
R BRIEETREN  XRBZFERASANR
K3t

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS EEEREETER
The attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings, BEEEFNAEELERESEYH  ZEgENR
committee meetings and annual general meeting during the year are BRBEFRE 2RI
set out below:
Meetings attended/held
BiEBI12 8%
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
e BREEE FMEES REEEE &
Directors = eF e E g3 g& BEXRE
Executive Directors HITEE
Kiyotaka Ando ZHEEE 6/6 - 2/2 212 11
Toshimichi Fujinawa BB 6/6 - - - 1/1
Shinji Tatsutani RABER 6/6 - - - 1/1
Yasuhiro Yamada' I RAHE 3/3 - - - 11
Kiyoshi Matsuura? 22 3/3 - - - -
Katsunori Hiroi EFH A 6/6 - - - 1/1
Xi Xiaotong ZEY 6/6 - - - 171
Independent BUHHTEE
Non-executive Directors
Masaru Takahashi =Bk 6/6 4/4 212 212 1/1
Lynne Yukie Nakano thEf T 6/6 4/4 ) ) 11
Toshiaki Sakai S ES 6/6 4/4 - - 171
Keiko Ito FERETF 6/6 - - - 11
Notes: BieE
1. Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada has resigned as Executive Director with effect from 1. WA AR ERTES - 5202457 A1RH
1 July 2024. RBAER
2. Mr. Kiyoshi Matsuura has been appointed as Executive Director with 2. R ERZERIITES - 52024F7 A
effect from 1 July 2024. BAEARL -

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board has entire responsibility to ensure the integrity of the
Group’s accounting, financial reporting and the effective systems of
risk management and internal control are in place.

B & R

EE2RBRARRAKESS - WHEHRRLA
REERGMAREENER R R -
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Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects in
annual report, interim report, inside information and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. In
addition, the Board, supporting by the finance functions of the Group,
is responsible for overseeing the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements which shall give a true and fair view of the
Group’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

The Directors ensure that all applicable accounting standards have
been followed to prepare the financial statements with appropriate
accounting policies, consistently applied and supported by reasonable
and prudent judgments and estimates and ensure the financial
statements in compliance with the requirements of the Companies
Ordinance and the Listing Rules.

The management has provided sufficient explanation and information
of the Group’s financial, operational performance as well as business
development and also with management accounts and monthly
updates to the Board to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the Group's performance, financial position and
Group’s prospects to enable the Board and each Director to discharge
their duties. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Group recognises that the independence of an external auditor
is a fundamental governance principle. External auditor provides
the Board and shareholders an objective assurance on whether
the financial statements fairly represent the financial position and
performance of the Group in all material aspects.

The working scope and reporting responsibilities of the external
auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, are set out on pages 92 to 97 in
the Independent Auditor’s Report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Group has formulated and adopted the risk management policy in
providing direction in identifying, evaluating and managing significant
risks. The main features of the risk management processes comprise 5
core stages: (a) risk identification, (b) risk assessment and prioritisation,
(c) risk response, (d) risk monitoring and (e) risk reporting.

The appropriate risk mitigation plans are determined based on the
following risk responses:

- Acceptance: Risks are considered immaterial and acceptable

based on Group's risk appetite, and therefore no action is
considered necessary.
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- Reduction: Risks cannot be considered immaterial, and actions
such as controls have to be taken to reduce the impact and
vulnerability to an acceptable level.

- Sharing: Risks cannot be considered immaterial, and the Group
itself cannot effectively reduce the risks to an acceptably low
level, therefore a portion of the risks has to be transferred to or
shared with other parties by insurance, outsourcing, etc.

- Avoidance: Risks are so significant that there is no measure,
both internally and externally, to reduce the risk to an
acceptable level or involve unreasonably high costs to reduce
the risk to an acceptable level. Therefore, activities giving rise to
risks should be avoided.

The Group has adopted the COSO ERM Framework, the “Top-Down”
approach, in establishing its risk management framework, which
consists of the Board, the Audit Committee, the Risk Management
Taskforce and various departments within the Group.

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. The
Board determines the nature and extent of risks that shall be taken in
achieving the Group’s business objectives. The Board has the overall
responsibility for monitoring the design, implementation and the
overall effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems.

The role of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in overseeing
financial reporting, risk management and internal control systems of
the Group and conduct independent annual reviews on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.

The Risk Management Taskforce, which consists of key management
staff, is to assist the Board and the Audit Committee in overseeing
the risk management and internal control systems and ensures that
sufficient resources are allocated to maintain the adequacy and
effectiveness of such systems within the Group in order to reduce the
risks or potential risks to acceptable levels when achieving the Group’s
objectives.

Each department is responsible for identifying, assessing and
managing risks within its operation, ensuring that appropriate
internal controls for effective risk management are implemented
and any significant internal control deficiency is reported to the Risk
Management Taskforce timely for prompt mitigation action.

At least on an annual basis, the Risk Management Taskforce identifies
risks including environmental, social and governance (“ESG") risks
that would adversely affect the achievement of the Group’s objectives.
The identified risks are then assessed and prioritised according to
a set of standard criteria. For significant risks, mitigation plans are
designed and managed by corresponding risk owners. The report on
risk management and internal control is submitted to the Board and
the Audit Committee annually.
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In addition, internal audit department (“IAD") assists the Board
and the Audit Committee in evaluating the internal controls and
management procedures of the Group. For any deficiencies in the
design and implementation of internal controls, recommendations
for improvement will be made to the management. Significant
deficiencies are reported to the Board and the Audit Committee
on a timely basis ensuring remedial actions are taken promptly.
The IAD submits an annual report with a summary of findings and
recommendations to the Board and the Audit Committee.

Business Ethics

The Group upholds its values of integrity and fosters trust with our
business partners and stakeholders by maintaining good corporate
governance. When it comes to any part of the Group’s operations,
the Company has zero tolerance approach for all kind of bribery,
fraud, and corruption. On top of complying with relevant laws and
regulations, the Group has Code of Conduct and policies for all
employees to carry out their responsibilities honestly and ethically.
Nissin Foods maintains good governance in all facets of its operations,
upholding high standards of ethics, accountability, openness, probity,
and transparency.

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to preventing, detecting, and reporting to
any levels of bribery and corruption. The Board has adopted an anti-
corruption policy of the Company (the “Anti-corruption Policy”) to
provide principles for all directors, officers, and employees at all levels
of the Company, its subsidiaries, and joint ventures or companies in
which the Company holds a controlling interest to follow in order
to conduct business honestly and lower the likelihood of corruption
and bribery. The Group conducts periodic and systematic fraud
risk assessments to mitigate fraud risks identified internally and
externally. The Anti-corruption Policy further stipulates that offering
and accepting of any gift are strictly prohibited since it will affect
employee’s neutrality when conducting business, act against the
interest of Nissin Foods, or raise suspicions of impropriety. Proper
trainings and briefings on bribery, corruption, conflicts of interest,
money laundering, financing of terrorism and non-compliance with
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance will be provided to all employees.

All potential frauds will be investigated by IAD. Relevant advice from
in-house or external legal counsel will be obtained where appropriate.
IAD will report material breaches of this policy to the Board at least
annually. The details to be reported include all material fraud and any
fraud committed by employees which could impact the integrity and
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls system, the number
of fraud cases reported, the nature of important investigations and
the results of these investigations. The Board will be responsible for
monitoring the fraud ultimately.
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Whistleblowing

The Board has adopted a whistleblowing policy of the Company (the
“Whistleblowing Policy”) to provide guidance on the procedure of
reporting allegations of fraud and misconduct by directors, officers
and employees at all levels of the Company and its subsidiaries and
stakeholders. All whistleblowing reports and the identity of the
whistleblower are treated in strict confidence with the procedures
set out in the Whistleblowing Policy. The matter raised may be
investigated internally and referred to the Audit Committee or
management committee, or referred to external lawyers or auditors.

Once the investigation is completed, a report including the impact
of the matter reported and an action plan will be prepared by the
compliance committee of the Group (the “Compliance Committee”)
which is responsible for internal control. The responsible line
management will decide on any necessary disciplinary and other
actions, after that, the Compliance Committee will review and make
a recommendation to the management for a final decision on the
actions required. The whistleblowers will be informed the final results
of the investigation in writing.

Review of the Effectiveness of Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

During the year, the Board performed an annual review on the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems of
the Group based on the requirement of Code Provision D.2 of the
CG Code. The coverage of the review includes but not limited to the
Group's ability to cope with its business transformation and changing
external environment; the scope and quality of management’s review
on risk management and internal control systems; the result of
internal audit work with consideration and management responses
on major findings; the extent and frequency of communication
with the Board regarding the result of the risk and internal control
review; significant failures or weaknesses identified and their related
implications; and the status of compliance with the Listing Rules. The
Board considered the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group are effective and adequate in all material respects.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminating the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. External independent
professional consultants will be engaged if the Board considers it
necessary.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company has in place a formal policy on engaging non-audit
services from its independent auditor to ensure that the independence
and objectivity of the external auditor would not be impaired by its
provision of any non-audit services to the Group.

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was set out as follows:

ZE N =

ARRIEHIEENRE - RIEF L AZBENRHIE
BZRE - UWRRINEZBE TSR /AR KE
REEASFEZREMBELE L ERETEIL -

REBEER - BN EAEE « BERS G160
TZBE#FT

Fee paid/payable

Services rendered PR AR 75 B TR E R
HK$'000

FETT

Audit services ZERTE 5,153
Non-audit services FERZBR TS 3,120
Total 4aEr 8,273

DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Board has implemented procedures and internal control for
handling and dissemination of inside information. The Company has in
place the inside information policy which sets out the guidelines and
procedures for directors and certain employees who, because of their
office or position in the Company may from time to time encounter
inside information (as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")), to ensure that
they understand the principles underlying the obligations in order to
comply with the disclosure requirements so that inside information is
handled with prudence and disseminated to the public in equal and
timely manner. The Group discloses inside information to the public
as soon as reasonably practicable unless the information falls within
any of the safe harbours as provided in the SFO. The Group ensures
the information is kept strictly confidential before the information
is disclosed to the public. If the Group believes that the necessary
degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality
may have been breached, the Group will immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Group is committed to ensuring that
information contained in announcements is not false or misleading,
or false or misleading through omission of a material fact with a view
of presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company’s secretarial functions are outsourced to external
services provider. Mr. Lo Tai On (“Mr. Lo") was appointed as the
Company Secretary in March 2016. Mr. Lo is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, with over 30 years
of experience in the field of company secretarial services. According
to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Lo has taken no less than 15
hours of the relevant professional training during the year ended
31 December 2024.
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Mr. Takeshi Shigemi, director of Nissin Foods (H.K.) Management
Company Limited, who is responsible for overseeing and managing
overall business planning, public relations and administration and
compliance matters of the Company, is the primary contact person of
the Company with Mr. Lo.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established shareholders’” communication policy to
ensure shareholders and the investment community to have equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information and allow
shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner.

Information will be communicated to shareholders mainly through
the Company’s financial reports, annual general meeting and other
general meetings as well as the published disclosures submitted to the
Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s official websites.

The Board and management maintain a continuing dialogue with
the shareholders and other stakeholders through various channels
including but not limited to the Company’s general meetings. The
Company encourages shareholders to attend general meeting which
provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange views with the
Board. During the year, an annual general meeting of the Company
was held on 5 June 2024 to pass resolutions which are significant to
the operations and business of the Company. All the Directors were
present to answer questions from the shareholders. No other general
meeting was held during the year.

To facilitate more timely and effective communication, the Company’s
corporate website (www.nissingroup.com.hk) provides information
and updates on the Company’s business developments and
operations, financial information, corporate governance practices,
sustainability, and other information for public access.

The implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders’
communication policy was reviewed by the Board during the year.
The Board considered the current channels would be sufficient for the
Company to communicate with the shareholders. Thus, the policy was
considered as effective.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 55 of the Articles of Association, the Directors may,
whenever they think fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting,
and extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on such
requisition, or in default, may be convened by such requisitionists,
as provided by the Companies Ordinance. If at any time there are
not within Hong Kong sufficient Directors capable of acting to
form a quorum, any Director or any two or more members of the
Company representing at least 10.0% of the total voting rights of all
members having a right to vote at general meetings, may convene
an extraordinary general meeting in the same manner as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the Directors.
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Pursuant to Section 567 of the Companies Ordinance, the directors
must call a meeting within 21 days after the date on which they
become subject to the requirement under Section 566 of the
Companies Ordinance and such meeting must be held on a date not
more than 28 days after the date of the notice convening the general
meeting.

Putting forward Proposals at a General Meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, shareholders representing not
less than one-fortieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders;
or not less than 50 shareholders holding shares in the Company may
make requisition in writing for proposing resolution or business to be
dealt with at the next general meeting. Shareholders should follow the
requirements and procedures as set out in the Companies Ordinance
for putting forward a proposal at a general meeting.

Voting by Poll
Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll.

Sending Enquiries to the Board by Shareholders
Shareholders are welcome to send their enquiries and concern to the
Board at the Company’s headquarters at 11-13 Dai Shun Street, Tai Po
Industrial Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND CORPORATE COMMUNICATION

The management of the Company is committed to meeting with
shareholders, institutional investors, research analysts and financial
media regularly and providing timely updates on the financial and
business performance and recent development. Investors are welcome
to direct their enquiries to the Company’s Investor Relations Department
at ir@nissinfoods.com.hk. A dedicated Investor Relations section is
also available on the Company’s website (www.nissingroup.com.hk).
Information on the website is updated on a regular basis.

Investors and analysts briefings and one-on-one meetings, telephone
conferences, roadshows, media interviews, marketing activities for
investors and specialist industry forums will be conducted from time
to time in order to facilitate communication between the Company,
shareholders and the investment community. In 2024, the Company
conducted more than 67 meetings (2023: 100 meetings) with over
218 institutional investors (2023: 260 institutional investors) and
research analysts in Hong Kong and elsewhere. During the year, the
Company was covered by 4 investment banks and securities firms
(2023: 6 investment banks and securities firms) to encourage mutual
communication with the investment community.
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Major Investor Relations Events in Financial Year 2024

2024 EEFEREERBEEE

2024 Event
2024 F EE
Q1 CGS-CIMB & CGl 4th Annual China Consumption Virtual

Corporate Day
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Organiser Location
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CGS-CIMB Hong Kong
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Daiwa Hong Kong
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DBS Hong Kong
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o —BEES B
Nomura Hong Kong
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Jefferies Hong Kong
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Daiwa Hong Kong
R HB
DBS Hong Kong
2R B
CGS-CIMB Hong Kong
R —BEES B
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2024 Event Organiser Location
2024 5 EE 2iE o B
SWS Consumption, Manufacturing, Technology Conference SWS Shenzhen
2024
REZRIR20248E - Bl MR ETARZRE REZIR 23
Q4 Daiwa Investment Conference Hong Kong 2024 Daiwa Hong Kong
F£E Daiwa Investment Conference Hong Kong 2024 AFA B

2024 ERFIZ BB EAE OFRYIILL)
2024 ERFIZEREEARE OFRYIILL)

Roadshow China 7th Season NDR (Virtual & Offline)
BEREREREELE (BERET)

2024 EEFBHBER G (HE)
2024 & KA EHERRE (FBIE)
Shareholders are also encouraged to access the corporate

communication posted on the Company’s website for better
understanding of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

The Company has published the Articles of Association on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. During the year,
there was no change in the Company’s constitutional document.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A

Golden Bauhinia & Taikung IR Shenzhen
PREEFSEFARRRTE R

Roadshow China Hong Kong

B R &
Shenzhen
BEBER
=l

Golden Bauhinia & Taikung IR Hong Kong
TREBESSEFARRKRIE BE

ENNSIDIE TS R NI St 3
B ERERATBRARF] o

HBEREH

RRATE R RAR R TS ABERE
A - FA - ARFAEBBEEMI MBS o



DIRECTORS' REPORT E=E 8RS

The Directors present this annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture and sales of
instant noodles and is the vehicle holding interest of its subsidiaries,
whereas the Group is engaged in manufacturing and sales of
noodles, retort foods, frozen foods, beverage products and snacks,
vegetable products, and provision of publicity services in Hong Kong
and China. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year ended 31 December 2024.
Analysis of the principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2024 is set out in Note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 98 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to the
shareholders to be its goal and endeavours to maintain a dividend
policy to achieve such a goal.

The Board has adopted a dividend policy with effect from 1 January
2019, which provides the guiding principles and procedures for
making decisions on dividend payment. In deciding whether to
propose dividends, and in determining the dividend amount, the
Board shall take into account, inter alia: (i) the Group’s unappropriated
profits/ earnings and the impact on the Group’s long-term earning
capacity; (ii) the Group’s results of operations, earnings performance,
cashflows, financial condition, future prospects, statutory and
regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividends; and (iii) any other
factors that the Board considers relevant.

The payment of dividend by the Company is also subject to any
restrictions under the Articles of Association. The dividend policy will
be reviewed periodically and when necessary in light of changes in
circumstances and regulatory requirements. There is no assurance that
a dividend will be proposed or declared in any specific periods.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of 9.63 HK
cents per share and a special dividend of 6.19 HK cents per share
in cash to the shareholders, totalling in 15.82 HK cents per share,
which will not be subject to any withholding tax in Hong Kong.
The proposed final dividend and special dividend are subject to the
approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to be held on 5 June 2025. Upon approval, the proposed
final dividend and special dividend will be distributed on 27 June 2025
to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on 16 June 2025.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Detailed business review of the Group during the year as required
by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, including indication of
likely future developments in the Group’s business and analysis of the
Group’s performance using financial key performance indicators are
set out in the sections headed Chairman’s Statement, Management
Discussion and Analysis and Five-year Financial Summary of this
annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of risks and uncertainties faced by the Group may affect its
performance, business operations or future prospects. Some of these
are inherent to the specific circumstances of the Group, and some are
from external threats or challenges. Significant risks are summarised
below.

(i) Food Safety Risk

The Group’s success depends on its branding and reputation and
consumers’ recognition and trust in its products. Food safety is the
Group’s lifeblood. Food safety incidents may damage its reputation
and cause a loss of consumers’ trust in its products. The profitability
of the Group may be impacted as a result.

As a food manufacturer, the Group places high emphasis on food
safety and quality management to ensure the health and safety of
consumers. Therefore, the food production plants (except ABC Pastry)
of the Group are all certified under FSSC 22000 (an international
standard that incorporates food defence approaches)/ISO 22000 (an
international standard on food safety management). Meanwhile,
ABC Pastry holds SQF certification (a Global Food Safety Initiative
recognised food safety certification). Moreover, all food production
plants are under HACCP management system to identify hazardous
substances and reduce risk on production. These certifications reflect
the Group’s commitment to a high standard of food safety.

The Group has also applied rigorous analysis and inspections on raw
materials and products. Food Safety Institute located in Shanghai,
Mainland China, in which the Group owns a 5% stake, provides
technical support to the Group to perform quality inspections in each
stage of production, from raw materials to final products. The Food
Safety Institute is accredited by the China National Accreditation
Service for Conformity Assessment (“CNAS”) with ISO/IEC 17025.
This shows that the Food Safety Institute’s operating system and
testing capabilities are nationally recognised. To further demonstrate
the professionalism of the Food Safety Institute, it has obtained a
certificate from the China Inspection Body and Laboratory Mandatory
Approval (“CMA"). The CMA Certification proves that the Food Safety
Institute has been recognised by the State.

(ii) Labour Supply Risk

Due to keen competition in the labour markets in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, the ability to retain experienced and competent
production workers is one of the critical success factors for the Group.
Control over the turnover rate will minimise training and recruitment
costs and reduce the impact on business expansion plans.
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Employees are the most valuable assets of the Group. As part of the
measures to mitigate the labour supply risk, the Group will continue
to enhance production automation to improve efficiencies and reduce
reliance on manual labour, as well as continue to improve working
conditions and launch engagement programs to increase employee
loyalty.

(iii) Supply Chain Management Risk
On top of the challenges on the supply chain due to the climate,
geopolitical and macroeconomic issues have created supply issues,
resulting in a sharp increase in commodity prices. These issues posed
further challenges to the Group’s operations.

The Group has been making the greatest efforts to maintain a stable
supply of our products to customers through multiple mitigation
measures.

(iv) Understanding Consumer Needs Risk
Consumers’ needs are ever changing and it is important to understand
the trend.

The Group’s success partly depends on its ability to anticipate, identify
and react to changes in consumers’ tastes, preferences, perceptions,
income, lifestyle and health awareness and promptly offer new
products that appeal to the consumers.

The Group continues to strengthen its communication with consumers
through multi-faceted marketing strategies in order to respond
to their demands, as well as to enhance its brand recognition and
awareness among various customer segments.

(v) Legal and Regulatory Compliance

Given the ever-changing global social and economic environment,
there might be a greater likelihood for the Group to face challenging
changes in governmental policies/regulatory requirements in the
normal course of business.

Environmental Protection related regulations and laws

As the Group’s business is expanding to different regions, there
are different environmental protection related regulations and laws
in respective regions. The Group continues to communicate with
respective government authorities and adjusts the Group’s practices to
ensure regulations compliance.

Trade (and Tariff) Policies

The increasing uncertainty over the political environment and
evolving changes in trade policies may limit the Group’s operational
effectiveness. By engaging external counsels to provide regular
updates, legal guidance and regular staff training, the Group will
continue to ensure all Group practices comply with relevant laws and
regulations.
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(vi) Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG")

As a responsible food manufacturer, the Group’s core mission is to
delight consumers with high-quality food products while driving
sustainable growth and is committed to integrating ESG principles
into its operations, continuously enhancing sustainability performance
while maintaining a strong financial position.

For more details of the Group’s ESG disclosures, please refer to the
ESG Report published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company (www.nissingroup.com.hk).

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

Relationship with Customers and Consumers

Establishing and maintaining strong and stable business relationships
with customers and consumers is a top priority for the Group. It
achieves this through its unwavering commitment to providing safe,
delicious, unigue and trendy products. Moreover, the Group continues
to develop and launch new products to fulfil the demands of different
types of consumers. It also stays connected with customers and
consumers through marketing tools like the Company’s website,
promotions, marketing materials and incentives, and social media to
keep abreast of the changing consumer preferences.

Relationship with Distributors

The Group has developed a strong distribution network, enabling
it to maintain a leading position in the market. To maintain a long-
term and stable business relationship with its distributors, the Group
enters into distribution agreements with its major distributors. The
distributors place purchase orders from time to time that typically set
out the types, prices and quantities of products purchased.

Relationship with Suppliers

Most of the raw materials purchased by the Group are sourced from
independent third-party suppliers, both domestically and overseas. To
avoid relying too heavily on any one supplier, the Group uses different
suppliers for each type of raw material for its operations in Hong
Kong, Mainland China, Vietnam, Korea and Australia. Meanwhile, the
Group obtains certain raw materials, such as a soup base, seasoning
and condiments from Nissin Japan, with the belief that they have
better quality control and that some of the raw materials are unique.
The Group also carefully selects its suppliers by evaluating their overall
track record, financial strengths, reliability, competitiveness, supply
stability, quality control measures, pricing and logistics arrangements
to meet our Group's policies and standards. It also closely
communicates with and monitors its suppliers and requires them to
provide food safety certificates for their supply of raw materials.

Relationship with Employees

Employees are one of the greatest assets of the Group. As at 31
December 2024, the Group has a total of 3,737 employees in
Hong Kong, Mainland China, Vietnam, Korea and Australia. For
sustainable business development, the Group spares no effort in
recruiting talented professionals. It also provides employees with
continuing education and internal and external training programmes
to employees to improve their skills and develop their potential. The
Group believes that the working environment and the support and
benefits provided to the employees have contributed to maintaining
good working relationships.
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In Hong Kong, the Group provides mandatory provident fund
entitlements to its employees. For its companies located in Mainland
China, the Group contributes funds to a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan organised by relevant government authorities
on a monthly basis, based on a certain percentage of employees’
salaries. In Vietnam, the Group joins in the social insurance program
provided by the government for the local employees. In Taiwan, the
Group provides national health insurance and joins the New Labour
Pension System organised by the government for its employees. In
Korea, the Group enrolls in four mandatory social insurance programs
and provides retirement pension to its local employees. In Australia,
the Group provides mandatory superannuation contributions for its
employees.

SIGNIFICANT TREASURY INVESTMENTS

During the year, the Group had no significant investments of individual
fair value of 5% or above of the Group’s total assets.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group's sales to its five
largest customers accounted for 49.7% (2023: 52.6%) of the Group’s
total revenue and the largest customer accounted for 17.0% (2023:
18.4%) of the Group’s total revenue. The Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 21.6% (2023: 22.6%) of the Group’s total purchases
and the largest supplier accounted for 6.0% (2023: 7.6%) of the
Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their respective associates, or any of the
existing shareholders who, to the best knowledge of the Directors
owned 5.0% or more of the issued share capital of the Company, has
a beneficial interest in any of the five largest suppliers or customers of
the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment at
a cost of HK$130.0 million, and property, plant and equipment with
carrying values of HK$35.2 million were disposed.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefit schemes are set out in Note
34 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities for the year ended 31
December 2024.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements.

AEERATBNE TRERHIEARE MR - &
SEURFEANMNARIEAGREETITEN
—ELL BRI ME B BT s AR A ) — TR K2 5T 8
AR - ElE - AEENABFAZES
RHMLREE - £RE  AEBREEBRM
2REEFRBRILMABFRILINE TRASH
o FEFRE - AN B 2B PNIER B REH S
WAHEHMREBRIERS - RN - AEER
HEBRMRTIERIKSHIR -

EXEHHRE

TR ARETEITAENAHEEREANEEE
ERES% FALNERRE -

FEXRPRMER
HE2024F N A3MBLEFE AEBRAER
FrZHERMAEBE B AL9.7% (2023 F :
526%) ' MERARPZHEBEAEERKA
17.0% (20234 : 18.4%) - AEE A KL fER
N E B B 5821.6% (20234 : 22.6%) -
MR EE (R A EEBRERG6.0% (2023 F :
7.6%) °

MEESR  FESAZBBARREZINEAT
MEEARRT B BITIRAS.0% A EZBERK
BRASRETRAAANEERRFT AR HEERSE

N2
ZS o

I

ME - BB R

Py AR EHRA130.0E BB TIRENE
B REE  PHEEAEA35 2 EEETLY
EN TR

AEBFAZMEREMDE  BERREE
FERN R A MIEHMKRMTE 16 -

BiRtER S

AR M ZRIAR NG BB B ARG M B R M
i34

BE - HESBELHES

REZE2024F 12 A3V HIEFE - AR REME
B AR EEBE - HEER AR R IR L

TS -
Bz 7
ARE 2 RA BB R RAN 31 -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 | —ZT = U4 F 3R

69



10

DIRECTORS' REPORT E=5 235

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s distributable reserve at 31 December 2024 amounted
to approximately HK$954.7 million (2023: HK$744.1 million) which
represented retained profits of the Company as at that date.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kiyotaka Ando

Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa

Mr. Shinji Tatsutani

Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada (resigned on 1 July 2024)
Mr. Kiyoshi Matsuura (appointed on 1 July 2024)
Mr. Katsunori Hiroi

Mr. Xi Xiaotong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Masaru Takahashi

Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano

Professor Toshiaki Sakai

Professor Keiko Ito

Pursuant to Article 107 of the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the directors (including the managing
director) or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, the
number which is nearest to and is at least one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation at the annual general meeting. A retiring director
shall be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Shinji Tatsutani,
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano and Professor Toshiaki Sakai will retire
from office as Directors by rotation and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a vacancy or as an addition to the
Board shall hold office only until the forthcoming annual general
meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Mr.
Kiyoshi Matsuura, being new Director appointed on 1 July 2024, will
hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting and being
eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, Independent Non-executive
Directors were appointed for specific term. All Directors are also
subject to the retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles
of Association. None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
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As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of the MN2024F 12 A31H » EFRARQFESTERA
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying BRARRIREEMIEEEE (ERRES KB

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

shares and debentures of the Company or any of the associated EROIBXVEL) 2k - MR REREE T E
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) BQARBESLRBEKAEXVIET RS
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange HAgRAR RERMzER AR (BIERE
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any BH R EGROIZ SRR B IESR BHER 21T
interest or short positions which were taken or deemed to have under =LA R ) « K (b) BIREZES LB KLIE
such provisions of the SFO) or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 FRE AZIEFTIE B e 2 RS AR » 3(0)
352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein, or (c) IRIEARAEST BB A0 AR B I B 22 P 2 4 s Sk
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, =R N

pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

Long position in shares

RBRG2EFR
Number of shares Percentage
Directors Capacity/Nature held/interested of interest
BF 50,/ 144 Fis /PR 80 B EEADL
Kiyotaka Ando Beneficial owner 19,932,480' 1.91%
ZEBIE BHERA
Interest of spouse 1,101,000? 0.11%
fe B e
Toshimichi Fujinawa Beneficial owner 112,800° 0.01%
REABTIR BHERA
Shinji Tatsutani Beneficial owner 99,690° 0.01%
RAER BHERA
Kiyoshi Matsuura* Beneficial owner 1,500 0.00%
IAVED EmEa A
Xi Xiaotong Beneficial owner 5,220 0.00%
i BHEBA
Toshiaki Sakai Beneficial owner 25,000 0.00%

WIFIZ

EmEE A
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Long position in shares of associated corporation

namely BB R MIEHE BH1KE, as a nominee of the respective Director.
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REBSEERD 2 HFR
Directors Associated corporation  Capacity/Nature
= GiE PN E] 1,/ HE
Kiyotaka Ando Nissin Japan Beneficial owner
LB E HEAR E=AA
Toshimichi Fujinawa Nissin Japan Beneficial owner
BRAETE HEAR E=AA
Shinji Tatsutani Nissin Japan Beneficial owner
RAER HEAR E=AA
Kiyoshi Matsuura* Nissin Japan Beneficial owner
HRR A HEAXR E=EAA
Katsunori Hiroi Nissin Japan Beneficial owner
BEH A HEAXR E=AA
Xi Xiaotong Nissin Japan Beneficial owner
EE HEAXR E=AA
Notes: PiE -
1. These shares are held by Mr. Kiyotaka Ando directly in his personal 1.
name.
Mrs. Aina Ando is the spouse of Mr. Kiyotaka Ando. By virtue of the 2.
SFO, Mr. Kiyotaka Ando is deemed to be interested in all the shares in
which Mrs. Aina Ando is interested or deemed to be interested under
the SFO.
These shares are the shares granted by the Company pursuant to the 3.
Share Award Scheme as set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.
Mr. Kiyoshi Matsuura has been appointed as Executive Director with 4.
effect from 1 July 2024.
Among 30,090 shares of Nissin Japan held by Mr. Kiyotaka Ando, 5.
30,000 shares were held directly by him and 90 shares were held by a
director share ownership association, namely B/5& @& B 4% €, as a
nominee of Mr. Kiyotaka Ando.
These shares were held by an employee share ownership association, 6.

Number of shares Percentage

held/interested of interest

i PRI EE ERmEDLL

30,090° 0.01%

4,042° 0.00%

5,929¢ 0.00%

5,184¢ 0.00%

11,206° 0.00%

598°¢ 0.00%
ZEBRMBLHEERASENRBALGREER

5o

Aina Ando X T R &L BEIBE T ENES - BIR
BHREEEG - REEERE T AR AR Ana
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

Purpose

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme” or the “Scheme")
was adopted by the Company on 7 March 2016 (the "Adoption
Date”) and amended on 26 March 2024. The purpose of the Share
Award Scheme is to recognise the contribution of certain selected
employees (including but not limited to directors, executives, officers
and other employees, whether full-time or part-time, of any members
of the Group) and to provide the employees with incentives in order
to retain them for the continual operation and development of the
Group.

Eligible participants

Participants include any employee, including without limitation,
the director (including former director), executive, officer and other
employees, whether full-time or part-time, of any member of the
Group from time to time.

Term

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board
pursuant to the Scheme Rules, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid
and effective from the Adoption Date for a term of 10 years. The
remaining life of Scheme is approximately 11 months as at the date of
this annual report.

Grant and acceptance

Subject to the terms of the Scheme and the Listing Rules, the Board
may, from time to time, grant awards to any eligible participant who
the Board considers to have contributed or will contribute to the
Group.

To satisfy the awards, the Company may transfer to the trustee the
necessary funds and instruct the trustee to acquire shares through on-
market transactions at the prevailing market price.

Vesting

The awarded shares and related income shall be vested in the selected
employee at no cost to such selected employee on the vesting date
subject to the terms of the Scheme and the following conditions:

(@  fulfilment of such vesting conditions (if any) as specified by the
Board in the offer letter issued by the Company to the selected
employee up to the reasonable satisfaction of the Board;

(b)  the selected employee remaining under the employment of
any member of the Group up to and including the vesting date
and no notice of termination of employment of such selected
employee is subsisting as at such date; and

() the execution by the selected employee of the relevant
documents to effect the transfer of the awarded shares and the
related income from the trustee to the selected employee within
the stipulated period.
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Maximum number of shares to be awarded

The Board shall not make any further award in any given financial year
which will result in the total number of the awarded shares awarded
and approved by the Board, without taking into account the awarded
shares that are rejected by a selected employee or which have lapsed,
under the Scheme, to be in excess of 5% of the number of all issued
shares of the Company as at the Adoption Date or Listing Date or
the beginning of such financial year of the Company, whichever is
the highest. As at the date of this report, the total number of shares
available for issue in respect of awards which may be granted under
the Scheme is zero.

The maximum number of shares which may be awarded to a selected
employee under the Scheme shall not exceed 1% per cent of the
number of all issued shares of the Company as at the Adoption Date
or Listing Date or the beginning of the financial year of the Company,
whichever is the highest, when the relevant award is made.

Amount payable on acceptance of the award
Nil consideration is required to be paid by the eligible participants for
the grant of awards under the Share Award Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, a total of 391,700 shares,
representing 0.038% of the Company’s total number of issued shares
as at 1 January 2024, were awarded to selected employees (including
the Executive Directors) pursuant to the Share Award Scheme.

Details of movement of shares awarded during the year are as follows:

AR RO BE LR

i E E NI EMRFEEE - SR HERR
B MG EHMEES N %A 8T TR LAt/EN
REROEH (THRZTEETEEERED
ERNOZRRMNIEREHERBERN) BBAR
BIERAN A Bk BT A IS AR R Rl R IR E A HA
ZEHEBITRM Z5% CARSERE) - AIT
/R - RARE A REZABARE 28
B A BT ZRDEBST -

REZE A - BKETREEBNZS BN
2B NHEBRER LS NSRBI RA B #sk £
mHMR AR R RFEEH2 M BTN
(&= ERE) 21% °

B RBASZIHRIE
AEBDHEEEZ MR EE T H LA
B ASRAE -
REE2024F 12 A31 BIEFE - IREBERDER
FTE] - £4£391,700 8 H (FHEREZ2024F
1ATEHARRBEBITRMHAE 20.038%) B
FRIETFRE (BIERTES) -

FARDBROHESFBOT

NumbeL of awarded shares

RERHEE
Vesting Outstanding as at Granted during Vested during  Cancelled/lapsed  Outstanding as at
Grantees Date of grant date 1 Jan 2024 the year the year during the year 31 Dec 2024
R 20245 20245
~ - 1818 : ) ) 124318
B REAH SERH HATTHE ERRL ERNEE  FNIUE/RH HATE
Executive Directors
HITEE
Kiyotaka Ando 14/5/2024 14/5/2024 - 155,430 (155,430) - -
LR
Ioshimi\chi Fujinawa 14/5/2024 14/5/2024 - 16,960 (16,960) - -
REBTE
Shinji Tatsutani 14/5/2024 14/5/2024 - 12,420 (12,420) - -
RAER
Yasuhirg\Yamada 14/5/2024 14/5/2024 - 14,640 (14,640) - -
I}
Kinghi Matsuura 11/6/2024 11/6/2024 - 1,500 (1,500) - -
B2
Kazuo Kawasaka 14/5/2024 14/5/2024 - 16,150 (16,150) - -
llPeinea
1%mgloyees 11/6/2024 11/6/2024 - 174,600 (174,600) - -
g
Total #5t 391,700 (391,700) - -
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Notes:

.

The closing price of the shares immediately before the date the award
shares were granted on 14 May 2024 and 11 June 2024 was HK$5.2 per
Share and HK$4.94 per Share, respectively.

The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the
vesting date was HK$5.08 per Share.

The award shares were awarded and vested to grantees at no
consideration and without any performance target.

The estimated fair values of the award shares granted on 14 May 2024
and 11 June 2024 were approximately HK$1,158,000 and HK$835,000
respectively. The fair value of the award Shares granted is measured with
reference to the closing price of the shares at the grant date.

The accounting standard and policy adopted in relation to share-based
payments are as follows:

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of equity-settled share-based payments determined at
the grant date without taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share award reserve). At
the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of
all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of
the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share award reserve. For the share awards that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share awards
granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When shares awards are vested, the amount previously recognised in
share award reserve and the amount accumulated in shares held for
share award scheme will be transferred to retained profits.

In respect of the Share Award Scheme, the number of share awards
available for grant under the Scheme was 52,015,124 Shares as at 1
January 2024 and 51,623,424 Shares as at 31 December 2024. No
service provider sublimit was set under the Share Award Shame.

The number of shares that may be issued in respect of award shares
granted under the Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2024
divided by the weighted average number of the Shares in issue for the
year ended 31 December 2024 is nil as the award shares are satisfied by
on-market purchase of existing shares.

Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada has resigned as Executive Director with effect from
1 July 2024.

Mr. Kiyoshi Matsurra has been appointed as Executive Director with
effect from 1 July 2024.

Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka was former Executive Director.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any

other

body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None

of the Directors and their respective associates (as defined in the

Listing Rules) have any competing interests directly or indirectly with
the business of the Group which require to be disclosed as defined in
the Listing Rules during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL AND OTHERS SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2024, so far as known to any Directors, the
following person (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares which fell to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in shares

R 2R
Shareholders Capacity/Nature
AR ER Hin,/ME
Nissin Japan Beneficial owner
HEAXR E=EAA
China Orient Asset Management Interest of controlled

(International) Holding Limited corporations

HFERFEEEE AR s

(EIRR) 1ERBR AR
* These interests represented:

(i) 56,480,000 shares were held directly by China Orient Multi-Strategy
Master Fund. China Orient Multi-Strategy Master Fund was 100%
controlled by China Orient Multi-Strategy Fund and the latter itself was
99.47% controlled by China Orient International Fund Management
Limited (“China Orient International”). China Orient International was
100% controlled by China Orient Asset Management (International)
Holding Limited (“China Orient Asset Management”). Accordingly, as
at 31 December 2024, China Orient Asset Management, China Orient
International and China Orient Multi-Strategy Fund were all deemed to
be interested in the same batch of 56,480,000 shares held directly by
China Orient Multi-Strategy Master Fund; and

(i) 46,860,000 shares were held directly by China Orient Enhanced Income
Fund which was 100% controlled by China Orient International. China
Orient International was 100% controlled by China Orient Asset
Management. Accordingly, as at 31 December 2024, China Orient Asset
Management and China Orient International were both deemed to be
interested in the same batch of 46,860,000 shares held directly by China
Orient Enhanced Income Fund.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A

FERHEMBEEREEPZESR
202412 A31H » MEAMESFHA - THA
T (WFEBZFRARAZSITHRAL) REH R
FERARR (D P HEE EIRIEEH M EIEHIZE XV 385

2R3

72 BRI A AR A B BB A PR FR e R R sOR

B HBTARRBREES MHE KPS 336
EREZECMOERIXR

(ii)

Number of shares Percentage

held/interested of interest

B P R{h & 8 @ADL

752,024,000 72.05%

103,340,000* 9.90%
*HERERTE

56,480,000 % f% 17 J3 B China Orient Multi-
Strategy Master Fund & # #5 A ° China Orient
Multi-Strategy Master Fund 88 China Orient Multi-
Strategy Fundi% i 100% : mi{&% 7~ & Allf China
Orient International Fund Management Limited
([ China Orient International |) %% 99.47% -
China Orient International f3 F7 Bl 3 75 & &= & 12
(B ZERARAR ([PERSEEER]) &
#1100% © Fit - 20246124318 FER
J5BEEE « China Orient International & China
Orient Multi-Strategy Fund¥J # 2 % # China
Orient Multi-Strategy Master Fund Fff & 5 8 #9
[ —#t 56,480,000 BRI AR + &

46,860,000 fix A% 7 75 1 China Orient Enhanced
Income Fund E##54 - 1 China Orient Enhanced
Income Fund 8/ China Orient International 122
100% ° China Orient International fi B8 5 &
FEETEEEH]100% o Fitt - 7202451284318 -
B 3R 5 & & & 32 N China Orient International
B8 A China Orient Enhanced Income Fund
B B #4578 B9 E — 11t 46,860,000 B AR ) b A 4

25 o
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries
in Hong Kong, the PRC and other regions (which include in Australia,
Korea, Vietnam and Taiwan) while the Shares itself are listed on the
Stock Exchange. The Group’s operations are regulated by Hong Kong,
the PRC and other regions (as defined above) laws. During the year
ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this annual report,
the Company has complied with the relevant laws and regulations
that have significant impact in Hong Kong, the PRC and other
regions (as defined above). In particular, as a food and beverage
manufacturer, the Group’s operations are regulated by the food safety
and environmental protection laws and regulations in Hong Kong, the
PRC and other regions. During the year under review, the Group did
not have any materia non-compliance with such laws and regulations.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save for the Share Award Scheme disclosed in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreement (as
defined in section 6 of the Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation
(Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)) was entered into during
the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

NON-COMPETITION CONFIRMATION

Nissin Japan (the controlling shareholder of the Company) has entered
into a deed of non-competition in favour of the Company dated
21 November 2017 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) pursuant to
Nissin Japan irrevocably undertaken, among other matters, not to,
directly or indirectly sell any of its instant noodles, frozen foods,
snack and confectionery products to Hong Kong, Mainland China,
Macau and Taiwan (i.e. the HK Group Territory) which would or may
compete with the business of the Group. Details of the Deed of Non-
Competition have been set out in the section headed “Relationship
with our Controlling Shareholder” in the Prospectus of the
Company dated 29 November 2017. The Company has received the
confirmation from Nissin Japan in respect of their compliance with the
terms of the Deed of Non-Competition.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of this annual report, (i) no contract of significance was
entered into by, and/or subsisted between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries with the controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
during the year; and (ii) there is no contract of significance in relation
to provision of services by the controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries to the Group.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year under review.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The following Directors have served on the Board of subsidiaries of
the Company as at 31 December 2024:

EENRS THBEHNZER

PN 4R A0 S0 B R T O FE B D+
AMEFEARAREMBR TS RAR ALY
ZEARS  BHRANPEEREEEEA
EPN R

B RRES

LATNESZR2024F12 A31 BETAQTHER
RIES :

Subsidiaries Place of Incorporation and Operation
i PN SRR L SR AR 4 i [ Directors 5=
Nissin Foods (H.K.) Company Limited Hong Kong Kiyotaka Ando RHEBE
BERM (B%) BRAA =& Akifumi Aiba BEYX
Shintaro Fujii BEHEARRD
Ryosuke Hayashi MOZ B
Nissin Foods (H.K.) Management Hong Kong Kiyotaka Ando RHEBE
Company Limited B Toshimichi Fujinawa 3 palbii
HERMm (B8%5) EEERAH Shinji Tatsutani RAER
Takeshi Shigemi ZERES
Kiyoshi Matsuura MR
Hirofumi Inoue HEEX
Hiromichi Kimura RN HRIE
Tse Chi Ping, Roy WEFE
Winner Food Products Limited Hong Kong Tatsuya Sakai WHED
KERMABRAT a5 Kiyotaka Ando TiEERE
Shinji Tatsutani RAEER
Kiyoshi Matsuura MR
Hijiri Fukuoka fa w2
Toshimichi Fujinawa i 3-plyiiil
MC Marketing & Sales (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Kiyotaka Ando ZHEBE
Limited Bk Masamune Komori NRBUR
BEAERERRAT Shinji Tatsutani REER
Yutaka Komori INERAR
Wang Yu &
Wataru Mori FN73
Hong Kong Eastpeak Limited Hong Kong Kiyotaka Ando RhEBRE
BEARIEERAA BE Katsunori Hiroi 5 Al
Hiromichi Kimura AIHhE

78 NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A



Subsidiaries

LRI=PNE]

Ming Fong Packaging & Chemicals Limited

RERKtIARAR

ValleyFarm Holdings Limited
HBRAEBRERAF

Nissin Koikeya Foods (China&HK)
Co., Limited
(“Nissin Koikeya Foods")*

RIEMBE (FE « &) BRAR

(TREHLERmM])Y

Kagome Nissin Foods (H.K.) Co.,
Limited
AIREHBRM (BE) ARAA

Taiwan Nissin Foods Co., Ltd.
AEEFRGRHERAR

Gaemi Food Co. Ltd.

ABC Pastry Holdings Pty Ltd

Nissin Foods Vietnam Co., Ltd.
HBRmEEAERAR*

Place of Incorporation and Operation
FEAT B AL J 45 i i [

Hong Kong
e

Hong Kong
e

Hong Kong
e

Hong Kong
e

Taiwan

A
7=

Korea
LtE

Australia
BN

Vietnam

R

Directors =
Norito Yonezawa KEEA
Shinji Tatsutani RAER
Kiyoshi Matsuura NEDA
Yasuhiro Yamada LI R ASHS
Toshimichi Fujinawa REAETE
Takeshi Kikunaga oK
Kozo Nagura HRHhE
Kiyotaka Ando B E
Takashi Koike N
Naomichi Fujimaki BsiEE
Akifumi Aiba BEZX
Hiromichi Kimura ANFHRE
Ryosuke Hayashi Uz
Kiyotaka Ando B E
Akifumi Aiba BEZX
Toshimichi Fujinawa EAETE
Ryosuke Hayashi Mo
Hiromichi Kimura ANFHRE
Keiichi Inagaki EEE—
Norio lzutsu HEHE
Hiroshi Shimotsuma TEF
Kiyotaka Ando B E
Takeshi Kikunaga Bk
Takayuki Yagi SRZEE
Kiyotaka Ando 5 E
Sangeun Lee Sangeun Lee
Hiromichi Kimura AFHRE
Akifumi Aiba BEZX
Lau Wing Leung Max Bk e
Kiyotaka Ando B E
Takeshi Kikunaga oK
Takayuki Yagi NRE=
Hirofumi Inoue FEEX
Hiromichi Kimura AFHRE
So Wai Wa Suwa BRIEEE
Junko Katsuta s H B
Kiyotaka Ando 5 E
Akifumi Aiba BEZX
Hijiri Fukuoka R
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Subsidiaries

LR)==N

Nissin Foods (China) Holding Co.,
Limited*
HERm (hE) REFRAQF

Zhuhai Golden Coast Winner Food
Products Limited*
HEMeEEXKERMARAT

Guangdong Shunde Nissin Foods
Co. Ltd.*
ERIEERBERDRAERAT

Dongguan Nissin Packaging Co. Ltd.*
ZHEBREERAT

Zhuhai Nissin Packaging Company
Limited*
WEREBEERQA

Fujian Nissin Foods Co. Ltd.*
BERABFRMERAA

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | H

Place of Incorporation and Operation

AR SZ R A8 4 3t [

Mainland China
I

Mainland China
R A

Mainland China

T A

Mainland China
AR A

Mainland China
R A

Mainland China
FR A3

BEMABRRA A

Directors

Kiyotaka Ando
Katsunori Hiroi
Shinji Tatsutani
Xi Xiaotong
Keiji lwakiri
Yutaka Komori
Hijiri Fukuoka
Zhao Xiongda
Gu Chunlei

Kiyotaka Ando
Hijiri Fukuoka

Shinji Tatsutani
Norito Yonezawa
Shogo Yonemitsu
Kiyoshi Matsuura
Toshimichi Fujinawa

Kiyotaka Ando
Kiyoshi Matsuura
Takayuki Yagi
Masashi Imazu

Kiyoshi Matsuura
Toshiaki Miyagawa
Kiyotaka Ando
Norito Yonezawa

Toshimichi Fujinawa
Kiyotaka Ando
Kiyoshi Matsuura
Norito Yonezawa
Atsushi Matsuura

Kiyotaka Ando

Fung Kam Shing Barry

Shinji Tatsutani
Kiyoshi Matsuura

=

ZHEERE
EHrehl
RAER
ZBEY
E=17)] S
INFRAB
BmE
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Subsidiaries Place of Incorporation and Operation

IpES NG EERl D AVANE S ] Directors 5%

Zhejiang Nissin Foods Company Mainland China Kiyotaka Ando ZHEEE

Limited* B A Tetsuo Hanazono TERE X

AL RERMAERAT Kiyoshi Matsuura LAV DA
Shinji Tatsutani [RAEER
Katsunori Hiroi EH A

Shanghai Eastpeak Trading Co. Ltd.* Mainland China Yutaka Komori NERFE

EERIEZESHERAT] AR Kiyotaka Ando TREERE
Katsunori Hiroi EH A
Hiromichi Kimura ANFHRE
Masamune Komori NRBUR

* For identification purpose only
# Formerly known as: Nissin Demae Iccho Co., Ltd.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every director shall be entitled
to the indemnity out of the assets of the Company against any liability
incurred by him/her in relation to the Company in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, to the extent permitted by the
Companies Ordinance. Such permitted indemnity provision was in
force during the year ended 31 December 2024 and remains in force
at the date of this annual report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The directors’ remuneration policy of the Company is decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
performance, qualification and experience of directors concerned and
prevailing market practices.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, the Board confirms that at the
date of this annual report, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float as required under the Listing Rules.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group did not make
any charitable or other donation.

* {5
*RIRE : RBHAT— T RO BRAR

e 2 TR X
RIEASERMANLERBEOEFZBRT -
BRESHEERE S RARR 2 AR ELHA
EFDETHHMBRZENEE  RARRE
ETESHE - BRBETZREKRIERER
2024F 12 A3 BIEFEAR - WHRAF I A E
—EAR -

i B LR

ARRIEFHHBRAFTHEZESEBIIAQF]
ZERE - EFENERE RERMRITHIHEH TR
= .

S AR E

RBRRBES 2 ARERARRESRIRA
EXOHR RAFRAY  ARRGERFLETR
AREZ RAARRFFE -

2 joEh
3‘:-?*5 B 7A

HZE2024F 12 A31HIEFE - AEBEWEEDL
FRZEZ R EMBR
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ESG

The Group has policies to promote environmental protection. In
order to reduce environmental impacts at every stage of its business
activities, the Group adopts a wide range of policies to control
pollutant emissions, encourage recycling of office supplies, use water
saving facilities, and ensure compliance with environmental laws and
regulations both in Hong Kong and the Mainland China.

The ESG Report covering the same period is available together with
this annual report on the websites of both the Company (www.
nissingroup.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 11 November 2024, the Company and Nissin Asia entered into the
subscription and joint venture agreement in relation to, among others,
the formation of the joint venture company (“JV Company”), whereby
the JV Company will be owned as to 51% by the Company and 49%
by Nissin Asia, in New South Wales, Australia. The JV Company will
become a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, the results
of which will be consolidated into the financial statements of the
Group.

The Company will contribute AUD1,020,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$5,232,600) in cash to the share capital of the
JV Company, which will be financed by the internal resources of
the Group. The amount of the initial capital contribution to the JV
Company was determined after arm’s length negotiations among
the parties with reference to the JV Company’s capital requirements
for its expected business development and in accordance with their
respective shareholding proportion and shall be paid in cash.

Nissin Japan holds approximately 72.05% of the total issued Shares
and is therefore the Controlling Shareholder and a connected person
of the Company. Nissin Asia is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nissin
Japan. Therefore, Nissin Asia is a connected person of the Company
by virtue of it being an associate of Nissin Japan.

The Company believes that this growth trend of instant noodle market
will continue going forward because of the increasing population
in, and particularly the rising Asian migration to, Australia and New
Zealand, which present ample opportunities for expansion of instant
noodle markets in both countries. By establishing a local presence,
the Company can enhance its marketing activities in both markets,
strengthen its sales and distribution network and maintain a greater
control over retail sales and inventory levels of the Group’s products.
The Board is of the view that the establishment of JV Company will
broaden the income base of the Group over time and foster long-
term growth for both the Company and the Shareholders. For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 11
November 2024.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company has entered into the following
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the

FHEMER S

Listing Rules required to be disclosed in this annual report.

Transaction Agreements

Rk

Technology and
Trademark Licencing
Agreement (ete )

&W&ﬁ%%ﬂ%%

(M1

Snacks Supply
Agreement ®te2)

TAYEIGH

Snacks and
Confectionery

Purchase Agreement
(Note 3)

TREAETREWHS

(M3E3)

Connected parties involved

WRZEER

Nissin Japan

HEER

Nissin Koikeya Foods

REMEERR

Nissin Koikeya Foods

REMEERR

FA - ARBEFZATERAERFE ZHE
ERD (ERRLTMARIE14AF) -

Transaction
Nature of Relationship Annual caps amount in 2024
120245
BERLE FELR AT Kox
HK$million HK$million
BEBT BEAT
Controlling Shareholder 37.0 173
ERRER
Non-wholly owned subsidiary 51.0 19.9
owned as to 34.0% by Koike-
Ya, Inc. which is in turn owned
as to approximately 45.12% by
Controlling Shareholder
HIHE (mERRREEL
45.12% 1) HE34.0%
e = N
Non-wholly owned subsidiary 107.0 34.8
owned as to 34.0% by Koike-
Ya, Inc. which is in turn owned
as to approximately 45.12% by
Controlling Shareholder
HIHE (mERRREEL
45.12% 1) BB 34.0%
e = NG|
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Transaction Agreements
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Products Procurement
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Vietnam Master Supply
Agreement (te?

Bt ERE e

Vietnam Master
Procurement
Agreement (ot 10
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Connected parties involved
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Food Safety Institute
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Notes:

The Company entered into the Technology and Trademark Licencing
Agreement with Nissin Japan on 21 November 2017, pursuant to which
Nissin Japan granted:

(i) a non-exclusive licence to the Group to use certain technology
and trademarks (the “Nissin Trademarks and Technology”) in our
business in Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China, Taiwan (i.e. the
HK Group Territory) and export of its products bearing and/or
using the Nissin Trademarks and Technology; and

(ii) a non-exclusive licence to the Group to use certain trademarks (the
“Nissin Koikeya Trademarks”) in distribution of products bearing
the Nissin Koikeya Trademarks in the HK Group Territory.

The term of the Technology and Trademark Licencing Agreement is three
years commencing from the Listing Date and shall be automatically
renewable for further terms of three years upon expiry subject to
the applicable requirements under the Listing Rules unless and until
terminated upon the breach of any undertakings in any material respect
by the Group or otherwise mutually terminated by the parties in writing
at least 90 days in advance.

On 13 December 2022, the Company has renewed the Technology
and Trademark Licencing Agreement for a further term of three years
commencing from 11 December 2023. For details of the transaction,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 13 December
2022.

On 21 November 2017, the Company has entered into a snacks supply
agreement (the “Snacks Supply Agreement”) with Nissin Koikeya
Foods, the connected subsidiary, pursuant to which the Company has
agreed to supply potato chips products to Nissin Koikeya Foods for its
onward sales. The term of the Snacks Supply Agreement is three years
commencing from 1 January 2017 and is renewable upon expiry for
further terms of three years subject to applicable requirements under the
Listing Rules unless otherwise agreed by the parties. The Snacks Supply
Agreement does not contain any provision which allows either the
Company or Nissin Koikeya Foods to terminate the agreement during its
term. The Directors consider that it would be more cost-efficient in the
long run to produce the potato chips products on its own and it would
ensure a more stable supply of quality products.

On 13 December 2022, the Company has renewed the Snacks Supply
Agreement for a further term of three years commencing from 1 January
2023. For details of the transaction, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 13 December 2022.
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Nissin Foods HK has entered into an agreement (the “Snacks and
Confectionery Purchase Agreement”) with Nissin Koikeya Foods on
21 November 2017 to govern the sales and purchase of snacks and
confectionery. The term of the Snacks and Confectionery Purchase
Agreement is three years from 1 January 2017 and is renewable upon
expiry for further terms of three years subject to applicable requirements
under the Listing Rules unless otherwise agreed by the parties. The
Snacks and Confectionery Purchase Agreement does not contain any
provision which allows either Nissin Foods HK or Nissin Koikeya Foods to
terminate the agreement during its term. The transactions contemplated
under the Snacks and Confectionery Purchase Agreement are intra-group
connected transactions. Before the incorporation of Nissin Foods HK
in August 2015, the Company has been performing the sales function
within the Group and it has a long term and direct business relationship
with its distributors in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China. After
the incorporation of Nissin Foods HK, it has taken up the sales function
within the Group.

On 13 December 2022, the Company renewed the Snacks and
Confectionary Purchase Agreement for a further term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2023. For details of the transaction, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 13 December 2022.

The Company has entered into an agreement (the “Master Raw
Materials and Products Procurement Agreement”) with Nissin Japan on
21 November 2017. The term of the Master Raw Materials and Products
Procurement Agreement is three years commencing from 1 January
2017 and is renewable upon expiry for further terms of three years
subject to the applicable requirements under the Listing Rules unless
otherwise agreed by the parties. The Master Raw Materials and Products
Procurement Agreement does not contain any provision which allows
either the Company or Nissin Japan to terminate the agreement during
its term. The raw materials supplied under the Master Raw Materials
and Products Procurement Agreement include seasoning, oil, addictive,
flour, milk etc. The Company mainly sources such raw materials through
the Nissin Japan Group in order to gain access to the suppliers in Japan
more efficiently and to benefit from the lower procurement cost when
purchases are made together with the Nissin Japan Group at a larger
volume. While the Company is able to source the raw materials from
Independent Third Parties in Japan or elsewhere, and believes it would
not be as cost-efficient when compared to the current arrangement to
procure through the Nissin Japan Group. The finished goods purchased
under the Master Raw Materials and Products Procurement Agreement
mainly include Japanese noodles products as well as confectionery
products. The Company considers that it is beneficial to the Group as a
whole to purchase the finished goods from the Nissin Japan Group for its
onward sale to distributors in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and Mainland
China whom it has built a long term relationship with.
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On 9 June 2023, the Group adjusted the annual caps for 2023, 2024
and 2025 from HK$186.0 million, HK$190.0 million and HK$193.0
million to HK$228.0 million, HK$289.0 million and HK$354.0 million,
respectively, in view of the revised purchase forecast. For details of the
transaction, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
13 December 2022 and 27 March 2023 and the circular of the Company
dated 26 April 2023.

On 21 November 2017, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “Master Raw Materials and Products Sale Agreement”)
with Nissin Japan to govern the supply of raw materials and finished
goods by the Group to the Nissin Japan Group. The raw materials
supplied by the Group to the Nissin Japan Group include seasoning
powder and packaging materials and the finished goods supplied by
the Group to the Nissin Japan Group include instant noodles and potato
chips products. The term of the Master Raw Materials and Products
Sale Agreement is three years commencing from 1 January 2017 and
is renewable upon expiry for further terms of three years subject to the
applicable requirements under the Listing Rules unless otherwise agreed
by the parties. The Master Raw Materials and Products Sale Agreement
does not contain any provision which allows either the Company or
Nissin Japan to terminate the agreement during its term. For the sale
of raw materials, the Group can enjoy a lower purchasing cost by way
of bulk purchases and the resale to the Nissin Japan Group would
enhance better use of the raw materials. For the sale of finished goods,
the Company considers that the sale is conducted in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group and the terms of sale to the Nissin
Japan Group are similar to those that entered into with other distributors
who are Independent Third Parties.

On 9 June 2023, the Group adjusted the annual caps for 2023, 2024
and 2025 from HK$184.0 million, HK$188.0 million and HK$192.0
million to HK$266.0 million, HK$342.0 million and HK$405.0 million,
respectively, in view of the revised sales forecast. For details of the
transaction, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
13 December 2022 and 27 March 2023 and the circular of the Company
dated 26 April 2023.

To govern the provision of food safety tests by the Food Safety Institute
to the Group, the Company has entered into a master quality control
support service agreement (the “Master Quality Control Support Service
Agreement”) on 21 November 2017 with the Food Safety Institute.
While it can engage other Independent Third Parties to conduct the
food safety tests, the Company believes that it is more cost-efficient to
engage the Food Safety Institute to provide such services as it has good
experience in the food safety of instant foods products and it provides
quality services. Also, it can provide the service at a more favourable
rate than other Independent Third Parties providing similar services. The
term of the Master Quality Control Support Service Agreement is three
years commencing from 1 January 2017 and is renewable upon expiry
for further terms of three years subject to the applicable requirements
under the Listing Rules unless otherwise agreed by the parties. The
Master Quality Control Support Service Agreement does not contain any
provision which allows either the Company or the Food Safety Institute
to terminate the agreement during its term.
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On 13 December 2022, the Company renewed the Master Quality
Control Support Service Agreement for a further term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2023. For details of the transaction, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 13 December 2022.

The Company has entered into an agreement (the “Research Service
Master Agreement”) with Nissin Japan on 19 March 2020. Pursuant
to the terms of the Research Service Master Agreement, the Group
shall provide research services to Nissin Japan which include, but not
limited to, researching raw materials, facilities and suppliers in the PRC
to enhance the research and development capability of Nissin Japan.
The Company believes that the entering of the agreement will enable
the Group to better utilize its existing business resources to expand its
source of income. Further, the provision of the research services will
enhance the overall research and development capability of Nissin Japan,
which may in turn benefit the Group as the Group is able to leverage on
Nissin Japan’s research and development advancement. The term of the
Research Service Master Agreement is for three years commenced from
the 1 April 2020 and shall be automatically renewed on the same terms
and conditions for further terms of three years upon its expiry subject to
compliance with applicable requirements under the Listing Rules unless
otherwise agreed between the parties.

On 13 December 2022, the Company renewed the Research Service
Master Agreement for a further term of three years commencing
from 1 April 2023. For details of the transaction, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 13 December 2022.

On 7 November 2019, the Company and Koike-Ya Inc. entered into a
master procurement agreement (the “Koike-Ya Master Procurement
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company has agreed to purchase
from Koike-Ya Inc. the procurement products, which comprise snack
foods under the brand of “KOIKEYA"” and other products, which include
potato chips, potato sticks and corn snacks. The term of the Koike-Ya
Master Procurement Agreement was three years commencing from 1
November 2019, renewable upon expiry for further three years, subject
to compliance with applicable requirements under the Listing Rules
unless otherwise agreed between the parties. The Koike-Ya Master
Procurement Agreement was renewed on 31 October 2022 for a further
term of three years commencing from 1 November 2022. Sourcing of
such diversified products can expand the portfolio of the products that
the Group can offer to its customers through its own well-established
distribution and sale channels already spread over Hong Kong and
Mainland China which will in turn enhance the overall income and
profitability of the Group. Hence, it is believed that the transactions
contemplated under this agreement are beneficial to the business
growth and development of the Company as a whole.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A
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9. On 29 June 2023, the Company entered into a master supply agreement
(the “Vietnam Master Supply Agreement”) with Nissin Vietnam,
pursuant to which the Group has agreed to sell the supply products
to Nissin Vietnam, which include granola and snacks. The term of
the Vietnam Master Procurement Agreement is from 1 July 2023 to
31 December 2025, renewable upon expiry for further three years,
subject to compliance with applicable requirements under the Listing
Rules unless otherwise agreed between the parties. In anticipation of
the expected increase in demand in the granola markets in Vietnam,
the Company believes that the sales and distribution network of Nissin
Vietnam provide an effective sale channel for the products of the Group
and the transactions contemplated under this agreement are beneficial
to the business growth and development of the Group as a whole.

10.  On 29 June 2023, the Company entered into a master procurement
agreement (the “Vietnam Master Procurement Agreement”) with Nissin
Vietnam, pursuant to which the Company has agreed to purchase from
Nissin Vietnam the procurement products, which include instant noodles
and other food products. The term of the Vietnam Master Procurement
Agreement is from 1 July 2023 to 31 December 2025, renewable upon
expiry for further three years, subject to compliance with applicable
requirements under the Listing Rules unless otherwise agreed between
the parties. The Board considers that it is beneficial to the Company
as a whole to purchase such finished goods from Nissin Vietnam for
its onward sales to distributors in Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan at a
more competitive price, which in turn is expected to enhance the overall
income and profitability of the Company. Hence, it is believed that the
transactions contemplated under this agreement are beneficial to the
business growth and development of the Company as a whole.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) have reviewed the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions of the Group and confirmed that
each of the transactions has been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) and was conducted on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) and in accordance with the relevant agreement governing the
transactions on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has been engaged to report on the
Group's continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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The auditor of the Company has reviewed and issued an unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above in accordance with
rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, and confirmed to the Board that
nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe that the
above continuing connected transactions:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group if the transactions involve the provision of
goods or services by the Group;

(iii)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(iv)  have exceeded the caps previously disclosed in the announcement.

The Company confirms that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of the connected transactions set out above.

The Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors) have
reviewed and confirmed that, except for the continuing connected
transactions as stated in the prior paragraphs, all other continuing
connected transactions entered by the Group are exempted under
Rule 14A.73 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, such transactions
are exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the other related party transactions as
disclosed in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements do not
constitute connected transactions required to be disclosed under the
Listing Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was appointed as independent auditor for
the year ended 31 December 2024. A resolution will be proposed to
the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as independent auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Kiyotaka Ando
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2025
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To the Members of Nissin Foods Company Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Deloitte

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nissin Foods
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 98 to 215, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. The matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on this matter.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

Revenue recognition from sales of goods

We identified revenue
recognition from sales of
goods as a key audit matter
due to its significance to
the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The
Group's revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2024,
in respect of sales of goods,
amounted to approximately
HK$3,804,858,000.

As disclosed in note 5 to
the consolidated financial
statements, revenue from
the sales of goods (including
noodles, retort foods, frozen
foods, beverage products,
snacks and vegetable
products) is recognised
when control of the goods
has transferred. We focused
on this area because the
Group transacts with a
large number of customers
spreading over different
locations in Hong Kong and
other regions, and Mainland
China.

Our procedures in relation to revenue
recognition from sales of goods
included:

e Obtaining an understanding of
the revenue recognition processes
and testing the Group’s relevant
controls over revenue recognition,
on a sample basis;

e Reviewing sales contracts with
key customers, on a sample
basis, to understand the agreed
trade terms and assess whether
the related revenue was properly
recognised in accordance
with respective sales contracts
and with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

e Confirming the amounts of total
sales of goods for the year with
selected customers, on a sample
basis; and

e Testing recorded sales transactions,
on a sample basis, against
corresponding goods delivery
notes, shipping documents and/
or acceptance confirmations
from customers to evidence that
control of the goods have been
transferred.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used .

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the .

going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the .

consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient °

appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business units within the group as a basis for
forming an opinion on the group financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit
work performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, BREMEZIEIN - RMSIREBR T T EIHE
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit ®E - FETH  EATNERS  2ERMAT
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in TR HEAI A BB B (E A ARG -

internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matter. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Tan Wei Ming.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
inoRRRHMPEIAZ

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 4F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
i FET FHIT
Revenue WA 5 3,811,864 3,833,194
Cost of sales HEKRA (2,499,750) (2,530,133)
Gross profit E7 1,312,114 1,303,061
Other income Hg A 7 39,482 46,754
Selling and distribution costs HE RS KA (542,069) (531,672)
Administrative expenses THHAX (313,065) (298,049)
Impairment losses recognised under TEHREEEBERIE THR
expected credit loss model, net of reversal  JR{EKESE - FIBRFEE (722) (1,453)
Other expenses EfY (38,885) (36,202)
Other gains and losses E s K 18 8 (153,520) (25,204)
Finance costs BT RAR 9 (396) (270)
Profit before taxation FREEATR A 302,939 456,965
Income tax expense FriSfiR 2 10 (95,478) (123,816)
Profit for the year F A% A 11 207,461 333,149
Other comprehensive expense Hit2HEAX
Item that may be reclassified subsequently ~— HA{Z & E# 1872
to profit or loss: JHE -
Exchange differences arising on EIREINEBEEZ
translation of foreign operations PEH =28 (46,490) (25,340)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEBABEE 160,971 307,809
Profit for the year attributable to: AT ATEEERER
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIEZS DN 200,993 330,169
Non-controlling interests Bl Il o 6,468 2,980
207,461 333,149
Total comprehensive income (expense) for AT ATEHFEREE
the year attributable to: WA (FX%) #2858 -
Owners of the Company KAREEA 154,421 308,456
Non-controlling interests FEE I 1 A 2 6,550 (647)
160,971 307,809
Earnings per share FRAEF 15
~ Basic (HK cents) - B GBI) 19.26 31.64
— Diluted (HK cents) - #5E OB 19.26 31.63
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

imOIIBHRNER

At 31 December 2024
M2024F12 B31H

2024 2023
2024 2023 4F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
ks FTHET FHIT
Non-current Assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BRERZE 16 1,562,633 1,679,372
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 169,582 179,994
Goodwill = 18 330,115 62,779
Intangible assets mAE 19 117,131 26,444
Interest in an associate kNI E 20 116 116
Financial assets at fair value through profit & A F{Ezt ABZHZ &R
or loss BE 21 41,438 38,487
Deferred tax assets BEEFIBEE 22 73,925 69,684
Prepayments for acquisition of property, WHEMIZE - BB kB
plant and equipment TR IR 34,096 42,941
Time deposits with original maturity over REVEAE —F LA £ 2 EH
one year T2 27 - 77,244
Restricted bank deposits SR FIRITIF R 27 5,135 -
Rental deposits HEZe 25 2,516 2,516
2,336,687 2,179,577
Current Assets REBEE
Inventories e 24 477,007 415,015
Trade receivables B 5 AR K 25 409,713 372,854
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits E-fth U I8 -« Fa 1 B K&
®re 25 74,564 66,318
Loan receivable B E R 23 - 274
Amount due from ultimate holding YR AT IR A R FRIE
company 26 5,557 4,558
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEUR R BT 8 A FIFRIE 26 41,632 34,349
Tax recoverable AT EI I 8,923 29,539
Financial assets at fair value through profit & A F(EFABZZ &/
or loss BE 21 - 215,679
Time deposits with original maturity over [REVEAH —F LA L2 EH
one year TR 27 5,399 55,174
Time deposits with original maturity over REBIB A=@E A ELER
three months but not exceeding one year  #BiB—F 2 & #fFK 27 287,017 111,342
Cash and cash equivalents ReE KB EEY 27 1,110,097 1,199,054
2,419,909 2,504,156
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

‘RO HIRRE
At 31 December 2024
M2024F12 B31H

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
Mo 5T F#ET THIT
Current Liabilities REBEE
Trade payables E 5 IR 28 174,117 150,320
Other payables and accruals HAb ERTRIE R BT E A 28 712,944 666,738
Amount due to ultimate holding company B SRR A R FIB 26 30,277 29,693
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries JEAHR 2 BB A R F0E 26 4,807 4,332
Lease liabilities HEAR 29 7,630 8,559
Tax liabilities MIBAGE 7,417 33,165
Deferred income IRIEWA 30 5,499 3,378
942,691 896,185
Net Current Assets mENEEFE 1,477,218 1,607,971
Total Assets less Current Liabilities HEERRBAE 3,813,905 3,787,548
Capital and Reserves BEXR#E
Share capital &N 31 2,941,441 2,941,441
Reserves ] 678,721 690,000
Equity attributable to owners of the RATHRE AEIEER
Company 3,620,162 3,631,441
Non-controlling interests FEFE ) R e 49,812 43,262
Total Equity ERBE 3,669,974 3,674,703
Non-current Liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities R IE B & 22 105,938 93,117
Lease liabilities HEAE 29 8,510 1,113
Deferred income EFEURA 30 24,348 18,615
Consideration payable FERRAB 28 5,135 -
143,931 112,845
3,813,905 3,787,548

FO8E2ISE ZIRE M MRLEST SN 2025
F3A26 BHERBETIRW AU TALTRESE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 98 to 215 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26

March 2025 and are signed on its behalf by: E:
KIYOTAKA ANDO SHINJI TATSUTANI
RERERE RRER
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EBEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024F12 A31 BILFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

o aE]

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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Notes:

According to the articles of association and board resolutions of the
Company’s subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), 10%
of the profits after taxation, as determined under the PRC accounting
rules and regulations, are transferred to general reserve funds under “PRC
statutory reserve”. These transfers must be made before the distribution
of dividends to equity owners of those subsidiaries until the aggregated
amounts have reached 50% of their registered capitals. These reserves
should only be used for making up losses, capitalisation into capital, and
expansion of production and operation.

Merger reserve at 31 December 2024 represents (i) the difference
between the share capital issued by the Company, and the aggregate of
(1) the share capital of Winner Food Products Limited (“Winner Food")
and (2) the retained profits of Winner Food, net of non-controlling
interests, prior to the original acquisition of Winner Food by Nissin Foods
Holdings Co., Ltd., the Company’s immediate and ultimate holding
company, in 1989, arising from a group reorganisation on 1 January
2014, amounted to a debit of HK$238,168,000 and (ii) the difference
between the consideration paid for the acquisition of 66.01% equity
interest in Nissin Foods Vietnam Co., Ltd. (“Nissin Vietnam”) from
Nissin Foods Asia Co., Ltd., a fellow subsidiary of the Company, of
US$9,500,000 (equivalent to HK$74,435,000) and the share capital of
Nissin Vietnam attributable to the acquired interest of HK$344,401,000,
during the current year, amounted to a credit of HK$269,966,000.

On 22 December 2014, the Company acquired an additional 26%
interest in Winner Food from the non-controlling shareholder for a
cash consideration of HK$129,453,000. The difference between the
cash consideration paid and the carrying amount of the net assets
attributable to the additional interest in Winner Food acquired from the
non-controlling shareholder, amounting to HK$14,403,000, is credited
to “other reserve”. Following the completion of this acquisition, Winner
Food became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company acquired
additional interests in certain subsidiaries, including MC Marketing
& Sales (Hong Kong) Limited and Zhuhai Golden Coast Winner Food
Products Limited, from their non-controlling shareholders. The differences
between the cash considerations paid and the carrying amounts of the
net assets attributable to the additional interests acquired from the non-
controlling shareholders, amounting to HK$332,767,000, are debited to
“other reserve”.

GEX

RIBAQRPREARLME ([HE]) HERQR
ZHBERANNERGRER  AHRETE
EEHR A RGP EE 2 BB R 2 10% 8 A
[hEVEERE] BT 2 —RF#EES - BAERE
FBARMZEN B R RERES AD KBS A
TR BEEBRERNEMAEARZ50% - ZERE
ARARBREER EAMERBERARBERAEEM

R2024F12 8318 & OF % # 531)E 2014
FIAVRETEEEHESI B ARAR D EITR
AEN)KERMERAE (KERMA 2K
AR (2) KERMZRBANZ BE (MHRA
A A E# R & IERE A A Nissin Foods Holdings
Co., Ltd. 72 1989 4F ¥ 25 W BE 5K A R @ Al 2 FE 1%
HlEER) 22/ HEe w5 A238,168,000%8
T RVRAFERBAAG —RHERKBA
A Nissin Foods Vietnam Co., Ltd. ([ B3& # )
66.01% % # F7T 2 1< #9 £X /89,500,000 % 7T (48
& 174,435,000 T) HEATKEESELBE
ME AR AN 344,401,000 L2 258 - KEEHEA
269,966,000 % 7T ©

R2014F 12428 A2 RI UK RE
129,453,000 7T B FE#2 $I 14 AR SR UL BB ok B R d
REIN26% 2 HEam o BATIR @ AE B IEIE S AR
RN KM RMEBIMERENEEFEREE
2 ZF814,403,0008 TR [ At fEE] R L -
ZBEWBEKE  KERBKARRRZEZEK
BAR -

HE2022F12 A31 BIEFE - AARIAFEER
RS THE AR EIMER (RIERBES
ARARIRKEMEEKERAERAF) -
BB SR EEG IR R ATEEIMESEL
FEE 2 REE 2 B8 E%5332,767,000 7 TR
[H b ] M -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= O\ Ay sy —1
GolREna®
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHZE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REES
Profit before taxation B A% AR A 302,939 456,965
Adjustments for: FHEE
Amortisation of intangible assets BB EEE 5,971 4,958
Depreciation of property, plant and W - BEMEREITE
equipment 27,534 28,939
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 7,949 13,730
Equity-settled share-based payment A A B AR 9 B ETT R 1,992 1,684
Fair value changes on financial assets at RATESFABENEREEATE
fair value through profit or loss G (2,951) (4,116)
Finance costs HFTE R AR 396 270
Government grant related to acquisition BRAVEEE E 2 BUTHEL
of assets (4,737) (1,381)
Impairment losses recognised in respect E Z EWFIBRER AR E EE -
of trade receivables, net of reversal MR EEE 722 1,453
Impairment loss on property, plant and YE - WE M&E 2R ERE
equipment 83,896 8,778
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets EAREEEZRERRE 7,875 -
Impairment loss on intangible assets BIVEEZRERRE 21,403 -
Impairment loss on goodwill ER 2 REEE 22,697 -
Interest income FLEWA (25,170) (27,896)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and LEWE - BEREREBE
equipment 3,544 2,970
Operating cash flows before movement in ~ &EE BB 2K EHELTE
working capital 454,060 486,354
Decrease in inventories FERD 100,186 154,534
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables B S EWERRR (38m) o (41,232) 59,163
Decrease in other receivables, prepayments — Eth JEUTRIE « FB FRIE R IZ SR
and deposits 9,532 22,470
(Increase) decrease in amounts due from JEURR RSB A R FIE (3h0) Jmd
fellow subsidiaries (7,283) 233
Increase (decrease) in trade payables B S EMAEFEM Ofd) 20,620 (33,411)
Increase in other payables and accruals At A BB K FERT B AR N 2,366 12,442
Increase (decrease) in amount due to JES B ERAERR A R R IEE AN OR )
ultimate holding company 4,945 (4,031)
Increase in amounts due to fellow FEfT R R M8 A B 3IEE N
subsidiaries 475 709
Cash generated from operations BEEEACRE 543,669 698,463
Income taxes paid EANIZIEST (115,905) (121,966)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES & ZBHEL 2REFHE 427,764 576,497

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A



2024 2023
2024 F 2023 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Net cash outflow on acquisition of WEEM B AR 2 3R & F 58
subsidiaries (428,515) -
Placement of time deposits with original FHEHABR =AU EETBE—F
maturity of more than three months but ZEEIERR
not exceeding one year (501,766) (211,836)
Withdrawal of time deposits with original ~ 12EREIEIE A={E A LA LET BB —F
maturity of more than three months but 2 EHIERR
not exceeding one year 269,923 11,097
Placement of time deposits with original GHEIBRAA—FU L2 THER
maturity of more than one year - (5,549)
Withdrawal of time deposits with original ~ $}eERE|HIE B —F U £ 2 FBFR
maturity of more than one year 176,720 38,842
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at HERAFEFABENEMEE Y
fair value through profit or loss Fri5 508 223,843 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB - BE K&E (112,093) (254,127)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE - BB REREFTEHIE
and equipment 13,624 1,499
Interest received [=ELERIPSN 25,170 27,896
Government grant received in relation to B N R & E W U HE A
acquisition of assets 13,000 6,441
Advance to ultimate holding company =Sl NS E-EA (17,072) (403)
Repayment from ultimate holding company Fx4&IE% A GlE K 11,712 -
Placement of rental deposits FHiEERe - (727)
Placement of restricted bank deposits FHERHIRITER (5,135) -
Loan repaid EEER 274 547
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REZBAAZRESFHE
ACTIVITIES (330,315) (386,320)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AEEE
Dividend paid to owners of the Company ~ ZARRHEE AZKE (165,112) (158,224)
Repayments of lease liabilities HEBABEN (5,790) (7,810)
Share purchased from secondary market RO REETEIE T AE =M%
under share award scheme BEMRD (2,580) (1,793)
Interest paid on lease liabilities ENEEAEFE (396) (270)
Consideration paid for business combination FEHEHIT 2 A AR E
under common control - (74,435)
CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES @& ZBFTAZRE (173,878) (242,532)
ANNUAL REPORT 2024 | = Z = U4 F 3R

105



106

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

=7\ Ay sy =]
GolREnEE
For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

2024 2023
2024 & 20234
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRBESEEYRLBE
EQUIVALENTS (76,429) (52,355)
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes SN R BB 2 B (12,528) (6,164)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RENZEERESEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,199,054 1,257,573
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND REXRZHER
OF THE YEAR, ReEEY
represented by cash and cash equivalents  BASRT4582 MIRE TR 1,110,097 1,199,054

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
imO IR RERMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Nissin Foods Company Limited (the “Company”) is a public
limited company incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Its
immediate and ultimate holding company is Nissin Foods
Holdings Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in Japan with its
shares listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are 21-23 Dai Shing Street, Tai Po
Industrial Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong, and 11-13
Dai Shun Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate, Tai Po, New Territories,
Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) is principally engaged in the manufacturing and
sales of noodles, retort foods, frozen foods, beverage products,
snacks and vegetable products, and provision of research and
publicity services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

1.

— R & #

HERMBRAR ([ARdA]) A—HRE
BHEMKZ 2 ABRBRAT - ERORE
BEHAERZMAERAR LM - EEEE&
#2972 % /A B A Nissin Foods Holdings Co.,
Ltd. (— R B AWK B EBRHRER
BHXGR EMZRT]) o

KRR 2 M =R A R BB IR K
WA TR RRAT21-2358  EBEXE
HBEAL A E S H B A TR AEE
11-135% o

ARBAREMBAR (5fE [AEEH]) T2
RELERHEEMEG ZRRR  RRR
i RHBER  TRNARERARIRMHR
W M E EIR

REPBMRARARNREEET (1B
TTl) 251 e
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NUTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
|||i.|-\ E\ij ﬁiﬁ%ﬂfj DI

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year
In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on 1 January 2024 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback
Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-
current and related

Amendments to HKAS 1

amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

Supplier Finance

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7
Arrangements and
HKFRS 7

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | B/ERRAR A A
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (confinued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKFRS 28

Sale and Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture!
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?
Amendments to HKFRS Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting

Accounting Standards Standards - Volume 11

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Amendments to the Classification and
and HKFRS 7 Measurement of Financial Instruments?

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent
and HKFRS 7 Electricity®

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial

Statements*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027.

Except for the new HKFRS mentioned below, the directors of
the Company anticipate that the application of all amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

J?EFFHJ?;.T&%‘%

SR B BN

SReE R ([ FBATREE

,JJ 1)

BB 18 RE BT RSB B R

MR EER

AEBYREAEA T EDERRE
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EEUBHREENF 058N REELEHE
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BRGTENE21%
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CHEY)

ERMBHREEREIRK
BRNEHREERE TR
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ERRBREERETH
CHEY)

BERMBHEERE 185

NS 7_}2 aEd
£ HMEE
HESTE!
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BRWBREE
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FESE - F
11183
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NUTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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IR BI5E

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (confinued)

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements,
which sets out requirements on presentation and disclosures
in financial statements, will replace HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements. This new HKFRS Accounting Standard,
while carrying forward many of the requirements in HKAS 1,
introduces new requirements to present specified categories
and defined subtotals in the statement of profit or loss; provide
disclosures on management-defined performance measures in
the notes to the financial statements and improve aggregation
and disaggregation of information to be disclosed in the
financial statements. In addition, some HKAS 1 paragraphs have
been moved to HKAS 8 and HKFRS 7. Minor amendments to
HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and HKAS 33 Earnings per
Share are also made.

HKFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will be effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with
early application permitted. The application of the new standard
is expected to affect the presentation of the statement of profit
or loss and disclosures in the future financial statements. The
Group is in the process of assessing the detailed impact of
HKFRS 18 on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | B/ERRAR A A
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The directors of the Company have, at the time of
approving the consolidated financial statements, a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

Material accounting policy information

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

GAMBRARLEERE
* REHBA AR

3.1

3.2

REMBHRREREE

HEMBERRIREFTEGIMA
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BB mREER ((BEMBEREE
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BRI AV BRENBER
BHMAXSMABARIRES LR
RBBRAGHIREZERREE
£} o

ARRBEBERMEFAUNBERRES
BEH - AEEARXRERNAIER
RFFHEZE - FUt - RERERD
FEKEERGTRIENEREES
BImE -

BEASTHERER
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HREMEBRRBIEARDTIARBARR
AEHI 2 B R ENWB AR ZMET®R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continueq/

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Company gains control until the
date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | B/ERRAR A A
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL . HGEMBMRREEERE

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY XEFBRER (&)
INFORMATION (continued!
3.2 Material accounting policy information 32 EAREFHBEREHR (&)
(continued)
Business combinations EHBEUE

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets
which includes an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs. The acquired processes are considered
substantive if they are critical to the ability to continue
producing outputs, including an organised workforce with
the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to perform
the related processes or they significantly contribute to the
ability to continue producing outputs and are considered
unique or scarce or cannot be replaced without significant
cost, effort, or delay in the ability to continue producing
outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business
combination under common control are accounted
for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at fair
value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an asset and a liability
in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
(the “Conceptual Framework") except for transactions
and events within the scope of HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 Levies, in which the Group applies HKAS 37 or
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of the Conceptual Framework
to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business
combination. Contingent assets are not recognised.

EBR—HEAMNABREE  BEF
BRE-HERRAL-RELRE
MM E GRS AIEEHNENEER
BEf - B BREEETEE LN
ERENEMEZ  BRAGNTIERB
EE s G B S SRR £
N REFBEEEELNENBEXN
R AR ABEN - URERR
BEFIBR - HEBEARAE - B
NEFEEEERENHRTEENE
SV AT »

BRI G TRERBE I - ZHW
BEAWEEIIR - XEAHhEER
MRERATESE  MAFEDR
REBS BB WATHE APTEE
BE - AENBBERASERIREEK
Yol J7 PR R RE T B AT IR AN i s A B
HE A FEATMEE - WHEBEK
R—RAEEERFNIBREER o

PR AT BRI B E MR RN B E
BRANTEHMBEREHZER (R
ER]) REERBENESR  EE
BEENEI7REE  AAARE
REAEESES (HEREPBHRER
BZE®) - RBE21 RAEHEN
M5 KBRS AEEE I ER
R EHERE 37 RHER (BB
BHREREZEE) RBE21%M
FERESAEZR - AR ERNEB A
PrEENRE - KARABETTHER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 | —ZT = U4 F 3R



14

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024F12 A31 BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (continueq/

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair

value, except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below);

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are measured in accordance with that standard; and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured at
the present value of the remaining lease payments
(as defined in HKFRS 16 Leases) as if the acquired
leases were new leases at the acquisition date.
Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms
of the lease when compared with market terms.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continueq/

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)
Business combinations (continued)
Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition
date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event
of liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about
facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date.
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HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continueq/

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
retrospectively during the measurement period (see
above), and additional assets or liabilities are recognised,
to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at
that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Revenue from contracts with customers
Information about the Group’s accounting policies relating
to contracts with customers is provided in note 5.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (continueq)
3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans/state-managed retirement benefit schemes/the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

For LSP obligation, the Group accounts for the employer
MPF contributions expected to be offset as a deemed
employee contribution towards the LSP obligation in
terms of HKAS 19.93(a) and it is measure on a net basis.
The estimated amount of future benefit is determined
after deducting the negative service cost arising from
the accrued benefits derived from the Group’s MPF
contributions that have been vested with employees,
which are deemed to be contributions from the relevant
employees.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (continueq/

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of current and
deferred income tax expenses.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (continueq)
3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit and at the time of the
transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and an associate, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continueq/

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes (other than
freehold lands and construction in progress as described
below). Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Freehold lands are not depreciated and are measured at
cost less subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (continueq)
3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Properties in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes are carried at cost, any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management including
costs of testing whether the related assets is foretiening
properly and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests
of properties which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.
To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented
as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement
of financial position. When the consideration cannot be
allocated reliably between non-lease building element
and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land,
the entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets other than construction in progress less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continueq/

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Intangible assets

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (continueq)
3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right- of-use assets, intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are
estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be established, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be established. The recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continueq/

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the
carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount
of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continueq/

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject
to regulatory restrictions that result in such balances
no longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b)  cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with maturity of three months or less),
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
to a known amount of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash
equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments rather than for
investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on a
first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental
costs directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental
costs which the Group must incur to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continueq/

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contract with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continueq/

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL . HEMBRERENEERE
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY REFBREN (@)
INFORMATION (onie!

3.2 Material accounting policy information

3.2 EARSHEBERER (&)

128

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from the next reporting period.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continueq/

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains
and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets
(including time deposits, restricted bank deposits, rental
deposits, trade and other receivables, loan receivable,
amount due from ultimate holding company, amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries and bank balances) which
are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continueq/

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continueq/

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade payables, other
payables and accruals, and amounts due to ultimate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (contines/

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible asset
Property, plant and equipment, and right-of-use assets are
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment,
if any. Intangible assets are stated at cost less amortisation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is impaired,
the Group has to exercise judgement and make estimation,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or
any indicators that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, in the case of value in use, the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in estimating the recoverable amounts including cash
flow projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset (including right-of-use assets), the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the
assets belongs, including allocation of corporate assets when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
otherwise recoverable amount is determined at the smallest
group of cash generating units, for which the relevant corporate
assets have been allocated. Changing the assumptions and
estimates, including the discount rates or the growth rate in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect the recoverable
amounts.

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amounts of right-
of-use assets, property, plant and equipment, and intangible
assets subject to impairment assessment were HK$169,582,000,
HK$1,562,633,000 and HK$117,131,000 (2023: HK$179,994,000,
HK$1,679,372,000 and HK$26,444,000), respectively. Details
of the impairment are disclosed in notes 17, 16 and 19
respectively.
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134

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (contines/

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has
been allocated, which is the higher of the value in use or fair
value less costs of disposal. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating unit (or a group of cash-generating
units) and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which results in
downward revision of future cash flows or upward revision of
discount rate, a material impairment loss or further impairment
loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of goodwill
is HK$330,115,000 (2023: HK$62,779,000). Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 18.
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b.

REVENUE h. U
a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with a) XRBEEFEHNBANSIF
customers
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
2024512318 2035128318
Hong Kong Hong Kong
and other Mainland and other Mainland
regions China regions China
(as defined (as defined (as defined (as defined
in Note 6) in Note 6) Total in Note 6) in Note 6) Total
BAREM BB REM
HE HER i HEIR
(EBRMEE6) (THRME6) @ | (EzAMe)  (R2RME) @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Tz THT Ti5x T T
Types of goods and services B K RHEER
Sales of goods HERM 1,536,687 2,268,171 3,804,858 1,510,016 2,316,550 3,826,566
Others (Note) Eft (f3E) 3,218 3,788 7,006 3,195 3,433 6,628
Total st 1,539,905 2,271,959 3,811,864 1,513,211 2,319,983 3,833,194
Timing of revenue WA
recognition
A point in time E-RRE% 1,537,319 2,271,959 3,809,278 1,510,455 2,319,983 3,830,438
Over time —BERR 2,586 - 2,586 2,756 - 2,756
Total st 1,539,905 2,271,959 3,811,864 1,513,211 2,319,983 3,833,194

Note: Others mainly include revenue from sales of scrap noodle and

provision of research and publicity services.

M A2 e b EnERRRHRNEE

ZHIA -
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b, REVENUE (confnued) N ONIE )

136

b)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers and revenue recognition policies
Sales of goods (revenue recognised at one point
in time)

For sales of goods (including noodles, retort foods,
frozen foods, beverage products, snacks and vegetable
products), revenue is recognised when control of the
goods has transferred, being when (i) the goods have
been loaded on board for export sales; or (ii) the goods
have been delivered to the customers’ specific location
for local sales and the Group received acceptance
confirmations from customers. Once the goods are loaded
on board for export sales or delivered to the customers’
specific location for local sales, the customers have full
discretion over the manner of distribution and price to sell
the goods, and have the primary responsibility for selling
the goods and bearing the risks of obsolescence and loss
in relation to the goods. The normal credit term is 30 to
120 days upon invoice issued.

The amount of consideration the Group receives and
revenue the Group recognises varies with changes in sales
rebates the Group offers to the customers. The Group
estimates sales rebates based on analysis of historical
experience and adjusts for the most likely amount of
consideration to be received. Revenue from these sales is
recognised based on the price specified in the contract,
net of the estimated rebates, which is estimated based
on experience. Revenue is recognised only to the extent
that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not
occur. A refund liability (included in other payables and
accruals) is recognised for expected rebates to customers
in relation to sales made at the end of the reporting
period. No element of financing is deemed present as the
sales rebates are payable on demand from customers.
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b.

REVENUE fcontineq)

b)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers and revenue recognition policies
(continued)

Sales of goods (revenue recognised at one point
in time) (continued)

Under the Group’s standard contract terms, certain
customers have a right to exchange for expiry products
at any time without a time limit. The Group uses its
accumulated historical experience to estimate the number
of exchange on portfolio level using the expected value
method. Revenue is recognised for sales which are
considered highly probable that a significant reversal in
the cumulative revenue recognise will not occur. Based
on accumulated experience, management considers the
amount of returned goods as immaterial due to large
volume of revenue with low value of individual items
sold. Therefore, the probability of a significant reversal in
revenue from future sales return is remote.

Provision of research and publicity services
(revenue recognised over time)

Revenue from provision of research and publicity
services are recognised over time because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs.

With the provision of research and publicity services are
at period of one year or less, as permitted under HKFRS
15, the transaction price allocation to the unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.

b.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

6.  SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is organised into operating business units according
to the major place of operations of the relevant group entities.
The Group determines its operating segments based on these
business units by reference to their respective major place of
operations, for the purpose of reporting to the chief operating
decision maker, i.e. the managing director of the Company.

Specifically, the Group’s operating and reportable segments
under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are as follows:

o Hong Kong and other regions (including Vietnam, Korea,
Taiwan and Australia): Manufacturing and sales of
noodles, frozen foods and other products in Hong Kong
and overseas, and provision of research and publicity
services

o Mainland China: Manufacturing and sales of noodles,
frozen foods and other products in Mainland China, and

provision of publicity services

There are no aggregation of individual operating segments to
derive the reportable segment.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (coninued)

Segment revenue and results

Segment information about these operating and reportable
segments is presented below:

For the year ended 31 December 2024

6. HERER &)
P ONE T

BERZELERARENHZ

HanTs

HZE2024512831HLLEE

Hong Kong Reportable
and Mainland segments
other regions China total  Elimination Total
BER g
Hitt & FEIR APEF HeH G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR FET TR THERT THERT
Revenue O
Segment revenue from external REMBEFZ
customers DEBBA 1,539,905 2,271,959 3,811,864 - 3,811,864
Inter-segment revenue REGEON 184,341 224,958 409,299 (409,299) -
Segment revenue PEBA 1,724,246 2,496,917 4,221,163 (409,299) 3,811,864
Result ES
Segment results DEEE 88,856 328,517 417,373 - 417,373
Unallocated income FVALON 14,312
Exchange loss, net [EHEETE (17,056)
Interest income FBWA 25,170
Fair value changes on financial assets XA B ABHH
at FVTPL TRAENTE
& 2,951
Impairment loss on property, plant %1% - BER&HEZ
and equipment HEEE (83,896)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FREEE 2
RERE (7.875)
Impairment loss on intangible assets BV EE 2 FIEEHE (21,403)
Impairment loss on goodwill HEZREBE (22,697)
Loss on disposal of property, plant HENE BER
and equipment REEE (3,544)
Finance costs BB (396)
Consolidated profit before taxation ~ 4ZABRFATEF 302,939
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

6.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq) 6. PEBER (@)
Segment revenue and results (continued) PEBAREE (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE2023F 12831 HLLEFE
Hong Kong Reportable
and Mainland segments
other regions China total Elimination Total
BBR B
Hipit R Bl At k= Eaf| G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT TR AT AT
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(&&&31) (B=5351) (&551) (lRE51)
Revenue A
Segment revenue from external REMBEFZ
customers A"Mﬂ}\ 1,513,211 2,319,983 3,833,194 - 3,833,194
Inter-segment revenue A EUA 189,389 221,070 410,459 (410,459) -
Segment revenue DEWA 1,702,600 2,541,053 4,243,653 (410,459) 3,833,194
Result £
Segment results NEEE 85,085 350,602 435,687 - 435,687
Unallocated income AOBBMA 18,856
Exchange loss, net EERTE (17,572)
Interest income HMEHA 27,896
Fair value changes on financial assets AT EF ABZHH
at FVTPL TREELTE
o 4,116
Impairment loss on property, plant ~ ¥1% « BE k& ER
and equipment REEE (8,778)
Loss on disposal of property, plant ~ HEWE « FE &
and equipment R EE (2,970)
Finance costs BB (270)
Consolidated profit before taxation ~ 4ABRFATEF 456,965

Inter-segment revenue is charged at prevailing market rates.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment results represent the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of certain other income, net exchange loss,
interest income, fair value changes on financial assets at FVTPL,
impairment losses on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, intangible assets and goodwill, loss on disposal
of property, plant and equipment and finance costs. This is
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for the
purpose of resource allocation and performance assessment.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (coninued)

Segment assets and liabilities
No segment assets and liabilities are presented as the
information is not regularly reported to the chief operating
decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of performance. Therefore, only segment revenue
and segment results are presented.

Other segment information
Amounts included in the measure of segment results:

6. WEPER &)
AREEREE
ARTERE RS MRBIT EREEL
EBRRETHR2KABES  ALTESR
FIDEEEREE - Bt E27]9EBU
AR DELHELE -

Hitv o &R
FHENEETANSHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BLZ2024F 12 531 HIFFE
Hong Kong
and Mainland
other regions China Total
BER
Hithih & R E A it st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
Amortisation of intangible assets mILEERN 3,231 2,740 5,971
Depreciation of property, plantand % - fERK&ETE
equipment 15,534 12,000 27,534
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEETE 4,968 2,981 7,949
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BZ2023F 12531 HIEFE
Hong Kong
and Mainland
other regions China Total
BER
H b [ R B i #aEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT T T
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESN 3,232 1,726 4,958
Depreciation of property, plantand %%  BE &K&HTE
equipment 17,389 11,550 28,939
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREESENSE 7,012 6,718 13,730
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6.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (contived/ 6.

Geographical information

The Group’s revenue from external customers is mainly derived
from customers located in Hong Kong (location of domicile),
Mainland China and others, which is determined based on the
location of customers, while the Group’s non-current assets are
located in Hong Kong and other regions, and Mainland China,
which is determined based on the geographical location of
these assets or place of group entities that hold such assets,
where appropriate.

SERER ()

EE R
REBRBINBELZMAEER B UK
B (FrfEdh) ~ PEAM R EMIbE 2T
FWA - WIBREEFZEHMET A%
B IERBEEMPNESE R E TN K
R A - IARIERZEEE 2 B B 5
SEEREEREEEZME (WER) B
fFj °

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHEIT
External revenue: SN
Hong Kong aBE 977,391 1,229,961
Mainland China R Ay 2,271,959 2,325,737
Others (Vietnam, Korea, Canada, Australia, — Efb (#iFg - 8 -
United States of America, Taiwan, Macau, InER RN ER
etc.) AERME) 562,514 277,496
3,811,864 3,833,194
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Non-current assets (Note): EmEEE (M) :
Hong Kong and other regions BEEREMM R 1,201,393 925,682
Mainland China R Ay 1,012,280 1,065,964
2,213,673 1,991,646

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial assets at FVTPL, deferred
tax assets, time deposits with original maturity over one year,
restricted bank deposits and rental deposits.

142 NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A

=
Bl

i ERBEETEERATEGF A BEZE
MEE  BERBAEE - REHPA—FU
Lz EHER  RRHIRTERARBER



SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. SEER (©)
Information about major customers BERTXETFZEH
Revenue from customers of the respective years ended 31 THHREEP ZIWMARE E 2024 F % 2023
December 2024 and 2023, individually contributing over 10% F12 A31 BIEEFEEPMAAREBAKA
of the total revenue of the Group are as follows: B 10% :
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T
Customer A' BEPA 646,664 695,571
Customer B? =B 645,873 705,301
! From both Hong Kong and Mainland China ! BB KPR
2 From Mainland China 2 KB BEIRM
OTHER INCOME 1. EAtA
2024 2023
2024 5 2023 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
Government grant related to acquisition of ~ BREIWIEEE ~ BUFAHEL
assets (note 30) (FfF3E30) 4,737 1,381
Government grant related to expenses BADHERFA I 2 BUT L
recognised (Note) CGES) 5,046 11,372
Interest income from bank deposits IRITTF R BULA 15,761 16,521
Interest income from financial assets at FVTPL 2 A EF ABRN S R EED
GASUION 9,409 11,375
Miscellaneous income A 4,529 6,105
39,482 46,754

Note: During the year, the Group recognised government grants of
HK$5,046,000 (2023: HK$11,372,000), represents subsidies
provided by the government of Mainland China.

MEE : FA - ANEEERETHH BN 5,046,000 %
JC (20234 : 11,372,000 7t) * BD A E
AR TP LA F B
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

8.  OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HtWEEEE
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FAIT
Exchange loss, net PE 5 518 558 (17,056) (17,572)
Fair value changes on financial assets at FVTPL &2 A FEF ABZNERVEE
NE(EE 2,951 4,116
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BE REE 2 BE
equipment (3,544) (2,970)
Impairment loss on property, plant and M - BE R&E 2 REEE
equipment (83,896) (8,778)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FREEE 2 REBE (7,875) -
Impairment loss on intangible assets B EE 2 RERE (21,403) -
Impairment loss on goodwill R REEE (22,697) -
(153,520) (25,204)
0.  FINANCE COSTS 9. BABHAE
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 396 270
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10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 0. 8
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAIT
Current tax: BERTHIE -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BAENEH 11,206 12,750
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax B 1 B FTAS AR 82,021 89,538
Mainland China Withholding tax o 3 ot FE 0 EL 20,825 857
114,052 103,145
Overprovision in prior years: VAT E B Ra R 5
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEMNEH (7,143) (1,133)
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax AR 1 2P SRR (832) (843)
(7,975) (1,976)
106,077 101,169
Deferred tax (note 22) RIERIE (Mi5E22) (10,599) 22,647
95,478 123,816

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2,000,000 of profits of the qualifying group entity will be
taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed
at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a
flat rate of 16.5%.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of Mainland China subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

The EIT Law requires withholding tax to be levied on distribution
of profits earned by Mainland China entities for profits
generated after 1 January 2008 at rate of 5% for Hong Kong
resident companies, which are the beneficial owners of the
dividend received.

BREMBHFNEREHE  caEKEER
ERMNE28 BEE MiEik825% W
FREB - MBB2E BB TG R 5IE
16.5% MY R BT « DREE MRS RIS
KHIEER 2 EEER 28 MNGEERR
& 16.5% FRTLIIE -

REFRECEMESTE ([REMESTIED
MEFTEREEMHIEH - BRI E
REIMEFE 2 HREHH25% °

EMBHRIET  PEAMERERNES
BERG¥ (AEWKREESEEA) BREM
BEER 2 72008 1 B1 BB ELE Z % FI{E
IR - ZBI% 5% B R EURTBEINR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (connued)

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

The Group is operating in certain jurisdictions where the Pillar

10.

EREHBRAXZ (&)

HitpAhAERELE Z HIBR AR ADEER
ZBITHEGE -

AEBEE TR _RUNERZ AERRE

BB o R AR AEBKEHEZHA
AR EREERN15% « &5+

effective tax rates of all the jurisdictions in which the Group
RERER BN REMGTAREZIRRE

operates are higher than 15 per cent, after taking into account
the adjustments under the Global Anti-base Erosion Rules based RERAR AL 2 FEERE - REEEIEE R
R B E B 2 ZFTS B 2 R 1

AT R T EEBHEE -

Two Rules is effective. However, as the Group’s estimated

on management’s best estimate, the management of the Group
has not made relevant disclosures of qualitative and quantitative
information about the Group’s exposure to the Pillar Two
income taxes.

FAMGHAXEEABREREMEEY
ARPZBBATSEN SRR

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled from the
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Profit before taxation BRA A8 302,939 456,965
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5% IRAIMFFEFIF K 16.5% 1 &
Z B 49,985 75,399
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax ~ NAJFAFE L ) 2 T A £
purpose 14,575 6,115
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BERBMBAZ B2
purpose (1,350) (4,987)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RNEERMISEIR 2 MG 2 7,184 83
Utilisation of tax losses previously not A L AIARER 2 M5 E 1R
recognised (1,369) -
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMENEERLE 2B AT
operating in other jurisdictions TRME 2 & 20,586 30,879
Overprovision in prior years LA FIEREE MG (7,975) (1,976)
Withholding tax of Mainland China B A D A &) 2 TR
subsidiaries 12,428 17,416
Income tax at concessionary rate REBMEAENMET (165) (165)
Others Hth 1,579 1,052
Income tax expense for the year FARAERAZ 95,478 123,816
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1.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1. EWiEF
2024 2023
2024 % 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAIT
Profit for the year has been arrived at after 4 PUEFI 2 FBR
charging:
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH 5,971 4,958
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN N2 5,153 4,427
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense AR X 2 F &R A 2,499,750 2,530,133
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - B REBEITE
equipment 172,733 152,308
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 13,564 13,730
Total depreciation mELE 186,297 166,038
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories and & : SHTF ERFTEAR 2 FIE
included in cost of sales upon sales (HERHAHEKA) (150,814) (123,369)
35,483 42,669
Expenses relating to short-terms lease BRARHMEE 2 12,037 7,724
Research and development expenditure HEERY 35,845 36,202
Acquisition costs W R R 3,040 -
Staff costs B TAA
Directors’ emoluments (note 12) EE20S (M5E12)
— fees -8% 1,000 1,000
— other emoluments - Empie 18,500 19,175
— equity-settled share-based payment - AR A B DARRD 7 AR
S 1,079 1,684
20,579 21,859
Other staff costs excluding directors’ TERBESME 2 HME TKA
emoluments (Note) (B 3E) 733,618 705,501
Total staff costs | TR 754,197 727,360
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories and & : SHF EBFTEARZ FIE
included in cost of sales upon sales (HERIAHEKA) (330,188) (330,011)
Less: Amount included as research and B SIA LIRS 2
development expenditure as shown above FE (21,212) (19,264)
402,797 378,085

Note: Contributions to retirement benefit scheme included in other

staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2024 amounted to

HK$38,728,000 (2023: HK$38,596,000).

P

7

BIT)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

12.  DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS 12 EEREEHITEME
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Directors’ fees (Note i) BEwe (M) 1,000 1,000
Other emoluments: (Note ii) Hbe : (Bakii)
Basic salaries and allowances EARH & MoE8h 18,500 19,175
Equity-settled share-based payment LAt R A B UARR ) A E BB AT 3R 1,079 1,684
20,579 21,859
Notes: 5T
The directors’ fees were mainly for their services as directors of i EEHMSEESREEEETARAREM
the Company and its subsidiaries. BRARES -
i The other emoluments were mainly for their services in i Hit& E 2 RKERERARRRRA
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company EEEBREZ RS -

and the Group.
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12,

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (confnued)

1. EERERATEME @

The emoluments paid or payable to the directors and chief ENSRENTFARREERERATEZ
executive of the Company are set out below: e &I -
For the year ended 31 December 2024 BZE2024F12A831AILEE
Other emoluments
Hp e
Retirement Equity-
Basic benefits settled
Directors' salaries and Discretionary scheme  share-based
fees allowances bonus contributions payment Total
NERLEE
2558 BINER URG A
BEHe REE RiETA eI ERAR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TER TR
A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS A #1TES
Mr. Kiyotaka Ando (Note) ZHEREE (M) - 6,395 - - 835 7,230
Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa BEFBLL - 3320 - - 91 3,411
Mr. Shinji Tatsutani RAEREA - 2,700 - - 67 2,767
Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada WERHEE (R20245
(resigned on 1 July 2024) TR1BEE) - 306 - - 79 385
Mr. Katsunori Hiroi EHfRALA - 2,044 - - - 2,044
Mr. Xi Xiaotong B it - 2,194 - - - 2,194
Mr. Kiyoshi Matsuura IEREE (R 20245
(appointed on 1 July 2024) TR1BERT) - 1,541 - - 7 1,548
B) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE  B) B 1E%
DIRECTORS
Mr. Masaru Takahashi aRBEE 250 - - - - 250
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano PHEIHE 250 - - - - 250
Professor Toshiaki Sakai b7 b 250 - - - - 250
Professor Keiko Ito FHETHE 250 - - - - 250
1,000 18,500 - - 1,079 20,579
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

12. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (confinued) 12.

For the year ended 31 December 2023

EERERITEME @

BZE2023F12A31ALFE

Other emoluments
At
Retirement Equity-
Basic benefits settled
Directors'  salariesand  Discretionary scheme  share-based
fees  allowances bonus  contributions payment Total
RS
E1E¢ RINET SARRAR
ek RESE BEEL HEfR ARER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TATL THL TAT TAT THEL
A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS A #iTEZ
Mr. Kiyotaka Ando (Note) REEREE (F5T) - 6,578 - - 1,268 7,846
Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa BENRLE - 3310 - - 144 3,454
Mr. Shinji Tatsutani RAEREE - 2,722 - - 105 2,827
Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka NIEAERE (20235
(resigned on 30 June 2023) 6 A 30 BE(T) - 1219 - - 43 1,262
M. Yasuhiro Yamada WAL E - 3,107 - - 124 3,31
Mr. Katsunori Hiroi EHmALE (20235
(appointed on 1 July 2023) 7TE1REZRT) - 1,112 - - - 1,112
Mr. Xi Xiaotong ZBEMEE (R 20235
(appointed on 1 July 2023) TA1BEZ) - 1,127 - - - 1,127
B) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE  B) BUIEHTES
DIRECTORS
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto IAGEREL (120235
(resigned on 1 July 2023) 7R18E) 125 - - - - 125
Mr. Masaru Takahashi aRBEE 250 - - - - 250
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano PHETHE 250 - - - - 250
Professor Toshiaki Sakai RAFTHE 250 - - - - 250
Professor Keiko Ito FRETHR (R 20235
(appointed on 1 July 2023) 7TE1REZRT) 125 - - - - 125
1,000 19,175 - - 1,684 21,859

Note: Mr. Kiyotaka Ando is the Executive Director, Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive of the Group.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief

executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | B/ERRAR A A
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13.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 3. AEmaiES
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year FRN FAEELEERHEERELLE
included five directors (2023: four directors), details of whose E (2023F : UBEF)  FEZHMEFS
remuneration are set out in note 12. Detail of the remuneration ERMIFE 1255 - BZ=2023412 A31H
for the year ended 31 December 2023 of the remaining one IFFE#HT—E2RaHEE (WERAFE
highest paid employee who is neither a director nor chief FHEFERTE) 2B FBHINT
executive of the Company is set as follows:
2023
20234
HK$'000
FHT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EEREYHE 1,901
The number of the highest paid employee who is not the BTIHENENIERARTESHRSTIE
director of the Company whose remuneration fell within the BAZAT
following band is as follows:
2023
20234
No. of
employees
EE AZ
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7T E 2,000,000 77T 1

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during both years.

RMEFE  AREHSENEOMHST
B MMEAMAXREESIRMALEHE
B OS2 B X A R BRBR AR (E -
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14,

15,

DIVIDENDS

Dividends recognised as distribution during
the year:
2023 Final — 15.82 HK cents
(2023: 2022 Final — 15.16 HK cents)
per share

14 B2

FAERAEDRZEE
2023 FREF - A% 15.82 78
(20234 : 2022 FERHE -

% 15.16781l)

2024
2024 F
HK$'000
FET

165,112

2023
2023 %
HK$'000
THT

158,224

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2024 of 9.63 HK
cents and a special dividend of 6.19 HK cents per ordinary
share, in an aggregate amount of HK$165,112,000, has been
proposed by the directors of the Company and both are subject

to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

M 9.637
165,112,000/ ¢
BERGHERTEE -

5. FiREF

A
78

RB|EBRE  ARAREFEZRTEHE
2024F 12 A3 HIEFERBKE
B R R B 6197810 -

AR

ARRHAEARIESRERREERNTY

attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the ERATEIEFE :
following data:
2024 2023
2024 5 2023 F
Earnings figures BRI
Profit for the year attributable to owners of ~ FLEBBREARREFAFIME
the Company for the purpose of basic and RRRHEE AEEFART]
diluted earnings per share (HK$'000) (F%m) 200,993 330,169
Number of shares RBEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares St EMEARZEFIM S 2 L @A
for the purpose of basic earnings per share  JNAEFHE 1,043,608,301 | 1,043,655,222
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary sharesin ~ BLARITERDERM S 2
respect of outstanding share awards HEeB o Ll we 82,773 36,328
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FiEREEEZFIM S < LA
for the purpose of diluted earnings per It Fa 8
share 1,043,691,074 1,043,691,550
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16.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. #K - BB RRHE

Machinery Furniture
Freehold Owned  Leasehold and and Motor  Construction
land properties improvements  equipment fixtures vehicles —in progress Total
AFEDE  EANE BEEMRRE  EERRE  KARRE AE ERIE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fin TEn Fhn Tin Fhn Fhr Thn Fin

CosT A
At 1 January 2023 R0BE1A18 - 1516389 61,507 1,097,150 142,143 21,491 191,282 3,029,962
Additions AE - 16,345 - 50,050 5,465 1331 172,182 245,973
Disposals hE - (6,532) (8,291) (87.154) (6,209) (1,826) - (110,012)
Reclassification B - 183,497 6,517 129,758 262 - (320,034) -
Exchange realignment EXA% - (15,135) (53) (23,102) (2,057) (505) (1,608) (42,460)
At 31 December 2023 R2023%12A31R - 1,694,564 59,680 1,166,702 139,604 20491 0422 3,123,463
Acquired on acquisition of YEEmBAARE

subsidiaries 20814 18171 1342 7847 1,736 19 - 49,929
Additions AE - 1,241 3,647 55,906 7,603 1,176 59,975 129,548
Disposals HE - (25) - (28,302) (3,280) (997) (2,331) (35,162)
Reclassification EEp - 16,638 - 64,344 673 576 (82,31) -
Exchange realignment 5 EE (438) (25,910) (3%) (18,392) (2,800) (292) (572) (48,760)
At 31 December 2024 R2024%128318 20376 1,704,452 64,313 1248105 143,536 20973 17263 3,219,018
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT & RiAE
At 1 January 2023 R0BE1A18 - 515310 39,300 738,120 103,601 17,597 - 1413928
Provided for the year FEEE - 56,146 8741 74412 11,029 1,980 - 152,308
Impairment loss charged to profit ~ F AERHIHERE

or loss (Note) (Rizt) - 6,138 - 2611 29 - - 8,778
Eliminated upon disposals njiisg o - (3,552) (8291 (85,689) (6,209) (1,802) - (105,543)
Exchange realignment ERRE - (13,073) (32) (9,954) 2,015) (306) - (25,380)
At 31 December 2023 R2023%128318 - 560,969 39,718 719,500 106,435 17469 - 144409
Provided for the year FERE - 58,582 8175 96,565 7193 1,488 - B
Impairment loss charged to profit 5t AJER AT ESIE

orloss (Note) (Bzt) - 23,789 - 52,110 7914 83 - 83,89
Eliminated upon disposals j i o= - (167) - (13,801) (3,084) (942) - (17.994)
Exchange realignment ERRE - (22,089) (234) (2,180) (1,554) (284) - (26,341)
At 31 December 2024 R2024%12831R - 621,084 47,659 852,194 117,634 17814 - 1,656,385
CARRYING VALUES A
At 31 December 2024 R2024E128318 20376 1,083,368 16,654 395911 25,902 3,159 17263 1,562,633
At 31 December 2023 R2023512A318 - 113359 19,962 447,202 33,169 3,022 0422 1679372
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16.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT fcontinves)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
freehold land and construction in progress after taking into
account of their estimated residual values, are depreciated on a

straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Owned properties 3% -5%

Leasehold improvements
the leases or 20%

9% —30%

14% - 20%

18% —30%

Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

Over the shorter of the terms of

Note: At the end of the reporting period, the management of the

Group determined that, due to the economic uncertainty in the
foreseeable future, there was indication of impairment on the
property, plant and equipment of certain production lines with
carrying amounts of HK$80,397,000 (2023: HK$8,778,000). The
recoverable amounts of these assets have been determined based
on their value in use. The Group estimates the value in use of
these assets using a discount rate of 11.29% (2023: 11.29%).
The recoverable amounts of these assets were determined to be
lower than their carrying amounts. Accordingly, the assets were
impaired to their recoverable amounts of HK$3,289,000 (2023:
nil). An impairment loss of HK$77,108,000 (2023: HK$8,778,000)
has been recognised in profit or loss for the year.

In addition, the management of the Group determined that
there was indication of impairment on certain right-of-use assets
and property, plant and equipment in one of its subsidiaries,
with carrying amounts of HK$38,665,000 and HK$18,098,000,
respectively. The recoverable amounts of these assets were
determined to be lower than their carrying values. Accordingly,
the assets were impaired to their recoverable amounts of
HK$30,790,000 and HK$11,310,000, respectively. An impairment
loss of HK$7,875,000 and HK$6,788,000, respectively, was
recognised in the profit or loss for the year.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A

16.

W% - BB RRE (&)

FRokK AL REZTIREN Lty
¥ HEMEREEE ST ARG RIRE
BB UEGEER TERERE -

2SR Y/ES 3% Z5%

HEMERE REEFHN20%
(ABF2E A%)

Y S e 9% Z£30%

Y & 14% & 20%

AE 18% % 30%

BEE : RIREHR - AEBEEEERA  BanT

FERARRZCETHEENE  BETEERY
Y - BB &% R 880,397,000 %5
7t (20234 : 8,778,000/8 7t) I &
BE - xEEEZATRESEERIER
FHREEESET - A%E11.29% (2023
F:11.29%) MBI KA REEELE
AEE ZEEEZIRECBERETA
BEREEREE - Al - ZFEECRESR
H AT Uy [ 4 %8 3,289,000 7T (2023 4F ¢
#7) o JEE51877,108,000/8 7T (20234
8,778,000/ 7L) ENFNIBEFHER -

AN REEEEBHTHE —HNMBAR
ZETHEREECENRDE  BENMRE
HIERBEDSR - BREE D B4 38,665,000
77T % 18,098,000/8 Lo ZEEE Z
Al EeEWETARRNELREE -
It ZEEECHPIREZEAKRE S
30,790,000 7T 5 11,310,000 7T »
{B /&5 187,875,000 7% 7T K& 6,788,000 % 7T
EDBIRERNIBEETHER o



17.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. EREEE
Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
THELH HEWZE wEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT FHT
As at 31 December 2024 7M2024512A31H
Carrying amounts IREE 163,028 6,554 169,582
As at 31 December 2023 7A2023F12A31H
Carrying amounts BREE 170,237 9,757 179,994
For the year ended 31 December %2024 128311
2024 IEFE
Depreciation e (6,189) (7,375) (13,564)
Impairment loss (note 16) REEE (MiRE16) (7,875) - (7,875)
Exchange realignment PE 3 %R (1,209) (53) (1,262)
For the year ended 31 December #EZ2023F12H31H
2023 IEFE
Depreciation e (6,062) (7,668) (13,730)
Exchange realignment PE 5 %R (1,767) (71) (1,838)
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Expense relating to short-term leases G HHEENR 12,037 7,724
Total cash outflow for leases HEER SR 18,223 15,804
Additions to right-of-use assets EREEERE
— new lease entered -FIFHE 4,226 9,164
— acquisition of subsidiaries - BB AT 8,063 -
12,289 9,164
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17.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (confinued)

For both years, the Group leases office premises and staff
quarters for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for
fixed terms of one to five years (2023: one to three years), but
may have extension and termination options. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings where
its manufacturing facilities are primarily located. The Group is
the registered owner of these property interests, including the
underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were made
upfront to acquire these property interests. The leasehold land
components of these owned properties are presented separately
only if the payments made can be allocated reliably.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for staff
quarters and motor vehicles. As at 31 December 2024 and
2023, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio
of short-term leases to which the short-term lease expense
disclosed above.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of HK$8,077,000 are recognised
with related right-of-use assets of HK$6,554,000 as at 31
December 2024 (2023: lease liabilities of HK$9,672,000 are
recognised with related right-of-use assets of HK$9,757,000).
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.
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EHEEE &)

AEBRRERNEENAEWERETH
EUAMEEE - HEANNIRETFH—
E2RF (2023F : —E=4F) 7] A
MIBTEHA AR 1E o FAERTOTE B EAE E
7 WEE TRMER GG - REER
HRFETIBESHORER - AE®
ERARMNTERTETA R ARHRNTH
HAR o

SN REEFEABETEMRNERER
AN TEET - AEBERZEMEER
MEMEAA > EEAREEL - Sk
BaEmEkn  —EBMNTERAXMN -

ZEAAEMENEE LA D ERTKEE

AISED B SITRY -

AEBTHREIES MAE VREHA
#4) o 2024 F % 2023F 12 A31 H - & Hf

HERGHE FAMEENCHHEEERAA
AR -

HENRFIMRE

AN 202412 HA318B EERME

EA1E8,077,000 T M H BB AEE
6,554,000/ 70 (2023F : EREE
8159,672,000% T M HABRAE L E
9,757,000/ 7T) - HEWMZEKBR L AREAE
HIHE & A B A A EE A 2 SN e N A {A] 22
o MEEEMMSAEEEER -



18. GOODWILL AND IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

0. R AEHE AR

Guangdong MC Marketing Shanghai ABC
Shunde & Sales Eastpeak Gaemi Pastry
Nissin  (Hong Kong) Trading Food Holdings
Foods Co., Ltd Limited Co., Ltd Co. Ltd. Pty Ltd. Total
ABC
Gaemi Pastry
EREERE BHEEE L[BREES Food Holdings
RRERAR ARAT ARAF Co. Ltd. Pty Ltd. @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TAT TER TET TET
cosT XA
At 1 January 2023 R2023F1A18 8,414 31,668 23,026 - - 63,108
Exchange realignment BHAR - - (329) - - (329)
At 31 December 2023 R 2023 %
12A31H 8,414 31,668 22,697 - - 62,779
Arising on acquisition of  RKEEHE R
subsidiaries mEE - - - 130,050 159,983 290,033
At 31 December 2024 712024
124318 8,414 31,668 22,697 130,050 159,983 352,812
IMPAIRMENT HE
At 1 January 2023 and R2023F1A18
31 December 2023 2023 F
124318 - - - - - -
Impairment loss recognised R 2
in the year REEE - - 22,697 - - 22,697
At 31 December 2024 720245
124318 - - 22,697 - - 22,697
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2024 720245
124318 8,414 31,668 . 130,050 159,983 330,115
At 31 December 2023 #2023 %
12A318 8,414 31,668 22,697 - - 62,779

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill have been
allocated to five individual cash-generating units, comprising
the subsidiaries, Guangdong Shunde Nissin Foods Co., Ltd
(“Nissin Shunde”), MC Marketing & Sales (Hong Kong) Limited
("MCMS"), Shanghai Eastpeak Trading Co,. Ltd (“Shanghai
Eastpeak”), Gaemi Food Co. Ltd (“Gaemi Food”) and ABC
Pastry Holdings Pty Ltd (“ABC Pastry”). The carrying amounts of
goodwill allocated to these units are as follows:

AETRENS  EoRBEEREBL
REELEN  ERRENBRARERIE
ERERABRAR ([RBIEE]) - &5
REBRAR ([BEBRE]) - LERER
SBRAAF (I E/BRIE]) - Gaemi Food
Co. Ltd([Gaemi Food|) K ABC Pastry
Holdings Pty Ltd([ ABC Pastry]) - DB E#%
LB BREAENT ¢
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18.

GOODWILL AND IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL (contined/

In addition to goodwill above, property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and right-of-use assets (including allocation
of corporate assets) that generate cash flows together with
the related goodwill are also included in the respective cash-
generating unit for the purpose of impairment assessment.

The recoverable amounts of the above cash-generating units
were determined based on value in use calculations. Those
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the management of the Group covering a
five-year (2023: five-year) period.

The following table sets out the key assumptions for the value
in use calculation of the cash-generating units.

Nissin Shunde
AEIE®E
Pre-tax discount rate ~ BIATREEIR
31 December 2024 2024512 A31H 9.8%
31 December 2023 R2023F 128318 1.7%
Long-term growth rate REERXR
31 December 2024 M2024F12 A31H 1%
31 December 2023 R2023F12A31H 1%

Pre-tax discount rate applied reflects the current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
each of the cash-generating unit.

Cash flows beyond the five-year (2023: five-year) period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated above.
These growth rates are based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant industry.
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MCMS
BRRE

13.8%
13.8%

2%
2%

MEREmEREIR 2
BN EERETEZWE K
EREE  BEEEENFREEE (1D
BEARIEE) BRMAEEEN T ASRSE
BN LUETRERE °

PR EELEEM 2 IR E S BIIREE
REEFEEE ZFAEERREARS
EEREMILERELS (2023F : IF)
Rz BBEEMEL 2R RETRA -

FRESHER G EE BB AEELE
ZER -

Shanghai
Eastpeak Gaemi Food ABC Pastry
LE®E  GaemiFood ABC Pastry
10.5% 10.9% 11.01%
10.5% N/ATNEF NATER
2% 2% 2%
2% N/ANE R N/A N A

FRAZ AR R R E RIS H &
NEEERSRSELEMSARRZF
i o

TF (2023F  BF) MUEHRLRER
s R A MREER
TR RTEN - BTBBNMITE
H R IREE -



19.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BMLEE
Customer
Brand name Trademarks  relationship Total
mEEE f:E=d EFER% FoHy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TAT TAT TAT
CosT D%
At 1 January 2023 F2023F1 A1 H - 77,777 22,995 100,772
Written off in the year F R 5H - (4,358) - (4,358)
Exchange realignment I 5 - - (465) (465)
At 31 December 2023 72023%F 12 A31H - 73,419 22,530 95,949
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary ~ UE— B ARMES 73,837 - 44,430 118,267
Exchange realignment B F AR - - (638) (638)
At 31 December 2024 7202412 A31H 73,837 73,419 66,322 213,578
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT BHELRE
At 1 January 2023 R2023F 1818 - 62,429 6,889 69,318
Amortisation for the year FNEE - 3,232 1,726 4,958
Eliminated on written off WsHETH - (4,358) - (4,358)
Exchange realignment 0 5 - - (413) (413)
At 31 December 2023 2023124318 - 61,303 8,202 69,505
Amortisation for the year FNEH - 3,231 2,740 5,971
Impairment loss recognised in the year ~ FRIERBIEEIE - 8,885 12,518 21,403
Exchange realignment B 5 & - - (432) (432)
At 31 December 2024 2024512318 - 73,419 23,028 96,447
CARRYING VALUES RHEE
At 31 December 2024 M2024%F 12 A31H 73,837 - 43,294 117,131
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12A31H - 12,116 14,328 26,444

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
following periods:

Trademarks
Customer relationship

10— 15 years
10 — 13 years

At the end of the reporting period, the management of the
Group determined that, due to the economic uncertainty in
the foreseeable future, there was indication of impairment on
certain trademarks and customer relationship. The recoverable
amounts of these assets, determined based on their value in use,
is lower than their carrying amounts. Accordingly, impairment
losses of HK$8,885,000 and HK$12,518,000, respectively, has
been recognised in profit or loss during the year.

BIZEERATFRIABRERE

Gk
EFR%

10 -154F
10 -134F

RBERAR AEEEEERA  ARA
BRRRZEETHEEE  ETEHER
BEEFARHBRRBETR ZEEERE
HEAEEET 2R SERRER
EfE - Bt - 5B 518 8,885,000/% 7T &
12,518,000/ 8L E 9 BN F A B &= F R o
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20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE N. REBEANTZHESR
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiExT FHEIT
Cost of investment in an associate REFE R R 2B 120 120
Exchange realignment b 5% (4) 4
116 116

REEBERBFHEWT

Particular of the associate of the Group is as follows:

Proportion of ownership
interest held by the Group

AEB iR
Name of associate Place of incorporation 2024 2023  Principal activities
BENREE SEAR AR 32 3t B 2024 F 20235 EEXH
IEREREEFRAR Mainland China 25% 25%  Designing, producing an
R A, publishing advertisements
B3t BUERBHRS

The followings are the summarised financial information of the

associate:

2024
2024 5
HK$°000
FTHET
The Group’s share of result of the associate ~ ANEEE D (HEFE QB £ -

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in an A& BB A QAR 2
associate BREE 116

AT RBERAMBEERE

2023
2023 %
HK$'000
THAT

116
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21.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 21.

BATEFNERZNEMEE

2024 2023
2024 % 2023 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAIT
Financial assets at FVTPL: EBERAFEFTABEN
SRMEE
Listed equity investment in Hong Kong (Note i) &8 _EHRAEIRE (Fiai) 2,587 4,874
Unlisted equity investments (Note ii) JE_EmAREIRE (FsEil) 33,579 28,341
Club debenture (Note iii) BAES (M) 5,272 5,272
41,438 38,487
Financial asset mandatorily measured at #HIIRAFEF ABRTEN
FVTPL: TREE:
Structured notes (Note iv) HEEUEEE (H:Tiv) - 215,679
41,438 254,166
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HEHABMELZDTET
Current assets MENEE - 215,679
Non-current assets EMBNEE 41,438 38,487
41,438 254,166

Notes:

The listed equity investment represents ordinary shares of an
entity listed in Hong Kong. This investment is not held for trading,
instead, it is held for long-term strategic purposes. The directors
of the Company have elected to measure this investment at
FVTPL.

The unlisted equity investments include an amount of
HK$2,946,000 (2023: HK$2,963,000) which represents
investment in 5% unlisted equity issued by a private entity
established in Mainland China. This entity is principally engaged
in the testing and inspection of the safety and quality of food
products manufacturing and sales of instant food. The remaining
HK$30,633,000 (2023: HK$25,378,000) represents investment in
26.68% unlisted equity issued by a private entity in India, which
is engaged in processing and export of frozen-dried seafood,
spices and herbs. The Company does not have the right to
participate into the board decision and normal operation decision.
Therefore, the management considers the Company does not
have significant influence over the private entity in India.

The directors of the Company have elected to measure these
investments as FVTPL.

R

EHREREENEE LTEENTEE
B R EUFFHEEE - EARKIERY
RESVERE - AR EFDREFEZK
B R A FER AR ©

°

JE £ R M 18 & B 452,946,000 T
(20234 : 2,963,000/ 7T) * R+
A 2 AN B EEEEIT 25% LT
BAPZEE ZERFEREREMEL
2EEAARBRAREEREEHNR
B M # 130,633,000 7T (20234 :
25,378,000/87T) IR —MEENEFLAERE
#1722668%FELMBAFR ZIRE » %
AEREMIRE DA RE G « FE R
EE - APRIEHSHEEEERERAF
ERRE o Hlt - EIRERARATRE
ENAAERYESATES -

ARFEFCREFEZFRERRAY
BEFt AR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

21.

22.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(continueq)

Notes: (continued)

Club debenture is stated at fair value which is determined by
reference to market price.

As at 31 December 2023, the structured notes of US$27,621,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$215,679,000 are issued by a
financial institution in Hong Kong. These structured notes are
interest-rate linked instruments with enhanced interest rates
which accrue on a daily basis and will be automatically extended
every month by an additional month unless the Group exercises
the right to redeem the instruments on maturity date. Thus,
it is not held solely for payment for principal and interest and
therefore, it is measured at FVTPL. The structured notes were
disposed of during the year ended 31 December 2024.

Details of the fair value measurement of financial assets at
FVTPL are set out in note 37(c).

DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation of the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred
tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

21.

22.

BAHEStNEENEMEE

(&)

CERRC-))

i.  BAEATRATESE  AFENSE
TEETE -

iv.  RM2023%12A318 +27,621,000% T
(HE M 49215,679,00078 7T) M & # 1M
ZEH—HEESBMBBET ZSEE
(CEBABFRAH TR » EFREE T
e BRIFAEERIPATFEERT
EmER GRIBEAEHER1EA -
Hit - HXFEEAERZAAE RFEM
A Bt HUATFEABZ - #2
2024FF12 A3V ALFE  #ENERED

EHE -
BATEFABENEREEN QA TER
SFBEHEAIFE37() -

IEIEFIH
REIGEMBARRE  ETREHIEE

ENABEREHE - UTARMB2HA
B SHRE IR A ERETT 2 DT

2024 2023

2024 & 20234

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT T

Deferred tax assets IRIEFRIAE (73,925) (69,684)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIABE 105,938 93,117
32,013 23,433
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22.

DEFERRED TAXATION (continved 22. IREFIE (&)
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets UTREFNRENFECEAEZRETN
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior BHEBEREERAE
years:
Fair value
adjustment Undistributed
arising from  Accelerated earnings of the
business tax Mainland China
combination  depreciation  subsidiaries Tax losses Others Total
EEBAH RE R
EENATE HEAR
#E  NERERE AABEF REgEs At @3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Wzz1) (HzE2)
At 1 January 2023 R202351A1R - 31,681 21,974 - (57,041) (3,386)
Charged (credited) to profitor loss ~ MBRF I (FA) - 19,081 16,559 (13,967) 974 2,647
Exchange realignment fEH A - - 3,822 10 340 4172
At 31 December 2023 2023512 A318 - 50,762 42,355 (13,957) (55,727) 23,433
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries  WEEMBA RIS 24,836 - - - (3,550) 21,286
Charged (credited) to profitorloss — RBZSBIR (HA) - (4,026) (8,397) 13,957 (12,133) (10,599)
Exchange realignment [ - 616 (208) - (2,515) 2,107)
At 31 December 2024 M 2024512 A31H 24,836 47352 33,750 - (73,925) 32,013
Notes: Fi3E

1. Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by Mainland

China subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to
undistributed profits of Mainland China subsidiaries amounting to

approximately HK$675,000,000 (2023: HK$847,100,000).

2. Amount mainly represents deductible temporary differences

arising from provision for retirement benefits, accrued salaries

and promotion expenses.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has other

deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$295,700,000 (2023: HK$222,908,000) available for
offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of approximately HK$295,700,000 (2023:

HK$222,908,000) of such deductible temporary differences.

1. R IE R B TS R - R 2008F 1 A
1HRE - UBTERALHE R BREZ &
MBIz Kk EHGAEHMBTEIR - 5t
BB P i B B R B R o B i A FE A R
M = % #7675,000,00078 7T (20234 :
847,100,000 7T) MER & B ISR KT R 5T
IRIEEFIIE -

2. ZREBIBHRERKEN EtHeRE
FHERR X EEMEE 2 THRE R EE
B

RIREHIR - AN E G H A A 0R b
M 2 %5 #9295,700,00078 JT (20234 :
222,908,000 7t) A 4K 5 K H@ F o
2 #7295,700,000% 7T (20234 :
222,908,000 7T) B] F03 & B 1 = B 18
RELEFIEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

22.  DEFERRED TAXATION fcontinued 22. IREFIE (&)

Notes: (continued) M5 (48)

3. As at 31 December 2024, the Group had unused tax losses 3. R2024F12A318 "EBKRKEFHZ
of approximately HK$96,774,000 (2023: HK$212,575,000) TIBE1E4) /% 96,774,0008 7T (2023 4 :
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset in 212,575,000 7T) + AT SR AE F o
respect of the tax losses of approximately HK$96,774,000 (2023: P 4 LR IE 5 18 40 96,774,000 78 7T (2023
HK$127,987,000) has been recognised due to the unpredictability £ £ 127,987,000 L) MRIELHIBE
of future profit streams. B W TR A TRRIAR A AR
Included in unrecognised tax losses as at 31 December 2024 R2024% 12 A31 BZ AHERFIEEEA
were losses of HK$81,551,000 (2023: HK$104,542,000) that will AT B HfE .2 B518 81,551,000 8 7T
expire as follows: (20234 : 104,542,000/87T) :

2024 2023
2024 5 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHTT
2024 2024 F - 21,976
2025 2025 F 19,326 19,949
2026 2026 F 31,030 34,977
2027 2027 F 25,380 26,056
2028 2028 %F 1,534 1,584
2029 2029 F 4,281 -
81,551 104,542
The remaining unrecognised tax loss as at 31 December 2024 and 20244 [ 2023F 12 A31H 28 T K
2023 will be carried forward indefinitely. TR E B A ER A -
42 £
23. LOAN RECEIVABLE 23. EWER

The loan receivable is interest-free and is repayable by quarterly
instalments over a period of ten years, beginning in July 2014
and with the last payment in 2024. Repayments are guaranteed
by the shareholders of the borrower.

Details of impairment assessment of loan receivable are set out
in note 37(b).
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ERERAERELBRTFRN (B2014%F
7R#EE E2024EREBETIL) BES
BRI AMEBEER -

HER - B
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24.

25,

INVENTORIES U =FE
2024 2023
2024 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T
Raw materials R 174,841 145,627
Work in progress £8m 57,529 62,677
Finished goods P & 244,637 206,711
477,007 415,015

TRADE RECEIVABLES/OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 25,

& 5 B AR, H i FEU 3R

=+,
DEPOSITS B BFIERES
Trade receivables B 5 EWERER
2024 2023
2024 & 2023 %
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FABT
Trade receivables — sales of goods Z SRR - HE™ M 415,809 378,228
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEESERE (6,096) (5,374)
409,713 372,854

At 1 January 2023, trade receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to HK$430,898,000.

MR2023F1A1H REHRFHNENE

5 U BR 7 A 430,898,000 8 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

25,

TRADE RECEIVABLES/OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 25,

DEPOSITS fcontined)

Trade receivables (continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of
allowance for credit losses, presented based on the invoice date,
which approximates the respective revenue recognition dates at
the end of the reporting period.

B 5 FEW AR H fi FE U X
- BRRERESE (&)

B EKERR ()

AT ARMEHRIZER A H (ER U AR
RAMRE) 2528 5B (HkR(E
EEBRRE) 2RBROM -

2024 2023

2024 F 20234

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET AT

0 to 30 days 0E 30K 243,366 268,154
31 to 90 days 31290k 141,156 92,198
91 to 180 days 91E 180K 13,668 12,502
Over 180 days HBiE 180 K 11,523 -
409,713 372,854

The average credit period for sales of goods is ranged from 30
days to 120 days.

As at 31 December 2024, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$232,052,000 (2023: HK$154,449,000) which are past
due as at the end of the reporting period. Out of the past due
balances, HK$11,405,000 (2023: HK$6,393,000) has been past
due 90 days or more and is not considered in default as the
customers have good repayment history during the year and
over the past years, and these customers are sizeable foods
distributors and retailors in Hong Kong, Mainland China and
Korea.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are set
out in note 37(b).

166 NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB RRER AR

HEERZFHEEBNTI08E120H -

2024128318 AEBEZE S ER
BR 3% 45 82 B 15 BR T {B 48 58 /5 232,052,000
7 7T (20234 : 154,449,000 T) 2 JE
IRBRESR » N ERRESRE S - K|
HA %% #& 7R 0 11,405,000/ 7T (20234 :
6,393,000/ t) B @ B0 KBk A £ - 1
TRABEY  ARAEFPRAFERBIHL
FHRERMERL ARZERFLAT
B PR RERNARR RS HEE K
TER  WZSEFHALEEYRES -

B 5 BUWIR R 2 BERT (15 SR K
37(b) °



25,

TRADE RECEIVABLES/OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 25,

DEPOSITS fcontined)

Other receivables, prepayments and deposits
The following is the analysis of other receivables, prepayments
and deposits at the end of the reporting period:

B 5 FEW AR H fi FE U X
- BRRERESE (&)

HMEWRER - BARERES
LA A i AR EL A B JOGROR - TR AR
BRBEEZ A

2024 2023
2024 & 2023 %
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHIT
Other receivables H b fEUFIAE 22,750 24,696
Prepayments B FIE 18,343 15,109
Prepaid value added tax and other taxes TEIEER R E A1 17,813 10,516
Rental deposits HEZES 2,516 2,516
Utilities and other deposits KEREAMZ S 15,658 15,997
77,080 68,834

Analysed as: DIH
Current BnER 74,564 66,318
Non-current JERNER 2,516 2,516
77,080 68,834

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables are set

out in note 37(b).

H A & YRR B R B R A S BN M
37(b) °
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O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

26.

AMOUNT(S) DUE FROM (TO) ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY/
FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables from
fellow subsidiaries (which are unsecured, interest-free and with
credit terms ranging from 30 to 40 days) presented based on
the invoice date, which approximate the respective revenue
recognition dates at the end of the reporting period.

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries:

% FEW (FER) BERREAT

/TE) Z Mt B R SR IR

ST AR RS AR A (R AR
REMIAE) 2512 FANEATE SEY
R (BEIER - £ RAB0EIORE
BEH8) Z BRI DI -

e W [5) 2 Bf B8 2 R 0OR -

2024 2023

2024 F 20234

HK$’000 HK$'000

FiB B

0 to 30 days 0E30K 13,924 23,263
31 to 90 days 31290k 27,046 11,086
91 to 180 days 91 £180K 662 -
41,632 34,349

At 31 December 2024, included in the Group’s trade receivables
from fellow subsidiaries are receivables with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$27,708,000 (2023: HK$11,086,000) which
are past due as at the reporting period. Out of the past due
balances, HK$662,000 (2023: nil) has been past due 90 days
or more and is not considered in default since the fellow
subsidiaries have good repayment history and strong financial
position to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables to related
companies (which are unsecured, interest-free and with credit
terms ranging from 30 to 40 days) presented based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period.
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M2024F 128318 KEBEK AR ZH
BRARIZESEKERPERDERSEAR
27,708,000 7T (20234F : 11,806,000
T0) ZEMWEER - BERBERRES RS
B o PN HA g EE P 662,000 JT (2023
FE) BEH0RIA L R RAE
# - AAERZRMEBRRESR RITERLE
RBRVBERL  TREHNBITESYD
WEREE -

UTBRBEHRIESEANEY 2 HE
NEESEMNER (AEEE 28K AE
30240 K ZEEH) ZHREDIT -



AMOUNT(S) DUE FROM (TO) ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY/ 26. FEUX (FELY) mAdHERR A
FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES (continued) /S ERMBARKE (#)

Amount due to ultimate holding company: BN BRAEZERARIE :

2024 2023
2024 % 2023 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT T
0 to 30 days 0&30K 9,294 11,808
31 to 90 days 31 290K 8,067 7,091
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180K 12,475 10,070
Over 180 days HBiE 180K 441 724
30,277 29,693

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries: PIEEN: PNCE S
2024 2023
2024 % 2023 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
0 to 30 days 0FE 30K 4,634 4,231
31 to 90 days 31 290K 22 6
91 to 180 days 91 £180K 151 95
4,807 4,332

EWSEERARRIERIEESLE - &
HH - 2EREARBEREEE -

The amount due from ultimate holding company is non-trade in
nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

6= S i ONCIDNIEESI PN/ = b
ERHEF BRI 37() ©

Details of impairment assessment of amounts due from ultimate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries are set out in note
37(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

21.

28.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/TIME DEPOSITS/RESTRICTED
BANK DEPOSITS

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from
0.01% to 5.30% (2023: 0.01% to 5.33%) per annum. The
time deposits with original maturity over three months but
not exceeding one year carry fixed interest rate ranging from
1.50% to 3.40% (2023: 0.10% to 5.33%) per annum. The time
deposits with original maturity over one year carry fixed interest
rate at 2.65% (2023: 1.90% to 3.85%) per annum.

The restricted bank deposits represent the balance held solely
for the purpose of settling the consideration for the acquisition
of the equity interest of ABC Pastry in accordance with the
terms outlined in the share purchase agreement. The repayment
is scheduled on the second anniversary of the date of the
acquisition (i.e. 2 December 2027), therefore, the balance is
classified as a non-current asset. The deposits carry interest at a
variable rate of 1.5% per annum.

Details of impairment assessment of restricted bank deposits,
time deposits and bank balances are set out in note 37(b).

TRADE PAYABLES/OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Trade payables
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

21.

28.

ReERBREEEY EHE
o ZREIRITER

8B 17 £ % $20.01% £5.30% (20234 :
0.01% E533%) 2 MIFEFFEFE - R
BB =@AN LETRB—FNT T
K 12 1.50% £ 3.40% (2023 4F : 0.10% =
5.33%) ZEFEFFEFE - REEIH—F
LA FB)E HATFR% 2.65% (2023 4F © 1.90%
£3.85%) ZETFEFHEGTE ©

PR HIER1TIF SRIE 2 BAR R IR s At
{1 FR 45 75 UK B8 ABC Pastry %7 /OB M 45
Bttt  EEAHTERKRBERHE R
(2027912 828) » AKX HBH
DERIERDEE - TRIRFHFEREGF
1.5%FH8 ©

ZRBRITER - EHE A RRITHE 84
ZREFHEF BRI 37(D) ©

%Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
BERESER

85 ENER
NTNARBRERRIZEZEHERIZES
JETEBRFRERIE AT -

2024 2023

2024 & 20234

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHIT

0 to 30 days 0E30K 139,516 110,643
31 to 90 days 31 290K 33,520 38,534
91 to 180 days 91 E 180K 1,074 922
Over 180 days BB 180 K 7 221
174,117 150,320

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 60 days.
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28.

TRADE PAYABLES/OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (ontinved)

28. EBHEMRMHithEMNK
EHREFEHR &)

Other payables and accruals HisEARERETER
The following is the analysis of other payables and accruals at AT AR RS B R E AL BT 5IE R gt B
the end of the reporting period: Rz -
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
Accruals for promotion and advertising EEMEEHAI ZEGTER
expenses 212,922 254,799
Construction payables FETEEEEFIA 5,927 12,052
Staff costs and welfare payables 8 TR R FEfT1E A 99,541 109,007
Value added tax and other tax payables FEATIRER R E A IR 13,104 9,249
Refund liabilities (Note) REEE (D) 116,978 124,998
Consideration payable (note 35(b)) FERR(E (BFRE35(b)) 5,135 -
Other payables and accruals H At ET A R ST E A 264,472 156,633
718,079 666,738
Analysed as: MR-
Current BNER 712,944 666,738
Non-current FEBNEA 5,135 -
718,079 666,738
Note: The refund liabilities arose from outstanding rebates in relation to M3 REBERRAE TEFPHEERORE
the goods sold to certain customers. ~E -
ANNUAL REPORT 2024 | —ZT = U4 F 3R
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

=
29.  LEASE LIABILITIES 2. HEAE
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FAIT
Lease liabilities payable: ENEEE8E:
Within one year —FNR 7,630 8,559
Within a period of more than one year but —F A LB BART
not exceeding two years 5,561 770
Within a period of more than two years but ~ MRFIA BT EBBERF
not exceeding five years 2,949 343
16,140 9,672
Less: Amount due for settlement with B mEBAEE AR 12MEA
12 months shown under current liabilities SR E T A E SRR (7,630) (8,559)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months  JERBAEE TR 12MEA%E
shown under non-current liabilities FH M RN A E ROE 8,510 1,113
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to HARHEEA BN INE TS E R X
lease liabilities range from 3.45% to 4.75% (2023: from 3.45% NF3.45%F4.75%(2023%F : 1F3.45%
10 4.5%). £45%)
Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies of the HERELEREE TR 2 ThEEBIIE -

functional currencies of the relevant group entities.
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30.

DEFERRED INCOME

30. IEFEUIN

The following is the movement in deferred income in the

current and prior year.

TR [ B F RS -

2024 2023

2024 5 20234

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

At the beginning of the year F4) 21,993 20,219
Government grant received in relation to BLUE & EE PR /R AL

acquisition of assets (Note) (FF#E) 13,000 6,441

Amortisation in the current year REF S (4,737) (1,381)

Exchange realignment PE 3 S % (409) (3,286)

At end of the year Fix 29,847 21,993

Analysed as: DIH

Current ViE2) 5,499 3,378

Non-current IETE 24,348 18,615

29,847 21,993

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group received
government subsidy of HK$13,000,000 (2023: HK$6,441,000) for
the acquisition of machinery in Mainland China. The amount has
been treated as deferred income. The amount is amortised and
transferred to income over the useful lives of the relevant asset.

FGE -

BH E2024F12A31BEFE A&
5] gt 7 AR B A 3 LS A T 1S U & B
13,000,00075 7T, (20234 : 6,441,000/87T) °
ZEERABRTERARE - ZSERAH
BEGAFHASRHEREREZRA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

31.  SHARE CAPITAL 3. BRA
Number of
shares Share capital
BHEEE [N
HK$'000
FAET
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE :
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023 and 720231518
31 December 2024 2023F 12 A318 K
202412 A31H 1,043,691,480 2,941,441
Details of the shares held under the share award scheme (note AT AR R M 7 32 A BB Bt 8358 2 ik
32) are set out below: eEelE
Average Number of Value of
purchase price shares held shares
TIHBEE MEROAEE RHER
HK$ HK$'000
BT FExT
At 1 January 2023 M20235F1A1H 6.0 15,520 93
Shares purchased from secondary IR ERENETEIIE T A
market under share award scheme FominEERRG 6.2 287,000 1,793
Shares vested under share award BRERNDEBECHEB
scheme f& 17 6.3 (266,420) (1,684)
At 31 December 2023 #R2023F12A31H 5.6 36,100 202
Shares purchased from secondary IRDEENETEIIE T A
market under share award scheme FominEERRG 5.1 504,863 2,580
Shares vested under share award RERNDEBECHE
scheme f& 17 5.1 (391,700) (1,992)
At 31 December 2024 R20249F12 A31H 5.3 149,263 790
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32.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

On 7 March 2016, a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) was adopted by the Company. The Share
Award Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing from 7 March 2016. Pursuant to the rules of the
Share Award Scheme, the Group has set up a trust for the
purpose of administering the Share Award Scheme and holding
the awarded shares before they are vested.

On 6 April 2023 and 29 September 2023, a total of 266,420
award shares (the “2023 Awarded Shares”) of the Company
have been awarded and vested to certain selected employees
(including but not limited to directors, executives, officers
and other employees, whether full-time or part-time, of any
members of the Group) at no consideration.

On 14 May 2024 and 11 June 2024, a total of 391,700 award
shares (the “2024 Awarded Shares”) of the Company have been
awarded and vested to certain selected employees (including
but not limited to directors, executives, officers and other
employees, whether full-time or part-time, of any members of
the Group) at no consideration.

32.

U AERARX S
MR2016F3 A7H » AR BIHEM K ZE
B (TR EER TS - BRHDREEF &
B2016F37RBAM AHTF - R
B RENGTE 2R A - REEBRLE
U EBRRNERERREBAIRAE
HEENAR(D ©

M2023F4 568 K2023498298 « #
266,420 fr AN RIS ENR () ([2023 48
BiRD]) EUERERTREBNE T
ETEREE (BEETRAREETMNKER
RIZEE - 1THRAE 8B E REME
B (T2 FE)) -

20244555148 K2024%6 5118 -
H45391,700 AR B EI D ([2024 4
BERGD]) CUERERTFTIEBNET
BETEES (BIEATRNALEETMAK
BRAIZES - THAE - afiBERHE
RS (T Bskzn)) -
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O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

32.  SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (continued . UK BERMARKXS &)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s TERBEBRFANEESFENARD RN ER
share award held by employees during the years: e

Number of shares awarded
ERRHHE

Balance as at Awarded Vested Balance as at

1 January during during 31 December

Category of grantees Date of grant Vesting period 2024 the year the year 2024

R2024% R0uE

1818 128318

ERAERE RiLAH | L 28 FREm ERER &8

Directors 14 May 2024 14 May 2024 - 215,600 (215,600) -
5% 2004555148 2004558148

Employees 11 June 2024 11 June 2024 - 176,100 (176,100) -
g8 AEGA1H 202467118

- 391,700 (391,700) -

Number of shares awarded
REROHE

Balance as at Awarded Vested Balance as at

1 January during during 31 December

Category of grantees Date of grant Vesting period 2023 the year the year 2023

HAB3% IVEES

1H18 12A318

ERAEE KBS GELE i EREE) ENGEE b=

Directors 6 April 2023 6 April 2023 - 99,880 (99,380) -

5% 0354868 354868

Directors 29 September 2023 29 September 2023 - 166,540 (166,540) -
EE 203F9A298 20234594298

- 266,420 (266,420) -

The estimated fair values of the 2023 Awarded Shares and
2024 Awarded Shares are HK$6.3 and HK$5.1 respectively per
share based on the market trading price of the share at the
grant date. The total fair value of the 2023 Awarded Shares and
2024 Awarded Shares are HK$1,684,000 and HK$1,992,000
respectively.

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$1,992,000 for

the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: HK$1,684,000) in
relation to share award granted by the Company.
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BRI B IR 2 TS (E - 2023 F 58
AR 0 ]2 2024 FEEEN IR 2 (5t AT ED
R AER6.38 T R5.187T ° 2023 F 12 E)
[& 15 % 2024 F BN AN 2 N T ELLED B
41,684,000 77T 5 1,992,000 87T °

REBREE2024F12A3MB ILEE
MARARHEZBHEEERMA L B8
1,992,000/ 7T (20234F : 1,684,000/87T) °



33.

34.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 3. EARKIE
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAIT
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition B % 4B R ERA BSHRER A
of property, plant and equipment BEsEBBEDE  BER
contracted for but not provided in the BB ERT
consolidated financial statements 14,594 49,983
RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME U, RIAEFIFE

Defined contribution plan

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme
which is registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong.
The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. Employees who
were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment
of the MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the
ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all
new employees joining the Group on or after 1 December 2000
are required to join the MPF Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the plan
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a monthly
cap of HK$1,500.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from
both employees and the Group at 5% of the employee’s basic
salary. The pension costs charged to profit or loss represent
contributions paid or payable to these funds by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of these schemes.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in Mainland China
are members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the Government of Mainland China. The Group’s
Mainland China subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their employees’ payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make
the required contributions under the scheme.

ERBMKETE

REE 2 ERER RN BIRDIEMZ
ERHRETE ([BRRREE ] REER
B H R TEE A BURPIK L Z @B E R
BEart s ([RESHE]))  ZEAHHZE
ERAEEEESFHRGE  AXTATE
ZESRHA - ERESEEIKLATARE
BAGTEIREZREEZHES EBE
RAGHEERRESE - HRNE2000
FRATBHIZRIMARNEE 2B R
BRIWASHEBEDE -

MBS EINEmME AEEKEES
ZABREBTIE Y 5% MerafEHHER
FRAHKERA1,50087T °

BERAFERERMAKERREEER
e 5% FAEHHK - BIEENRZE
RERAEREBRZEAEREZLE
EEHREEL 2 H#K

RRB 2 PEAMHEBAREE S ETE
BURFERE 2 BRERRIKENETE - AR
APEANLHEARAREETE
Bt R KRR B R - AR %
BERMNATHRIE - AEBRZEKRENE
Bz B ERRBEZAI S EEHR

TR e
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34.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME (confinued/

Defined contribution plan (continued)

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of HK$68,495,000
(2023: HK$74,324,000) represents contributions payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
plans.

At 31 December 2024 and 2023, there were no forfeited
contributions which arose upon employees leaving the
retirements plan and which are available to reduce the
contributions payable in the future years.

Defined benefit plan

Obligation to pay LSP under Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57)

For the Group’s subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong, pursuant
to the Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57, the Group has the
obligation to pay LSP to qualifying employees in Hong Kong
under certain circumstances (e.g. dismissal by employers or
upon retirement), subject to a minimum of 5 years employment
period, based on the following formula:

Last monthly wages (before termination of employment) x 2/3
x Years of service

Last monthly wages are capped at HK$22,500 while the
amount of long service payment shall not exceed HK$390,000.
This obligation is accounted for as a post-employment defined
benefit plan.

Furthermore, the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
passed in 1995 permits the Group to utilise the Group'’s
mandatory MPF contributions, plus/minus any positive/negative
returns thereof, for the purpose of offsetting LSP payable to an
employee (the "Offsetting Arrangement’).

The Amendment Ordinance was gazetted on 17 June 2022,
which abolishes the use of the accrued benefits derived from
employers’ mandatory MPF contributions to offset the LSP. The
Abolition will officially take effect on the Transition Date (i.e., 1
May 2025). Separately, the Government of the HKSAR is also
expected to introduce a subsidy scheme to assist employers for
a period of 25 years after the Transition Date on the LSP payable
by employers up to a certain amount per employee per year.
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34,

BIREFIFTE (&)

EREMHAE (B)

W IE &= R 2 48 B 68,495,000/ 7T
(2023 4F : 74,324,000 7T) fEAREEILE

ZIRAIFTEE LBl M2 S et BIEE AN -

M2024F % 2023512 A31 8 @ ERE
BiR MR IRET &I E A ] HARRFERD
FERHEF R -

EFEBAEE

WRIZEE (EIRIXAI) (5 57 B) X1
RERH & 2%
RAREREELENHEAR  RER
BiEPIES7E  AEBEREERBETHE
(B R REIRKR) ERA TR
AR GRENEREEXNRARE S -
RIEREHRSF

RO EATE (RBEELRT) x 2/3 < IR
R

s —{EATITE LR A22,50087T Mk
BIRR 7% € /) & RE 1S #8183 390,000/8 7T ©
ZEMERABBEEREATEIALR -

ESN - 71995 FIBIBRY R B EATE TS
BH R ARSEA AR EENRE S
B EOREEMIEABR - A
HHEHRENRERG S (EEZH]D -

BTG R2022F6 B17BHIE - &
BUESRESEHA T EENRFMEHIESE
B R RHRGE S - BUBLZHEB R B
JEHHEA (BN2025F 5 A1 H) IE=VAERK © I
N BERBANTHE B ERERE B
BE 25 FAM L —IBmHAETE - LEIE
FYXFNENEISF —T2BNRARS
& o



34.

3b.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME (confinued/

Defined benefit plan (continued)

Obligation to pay LSP under Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57) (continued)

Under the Amendment Ordinance, the Group’s mandatory MPF
contributions, plus/minus any positive/negative returns, after
the Transition Date can continue to be applied to offset the
pre-Transition Date LSP obligation but are not eligible to offset
the post-Transition Date LSP obligation. Furthermore, the LSP
obligation before the Transition Date will be grandfathered
and calculated based on the Last monthly wages immediately
preceding the Transition Date and the years of service up
to that date. The Amendment Ordinance has impact on the
Group’s LSP liability with respect to employees that participate
in MPF Scheme and the Group has accounted for the offsetting
mechanism and its abolition as disclosed in note 3.2.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Acquisition of Gaemi Food

On 3 September 2024, the Group completed the
acquisition of 100% interest in Gaemi Food. Gaemi Food
is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales of
snacks and was acquired with the objective of strategically
positioning itself for expansion and enhanced market
presence across the Asia Pacific region. The acquisition
has been accounted for as acquisition of business using
the acquisition method.

Consideration transferred

Cash Be

34,

BIREFIFTE (&)
EFEBEAEE (F)

RIZEE (FERIXAI) (£ 57 B) X1
RERB £ 225 (&)

RIBIERT B - ROBE B TR - AEER
sl MR e MM, R M E, B
a8 AT LAMRAE RN BE B B AT R A
ME2E® - ETBERNEHEERABR
MERBRBEER - BHN - BIE B HATR
EHRESEHEBRE  UREBEZRBE
BHAT&ENAF RBEZBNREFER
HEITEE o BUAMTEE 3.2 PRHEER - 1ERTIEDI
AREH2 MBI EEB N RIR
BeEBBRTE  MASED K HEE
B R EBUE L HETTER R

35. W BB /B 22 )

(a) Ui Gaemi Food
R2024F 9 A3H - AEBEBEHAK
B Gaemi Food 2 100% &2 ° Gaemi
Food EEHWFRERBETR - MK
8% Gaemi Food § 7E /A 8 K Hb [ #E 3R
RIRFIISIE A RIERISIE TN » 3%
U R E A BRD AU 25 -

FregzERE
HK$'000
FET

286,940

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$1,345,000
have been excluded from the consideration transferred
and have been recognised as an expense in the current
year, within the “other expenses” line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Uy 8% AR R A 7K 1,345,000 8 T B R AT
HEREPRIG  URAFELREE
mREMEEBATAH L]
HE R ERAEMAX
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35.  ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 3. WEMBAR (©)
(a) Acquisition of Gaemi Food (continued) (a) UYiBE Gaemi Food (&)
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the RKBARZ TREEEREE
date of acquisition BEE
HK$'000
FHT
Property, plant and equipment LENT =N 44,300
Right-of-use assets EREEE 157
Brand name o R 73,837
Customer relationships EP@AEF 44,430
Deferred tax assets RIETIREE 309
Inventories eSS 7,603
Trade and other receivables B 5 M H b FEGRIE 11,208
Cash and cash equivalents Be MReEEY 13,697
Trade and other payable B 5 K EAER FRIE (11,084)
Tax payable JERTRR IR (2,574)
Lease liabilities HEaE (157)
Deferred tax liabilities RIETRIEA & (24,836)
156,890
Goodwill arising on acquisition WBEXZEE
HK$'000
FHIT
Consideration transferred FresERE 286,940
Less: recognised amounts of net assets & : FTNIBE EFE 2 RS
acquired (156,890)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEBELE 2 HE 130,050

Goodwill arose on the acquisition of Gaemi Food because
the cost of the combination included amounts in relation
to the benefit of expected synergies, revenue growth,
future market development and the assembled workforce
of the business. These benefits are not recognised
separately from goodwill because they do not meet the
recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.
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Ui 88 Gaemi Food s EAE - RHA
BEFRABIERERGRBE - I
AR - RRTHEREREEES
FBFEEBSE - AREEFET
AR EREE 2 ERIZE -
REHESFMER o

B ZERBELEZEEY AN
B o



3b.  ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (contineq/

(a)

Acquisition of Gaemi Food (continued)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of Gaemi Food

WKEEM B AR (&)

Yz B Gaemi Food (%)
Wi BE Gaemi Food 23 & 7; i F58

HK$'000

FAT

Cash consideration paid ENESRE 286,940
Less: cash and cash equivalents B TR e IR EEMER

balances acquired (13,697)

273,243

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group
Included in the profit for the year is HK$4,556,000
attributable to the additional business generated by Gaemi
Food. Revenue for the year includes HK$33,448,000
generated from Gaemi Food.

Had the acquisition of Gaemi Food been completed
on 1 January 2024, revenue for the year of the Group
would have been HK$3,885,599,000, and profit for
the year would have been HK$212,984,000. The pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and
is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results
of operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed on
1 January 2024, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit of the
Group had Gaemi Food been acquired at the beginning of
the current year, the directors of the Company calculated
depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets based on the recognised amounts of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets at
the date of the acquisition.

W R E[EEE 2 &

& N F B 3E 2K B Gaemi Food 718
7515 4,556,000 7870 © F RURA
£3 1% Gaemi Food £ 4 7 33,448,000
BT

i B2024F1HA1H & Ak W B
Gaemi Food * "EBEF AW A A
3,885,599,000 7% 7T » 1M & A3 A %5
#212,984,000/8 7T ° fEEARHEM
FHEZH WA —FERREEER
2024 F 1 A1 AR EREEERE
S ZIRAREEZELE - T RIER
RIRELETRA -

EEEASEBRRNAFINRE
Gaemi Food Z [ #E ] Wa A Ko 7
B ARRIEZREME - BERE
BAREREEENKBAMZ O
REBAEYE - BERREARE
REEENE -
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35.  ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (contnued/
(b) Acquisition of ABC Pastry

On 2 December 2024, the Group completed the
acquisition of 100% interest in ABC Pastry. ABC Pastry
is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales
of frozen foods and was acquired with the objective of
strategically positioning itself for expansion and enhanced
market presence across the Asia Pacific region. The
acquisition has been accounted for as acquisition of
business using the acquisition method.

3. WEMBAR &)

(b)

Ui ABC Pastry

F2024F 12 A28 AEBD TK
U 88 ABC Pastry 2 100% # z ° ABC
Pasty EFEN TR ERHEELRR
S MUREE ABC Pastry § fEF 28 At
&SR MR T ISE A RIERRE 1T
7 o ZULHEER AN W B R A BR D1 A U P
ES

Consideration transferred Pz g
HK$'000
T
Cash Re 163,541
Consideration payable FERRAE 5,135
Total k) 168,676

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$1,695,000
have been excluded from the consideration transferred
and have been recognised as an expense in the current
year, within the “other expenses” line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the
date of acquisition (determined on a provisional
basis)

U BB B RARK 7 1,695,000 8 T B A FT
EENREPSR  YRAFELEEE
HREMEERARAEMEAL]
HEFHERAEMAT

RUBAHZTKBEERCHE
AEE (REEREETE)

HK$'000

T

Property, plant and equipment W - BB &K 5,629
Right-of-use assets EREAE 7,906
Deferred tax assets FIETRIBAE 3,241
Inventories L= 3,761
Trade and other receivables & 5 N H A FENGRIA 6,503
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 8,269
Trade and other payable B 5 M EH AR FRIE (18,245)
Lease liabilities HERE (7,906)
Tax payable eI (465)
8,693

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A



35.  ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continueq)
(b) Acquisition of ABC Pastry (continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition (determined on
a provisional basis)

3. WEMBAR (©)

(b) UeEE ABC Pastry (&)
WiEEE 2 FE (RETEEET)

HK$'000

FHT

Consideration transferred FregE (B 168,676
Less: recognised amounts of net assets 7 : FTNIBEEFE 2 CHERSE

acquired (8,693)

Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEE £ 2 B 159,983

Goodwill arose on the acquisition of ABC Pastry because
the cost of the combination included amounts in relation
to the benefit of expected synergies, revenue growth,
future market development and the assembled workforce
of the business. These benefits are not recognised
separately from goodwill because they do not meet the
recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Net cash outflow on acquisition of ABC Pastry

U 8% ABC Pastry FEAHE - REA
BT AR BB iR R Aas - A
BR - RRTSGERREEEKLD
B8 - ARZENRTH
B RRIER A B 2 ERIRE - BUR
HRE SR o

B REFEEEEZHES A
i o

YW ABC Pastry 2 B £ i i FEE

HK$'000
FHT
Cash consideration paid BRRERE 163,541
Less: cash and cash equivalents B TRER e IR SEMER
balances acquired (8,269)
155,272
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35.  ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continueq)
(b) Acquisition of ABC Pastry (continued)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group
Included in the profit for the year is HK$1,517,000
attributable to the additional business generated by ABC
Pastry. Revenue for the year includes HK$4,344,000
generated from ABC Pastry.

Had the acquisition of ABC Pastry been completed on
1 January 2024, revenue for the year of the Group
would have been HK$3,882,447,000, and profit for
the year would have been HK$215,120,000. The pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and
is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results
of operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed on
1 January 2024, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit of the
Group had ABC Pastry been acquired at the beginning of
the current year, the directors of the Company calculated
depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets based on the recognised amounts of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets at
the date of the acquisition.
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3. WEMBAR &)

(b)

Us B8 ABC Pastry (#2)

W A EE R ETE
FRFERBIENR B ABC Pastry #Tig %
T RE1E 1,517,000 7T  FRRA R
FEABC PastryfE 4 2 4,344,000/ 7T °

it HA2024F 118 7= K Y% B
ABC Pastry * RNE B F R A K A
3,882,447,000/8 7T + M & A & Al 1
£215,120,000/87C © fHE & RHEHR
SHEZA YT —EXRRWERER
2024F 1 A1 B EAEEERE
S 2 WA R EELE - T BIER
RIREETEA -

FEREE A S B BRI AR S YU ABC
Pastry 2 [ | A B MBS - AN
RERREME - BB MRENALE
REEENKBE AR CER SR
B BEMREBAREREEE
hE-



36.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the generation
of profits from its operations. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on an
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with its capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends and
new share issues.

36.

AXEARKRERE

AEBZEAEREERRASEETE
BEESELE  RNERKEEAY S
FAF = m@ﬁ$mﬁm@ﬁ rEEZ
BRXBERATEFEERTE -

AEEEAGBERRAS RS
ZANCIEZ ZEWN L
) -

EEMR
(BREEETRAR

ARBEEFRFEEALERHERERE - F
BT R BEFEEEEAKANE
BEARBzRER AEESREESZE
BB S RBEITH B FE R
BAREERE -
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 3. &g@TH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) 2RTAESE
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T T
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATHES A ER eREE 41,438 254,166
Financial assets at amortised cost TREERRADBR 2 R E = 1,905,474 1,897,942
Financial liabilities tHasE
Amortised cost B SH A 797,198 716,836
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) SREMESEEEZERBEE
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes.

The risks associated with the financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (confinued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk
The Group does not enter into or trade in derivative
financial instruments either for hedging or speculative
purposes. There has been no change to the Group’s
exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk during the year.

(i) Currency risk
The Company and several subsidiaries of the
Company have foreign currency sales and
purchases, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

United States Dollar (“US$") 27T ([ZET])
Japanese Yen (“JPY") HE (TBE])
RMB ARE

3. T HR &)

(b)

Assets

aE

2024
2024 £
HK$'000
FBx

246,730
10,412
379,080

TEREREEERRECK (£)

5 R B

52 [ 30 A S sl R B RO RT LR
BEESMTA - R XEEZ
miSRERRE RN ER 2T
BT o

() EEmERE
ARBRARBETHERE
BEINE < AEEEHING
[\ o

NIREEFR - ANEFE AINES
BExEBEEREBAEZR

HEWT :
Liabilities
=L
2023 2024 2023

20234 2024 & 20234
HK$'000 | HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET T

344,081 22,371 21,812
7,602 19,266 19,628
388,456 177,309 146,027
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (confinued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(1)

Currency risk (continued)

As HKS$ is currently pegged to US$, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s exposure
to fluctuation in HK$ against US$ is limited. The
Group’s currency risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuations of JPY and RMB against HK$.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
exchange hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange exposure should the
need arises.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity
to a 5% (2023: 5%) increase and decrease in the
relevant foreign currencies against the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities. 5% (2023:
5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
end of the reporting period for a 5% (2023: 5%)
change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates an increase in profit for the year
where the relevant foreign currencies strengthen
5% against the relevant functional currencies of the
relevant group entities. For a 5% weakening of the
relevant foreign currencies against the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the
profit for the year and the balances below would be
negative.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (confinued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(1)

(1)

Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

JPY against HK$ HEX AT
RMB against HK$ AREH BT

31.

ST H (&)
(b) ¢REARSEEERLE (&)

sk ()
() EEEE (&)

BURRENT (&)

Profit for the year

F 5 F
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 %
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET THAT
(370) (502)
8.424 10,121

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate time deposits and lease
liabilities. The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to the fluctuation of
prevailing market interest rate on time deposits
and bank balances. The Group currently does not
have interest rate hedging policy, however, the
management monitors interest rate exposure on
dynamic basis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
overall interest rate risks for bank balances are not
significant as bank balances are all short term and
interest rates are currently at low level with no
significant changes are expected for the foreseeable
future.

(ii)

EEERR  FRARTEE
BRENER - HERE DY
75 HMNE R R I |AKNE o

T 2

7R £ (B T B ) 5 ) <R E AT
REBEAEREZ AFER
T o ARG E IR b B8R 1T
B2 RITMIGH X EB B
ZRERENXEAR KK
B BTN R EER o R
i BEREe AR R R R
=R -

ARFEERA  MRBTE
#4955 5 B F K B BT EAE
KT BB ETERERTE
BAEBAEL  ROTEHZE
RAEERLTEA -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 | = Z = U4 F 3R

189



190

N[]TES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (confinued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities measured
at FVTPL. The Group is also exposed to certain price
risks in relation to unquoted equity securities for
investees for long term strategic purposes which
had been measured at FVTPL. The Group monitors
the price risk through regular reviews of the market
price of the listed equity securities and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risks at the end of the reporting period. Sensitivity
analyses for unquoted equity securities with fair
value measurement categorised within Level 3 were
disclosed in note 37(c).

If the prices of the listed equity instruments had
been 35% (2023: 35%) lower, the profit for
the year would decrease by HK$906,000 (2023:
HK$1,706,000) for the Group as a result of the
changes in fair value of investments at FVTPL.

The management does not anticipate a significant
increase in market bid price on the listed equity
instrument in the next financial year having regard
to the trends in the market bid price. Accordingly,
no sensitivity analysis for increase in such prices is
presented.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (confinued) 3. €T R (&)
(b) ©HMEAREEEBRICK (#)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group’s
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to time
deposits, restricted bank deposits, rental deposit, trade
and other receivables, loan receivables, amounts due from
ultimate holding company, amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries and bank balances. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its
credit risks associated with its financial assets, except that
the credit risks associated with loan receivable is mitigated
because it is secured over the guarantee provided by the
shareholders of the debtor.

Trade receivables and amounts due from fellow

subsidiaries which are in trade nature arising from

contracts with customers

(i)  Trade receivables
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group
uses an internal credit scoring system to assess the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed to
customers are reviewed regularly. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as
6% (2023: 22%) and 60% (2023: 74%) of the
total trade receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

= Em R R EHE
EERBEAREEFHEREE 2
= ,\’Jffféfﬁzﬁ‘i@ﬁﬂ%éﬁﬁﬁ’]ﬂ
%o ARENEERRTIEREEH
R RHIRTHER  HERE -
5 REMBWERK - BIRER - &
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WEFBEBNEERRERE AR
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“E)
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (confinued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
Trade receivables and amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries which are in trade nature arising from
contracts with customers (continued)

@

(ii)

Trade receivables (continued)

In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade balances
individually for customers with significant
balances and others based on provision matrix
based on shared credit risk characteristics by
reference to repayment histories for recurring
customers and past due exposure for the new
customers. Impairment loss of HK$722,000 (2023:
HK$1,453,000) was recognised during the year.
Details of the quantitative disclosures are set out
below in this note.

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries which are in
trade nature

The Group performs impairment assessment under
ECL model. The balances with fellow subsidiaries
are considered as low credit risk since those fellow
subsidiaries are with good repayment history and
strong financial capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term. Thus, the
directors of the Company consider the impairment
loss was insignificant to be recognised during the
year.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A

31.

ST H &
(b) ¢REARSEEERLE (&)

=& KR EE ()

-

BRIELZ B ZEIERI L

FEW R ZHTE LR Al (BE S
&) (%)

()

(ii)

B SRR (&)

BN REEZBHEEEIB
BARBEEREHNERP
2B P EHETMERRET
i ¥ B4 S Tk H b i
TRAEFGE REXRBE
BERBEE  2ZLFHEP
NERELLEERTELDH
= pis R - FRERRE
&5 18722,00078 7T (20234 :
1,453,000 70) - B ELHE
BB AN

KB RMEARRE (BE
FME)

AEBRBEAEGEEBEER
EITRERE - BREAMER
AARESERR - BRZ%
ZREAMBAREERIFER
RN EEMMESN - e
REEMANAHNRERER
e Rt ARBAEZEAA/R
FAERERERIERTRE -



31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (confinued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Other receivables/loan receivables/amount due

from ultimate holding company/bank balances/time

deposits with original maturity over three months/

time deposits with original maturity over one year

(i) Loan receivable
The directors of the Company estimate the
estimated loss rates by using 12m ECL based on
historical credit loss experience of the debtor.
Based on assessment by the directors of the
Company, the loss given default is low in view
of the regular settlement of debtor without any
delay in settlement of instalment in the current and
previous years. Thus, the directors of the Company
consider the impairment loss was insignificant to be
recognised during the year.

(i) Other receivables, rental deposits and amount due
from ultimate holding company
The directors of the Company make periodic
individual assessment on the recoverability of
other receivables, rental deposits and amount
due from ultimate holding company based on
historical settlement records, past experience,
and also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. The directors of the Company believe
that there are no significant increase in credit risk
of these amounts since initial recognition and
the Group provided impairment based on 12m
ECL basis. Thus, the directors of the Company
consider the impairment loss was insignificant to be
recognised during the year.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (confinued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Other receivables/loan receivables/amount due
from ultimate holding company/bank balances/time
deposits with original maturity over three months/
time deposits with original maturity over one year
(continued)

(ii)

Time deposits with original maturity over three
months, time deposits with original maturity
over one year, restricted bank deposits and bank
balances

The credit risks on bank balances, time deposits
with original maturity over three months and time
deposits with original maturity over one year are
limited because the counterparties are financial
institutions with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies. The Group
assessed 12m ECL for bank balances, time deposits
with original maturity over three months and time
deposits with original maturity over one year by
reference to information relating to probability of
default and loss given default of the respective
credit rating grades published by external credit
rating agencies. Based on the average loss rates, the
directors of the Company consider the impairment
loss was insignificant to be recognised during the
year.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (confinued) 3. €T R (&)
(b) ©HMEAREEEBRICK (#)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

=& KR EE ()

Impairment assessment SR IE AT
The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment REEHABEERBITRBIEAT
comprises the following categories: 5l

Trade receivable
and amounts
due from fellow

Internal subsidiaries which Other financial assets
credit rating Description are in trade nature at amortised cost
B A RBRSR
UG PNaEE RBHRATEH
ABEERTR L] (BESHE) HittemEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
and does not have any past-due amounts - not credit-impaired
ERER HFERENNRRRE BEVEEFMASNTE  2HRHEEER R2EAARHEEER
- REEEERE
Medium risk Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
but usually settle in full - not credit-impaired
HER EBABERIMARES  BREE 2HEHEEESE REAEHEEES
2EER - ABEEEERE
Watch list There have been significant increases in Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
credit risk since initial recognition through - not credit-impaired - not credit-impaired
information developed internally or external
resources
)i RERNBEHFIMDERRBEEERR FHEHEESR rHRAEEER
B A HER AR A B IS N - REEEERE - REEEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired — credit-impaired - credit-impaired
| EREBERAECHARERA 2HREHEEESE PHRBEEER
- BEEERE -BEEERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor Amount is written off Amount is written off
is in severe financial difficulty and the
Group has no realistic prospect of recovery
Ei BEEBRERAEBANREANBE - WERFR MaETUE
EXREEYERABRRDIA
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37.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continved/ 3. &I R ®)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) SHEAMREEEERBR (&)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) EERE R BEFE (&)
Impairment assessment (continued) JHEFE ()
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of TRENAEE R EERBRBRE
the Group’s financial assets which are subject to ECL EEBMENEERRES
assessment:
2024 2023
2024 2023
External Internal 12m ECL or Gross carrying Gross carrying
credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL amount amount
5 5 REARSEEFES
REIR BEIR 2HRHEERA REAE FEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fix TiEn
Financial assets at amortised costs
RBERATIRZEREE
Trade receivables N/A Lowrisk (Note 2)  Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 166,872 194,719
ESRWER T ERR (MF2) 2HEHEEEE (BERE)
Low risk Lifetime ECL (not credit- 242,841 178,135
impaired)
ERR z%ﬁi‘éi%ﬁ “@Eﬁﬁ
(FEERE)
Loss Credit-impaired 6,096 5,374
BE BERE
415,809 378,228
Loan receivable N/A Low risk (Note 1) 12m ECL - 274
FEYE TER ERR (MF1) nAREHEESE
Other receivables N/A Lowrisk (Note )~ 12mECL 40,924 43,209
Hit IR TEm ERR (MF1)  nEABRSHEESE
Amounts due from N/A Low risk (Note 2)  Lifetime ECL (not credit 41,632 34,349
fellow subsidiaries X impaired)
EYRZNBARNE TER BEE (HE2) 2HEBEERR
(FEERE)
Amount due from ultimate N/A Lowrisk (Note 1)~ 12m ECL 5,557 4,558
holding company i
PN ELERARNE TER ERR (MF1) 1AREHEESE
Time deposits with original maturity A1 -Baa N/A 12m ECL 287,017 111,342
over three months but not
exceeding one year
FEHA=EAN BT EE—F7 TEA 2EAEHEEEE
HER
Time deposits with original maturity A1 -Baa N/A 12mECL 5399 132,418
over one year
RESA- ﬁutﬁﬂf TR 2EABHEEEE
Restricted bank deposits Al N/A T2mEcL 5,135 -
RBHIRTHER TR NEAENEEES
Bank balances A1-Baa N/A 12mECL ) 1,109,890 1,198,938
FITHES TR NEAESNEEESE
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (confinued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Impairment assessment (continued)
Notes:

1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the
Group uses an aged analysis based on past due days to
assess whether credit risk has increased significant since
initial recognition and concluded that there is no significant
increase in credit risk for loan receivable, amount due from
ultimate holding company and other receivables.

2. For trade receivables and amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries in trade nature, the Group has applied
the simplified approach to measure the loss allowance
at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with significant
outstanding balances and amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries which are in trade nature, the Group
determines the expected credit losses on these items by
using a provision matrix, grouped by historical repayment
pattern of customers in the past three years.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
uses internal credit rating to assess the impairment for
its customers in relation to the trade receivables because
these customers consist of a large number of customers
with common risk characteristics that are representative
of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in
accordance with the contractual terms.

The estimated loss rates used is estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life
of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure relevant information about specific debtors is
updated.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (confinued) 3. €T R (&

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
Impairment assessment (continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2024, impairment
loss of HK$722,000 (2023: HK$1,453,000) was
recognised.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL

TEREREEERRECK (£)

EERRERBEFS (&)
JRIEFFE (&)

HZE20245 128318 IEFE - W
R (B E518 722,000 7T (2023 4 ¢
1,453,000787T) °

TRITEREBBEITERE SR

that has been recognised for trade receivables under the RN HREREEEEY
simplified approach.

Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)
2 HEHEERE
(E&RE)
HK$'000
T
As at 1 January 2023 M2023F1H1H 3,921
Impairment losses recognised, net of reversal  HERGEEE - HRED 1,453
As at 31 December 2023 7A2023F12A31H 5,374
Impairment losses recognised, net of reversal  MERIRERIE - FKREE 722
As at 31 December 2024 M2024%12H31H 6,096

Changes in loss allowance for trade receivables are mainly
due to the net impact of additional ECL allowance of
HK$722,000 (2023: HK$1,453,000) during the year
ended 31 December 2024.
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37.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continved/ 3. €T H ©)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) SREMRESEEEREE (&)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk BB TE
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group REBRSESRER  AEBEER
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash HRHEEBEARHAZRERE®
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to EEWKT - RASEEZ EERNE
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of & WREReRERBS2HE -
fluctuations in cash flows.
The following table details the Group’s contractual TRHAIAEE2RAEZEHEE
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been BN ZRDEASEEZNF &R
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of AMAE s SRIBEZRITRBER
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the RS-
Group can be required to pay.
Liquidity risk table B E R R R
31 December 2024 202412 H31H
Weighted
average  On demand Total
interest or within 41012 1to3 undiscounted Carrying
rate 3 months months year  cash flows amount
il RERKE nz KBRS
THRE  H=EARK T=fiA -3=fF RELE AR
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
Trade payables BAEMNEN - 174,117 - - 174,117 174,117
Other payables and accruals £/t & (< 208 B Bt
A - 587,997 - - 587,997 587,997
Amount due to ultimate [ER SRR ARTIE
holding company - 30,277 - - 30,277 30,277
Amounts due to fellow ERRZNEARE
subsidiaries - 4,807 - - 4,807 4,807
Lease liabilties HERRE 4.4 1,992 5,975 9,421 17,388 16,140
799,190 5,975 9,421 814,586 813,338
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37.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continved/ 3. &I R ®)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) SHEAMREEEERBR (&)

policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity risk table (continued)

31 December 2023

mEETEE (&)
mBETAERE (B)

2023412 A31H

Weighted
average  Ondemand Total
interest or within 41012 Tt03  undiscounted Carrying
rate 3 months months year cash flows amount
i REXE mE AHRE
THFE  H=EAR TZfEA —E=F mERE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TATL TATL TATL TAT
Trade payables BHENERN - 150,320 - - 150,320 150,320
Other payables and accruals  E- A fE (308 &4t
EA - 532,491 - - 532,491 532,491
Amount due to ultimate [ERREERARTIE
holding company - 29,693 - - 29,693 29,693
Amounts due to fellow ERRZNBARE
subsidiaries - 4,332 - - 4332 4332
Lease liabilities HERRE 44 2,163 6,631 1,188 9,982 9,672
718,999 6,631 1,188 726,818 726,508
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (confinued)

(9]

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Certain of the Group’s financial instruments are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The
management is to determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. For
instruments with significant unobservable inputs under
Level 3, the Group engages third party qualified valuers
to perform the valuation. The management works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation technigues and inputs to the model.
The management reports the findings to the board of
directors of the Company regularly to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these financial assets are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

31.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

3. €T R (&)
SMIAATFEE (4)

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (confinued)

() Fair value measurements of financial (c)
instruments (continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

AEEZRE T MEEL 2 FEG
BrE@EEC L FE (B)

0

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | H

(continued)
Fair value as at Valuation
RTSRMZATE Fair value technique(s) Significant
Financial assets 2024 2023 hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable inputs
EHEE 20245 2023% NTEER REEHREEAAGE EXTUERBAYE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT
Listed equity 2,587 4,874 Level 1 Quoted prices in an N/A
investment active market
TTRARE £-ER RERMS BE TER
Club debenture 5272 5272 Level 2 Quoted pricesin a N/A
market for identical assets
Eiil=ea EZER RhEREEEHE @R
Unlisted equity 33,579 28,341 Level 3 Price to earnings Discount rate of 30% (2023: 30%) (Note a)
investments ratio adjusted and price to earnings ratio multiple of
for marketability 8.64(2023: 8.72) (Note b), taking into
account management’s experience and
knowledge of market conditions.
¥ FTRARE £-ER MRE (RHHRBEL) BRE30% (20235 : 30%) (Mita) &
mR%E8.64(2023% :872)
(Hizh) - NEZRERENERR
HISWAN TBMET -
Structured notes - 215,679 Level 2 Quoted prices provided N/A
by financial institution
ERIERE £-ER SRBERE BE &R

BRMABRAE



31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (confinued)

(9]

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(continued)

Notes:

a) A slight increase in the discount rate used in isolation
would result in a slight decrease in the fair value of
unlisted equity investment, and vice versa. If the discount
rate was 0.5% higher/lower to 30.5%/29.5% (2023:
30.5%/29.5%) while holding all other variables constant,
the carrying amount of the unlisted equity investment
would decrease by HK$219,000 (2023: HK$181,000) or
increase by HK$219,000 (2023: HK$181,000) as at 31
December 2024.

b) A slight increase in the price to earnings ratio multiple used
in isolation would result in a slight increase in the fair value
of unlisted equity investment, and vice versa. If the price to
earnings ratio multiple was 5% higher/lower to 9.07/8.20
(2023: 9.15/8.18) while all other variables constant,
the carrying amount of the unlisted equity investment
would increase by HK$2,020,000 (2023: HK$917,000) or
decrease by HK$2,020,000 (2023: HK$917,000) as at 31
December 2024.

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during
the year.

31.

ST H (&)
SRMIAATVENE (£)

(9]

AEEZRE T MEEL 2 FEG
BrE@EEZ L FE (B

GEX

a)

FA

W ERIE R T - Bh IR RE i
e ELETREAEENAFEES
BEABL  RZIFA - HELIE X
S, TH#0.5% F30.5%/29.5%
(20234 :30.5%/29.5%) * 0 FT
BEMESHBFTAE  FLEWR
AL ERNREBERKR2024F 12 A
31 B 4 219,0007% 7T (2023 4 :
181,000% 7T) =k ¥ 51219,000 %
7% (20234 : 181,000/87T) ©

WM ARFHEBSMEA - AZE
EWRAZE R FE G E MG
m RZIA - i BEFBHE
9.07/8.20(2023 % : 9.15/8.18) &
SE5% - MATAEMESREFT
B ELMRAEENERERR
2024412 A 318 # 512,020,000
# 7T (20234 : 917,000 7T) =X
. 42,020,000 T (20234 :
917,000787C) °

CE-Bf P ERRECE

Rz R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (confinued) 31.

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value

ST H &

EEMTAAVERNE (8)

BZERAFlETTEZHK

measurements
Financial assets
at FVTPL
BRAFETA
BENSREE
At 1 January 2023 7202341 A 18 18,862
Fair value gain N ERE 9,479
At 31 December 2023 72023412 A31H 28,341
Fair value gain N ERE 5,238
At 31 December 2024 R2024F 12 A31H 33,579

Fair value gains or losses on financial assets at FVTPL are
included in ‘other gains and losses’.

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on
a recurring basis (but fair value disclosures are
required)

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

The fair values of the financial assets and financial
liabilities above have been determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on a discounted
cash flow analysis.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A

BAFEFAEENEREENRD
Fad s B RET A [ B b das K&
Bld -

WHEREZMEELLFE
FTECTHMEEHRTHMER
ZRFE(ERKERFIE)

ARABEERR  WBHERAERS
BB RARZEREERERAE
ZIREEEE N ERE °

tiieREERSRABZATFET
REAREEEAZFTRASRED
WHEEE °



38.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Apart from the balances with related parties as disclosed in
the consolidated statement of financial position and respective
notes, the Group has entered into the following transactions

with related parties:

Ultimate holding company
Outsourcing manufacturing and procurement

of finished goods

Purchase of raw materials
Purchase of equipment and parts
Royalty charges paid (Note)

Sales of finished goods

Research service

REEZERAF
SMBEEE R RIEA

BEERME

B R R MAET
ENENE (M)
SHER M

WIE AR

38.

[BR Bt 77 2 3R

BRIMR A ISR R S B M A P I BR L 7S

B2 @O AEBECEERB ST

RIS :

2024
2024
HK$°000
TET

44,624
32,996
169
17,257

77

(2,586)

2023
20234
HK$'000
FiBT

61,152
30,642

193
11,605

(2,756)

Note: The amount represents royalty paid to ultimate holding

company for the rights to use certain trademarks and
technical know-how in connection with the manufacturing
and sales of certain licensed products which is calculated

at certain percentage on the net sales of these licensed

products.

Fellow subsidiaries
Food testing fee

Outsourcing manufacturing and procurement

of finished goods

Purchase of raw materials

Other expenses

Sales of raw materials and finished goods

BRKEAR
Rt &

SMBEEE R IRIEAK

BERMH
HAbFX
$HE RAR R

M ZeRERERERREERBEES TR
HEEE fh B B 2 B T B AR R sl K8 M e i
RIEBRARSN 2EMNE (REBEZFE

REMBEFE-TANLIE) -

2024
2024 &
HK$'000
FET

4,735

31,797
4,189
1,091

(180,377)

2023
20234
HK$'000
FBT

4,009

35,645
4,262

(156,477)

The compensation to key management personnel consist mainly
of directors’ emoluments as disclosed in note 12.

TREEBABZHFMEZREME 12

REEEHM -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

39.  PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 3. MBARFFE
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has equity RIEER - ARAIRUTEKAERZ
interests in the following subsidiaries comprising the Group: P ES R R IR
Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ Date of paid ordinary Attributable
registration/ incorporation/ share capital/ equity interest
Name of subsidiaries  operation registration registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
R/ ML,/ BEARME KRERELZ
WRARER EEMY Raigzk LERA/ERER IR TEER
2024 2023
20245 | 203F
BERm(EA) Hong Kong 25 August 2015 HK$10,000,000 100% 100% Sales and distribution of
BRAA noodles, retort foods, frozen
Nissin Foods (H.K.) foods, beverage products
Company Limited and snacks in Hong Kong
(Note 1) and Macau
RERm (BR)BR  BE 2015488258 10,000,000/ EEERBEFHER DB
DA (M) B ZERMm R
Bm FRERRZR
HERG(EA) Hong Kong 6 July 2001 HK$200 100% 100% Provision of administrative
ERERAA and human resources to
Nissin Foods (H.K.) group companies
Management
Company Limited
(Note 1)
RERm (BR)EE  B# 01F7A68  200%T MEBRARETHEAN
ARAR (1) BRI
KERMERLE Hong Kong 11 April 1969 HK$29,975,000 100% 100% Manufacturing and sales of
Winner Food instant noodles products
Products Limited and frozen foods
(Note 1)
XERBARRT El 196948118 29,975,000%7 EERHENREERRLR
(Fax1) R
EARZERDA Hong Kong 17 January 1978 HK$1,000 81% 81% Importation and distribution of
MC Marketing & Sales beverages and food products
(Hong Kong)
Limited (Note 1)
EARZARAA £k 1978518178 1,000 ENRAEAHRRRER
(FE1)

206 NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB RRER AR



39.  PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES (confnued)

3. MBAREE @)

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ Date of paid ordinary Attributable
registration/ incorporation/ share capital/ equity interest
Name of subsidiaries  operation registration registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
R/ AL/ BRERAR KARREZ
WRARER EEMY A EEREY/HERER TR TEER
2024 2023
04F | 023%
EARBERAA Hong Kong 4 March 2021 HK$23,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Hong Kong Eastpeak
Limited (Note 1)
BERBARLF £ 221F3848 23,000,000 RERR
(Fx1)
BEaKIERAR  Hong Kong 22 January 1991 HK$63,886,738 100% 100% Trading of packaging materials
Ming Fong Packaging
& Chemicals Limited
(Note 1)
HERRIERRR & 1991F1 8228 63,886,738 5L BEEREMH
(1)
BEXAERARAE  Hong Kong 21 January 2020 HK$7,500,000 100% 100% Inactive
ValleyFarm Holdings
Limited (Note 1)
HRARRERRE  FR 2020%1A218  7,500,000/7T TEex
(1)
HEHE(FE « &%) Hong Kong 27 September 2013 HK$10,000,000 66% 66% Purchase and sales of snacks
BRAT
Nissin Koikeya Foods
(China&HK) Co.,
Limited (Note 1)
RERLE ik 2013%49A278 10,000,000 EEZR
(Bl o &B) BR
2l (fzE1)
ANNUAL REPORT 2024 | —ZT = U4 F 3R
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NUTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

39.  PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES (confnued)

Place of
incorporation/ Date of
registration/ incorporation/
Name of subsidiaries  operation registration
R/ AL,/
WRARER EEMY A
TREBERM Hong Kong 27 April 2018
(BB ERAR
Kagome Nissin Foods
(H.K) Co., Limited
(Note 1)
IREXHERD (BE) EA 2185474278
BRAA (HzE1)
2ERFRRRG Taiwan 19 December 2023

BRAT
Taiwan Nissin Foods
Co., Ltd. (Note 8)
RERBERMER 8 2023E12A190
ARAA (Me)

Gaemi Food Co. Ltd. Korea 22 November 1995
(Note 1 & Note 6)

Gaemifood Co. Ltd.  #E] 199511422 H
GEIPUED)

ABC Pastry Holdings Pty Australia 26 June 2012
Ltd (Note 1 & Note 7)

ABC Pastry Holdings Pty 2 2012F6A 268
Ltd (Pi3E 1 R izE 7)
BERGUEARAR* Vietnam 5 March 2011
Nissin Foods Vietnam
Co., Ltd. (Note 1)
RERmUEARAR HE 201153858

(BizE1)

39.

Issued and fully
paid ordinary
share capital/
registered capital
BRIRAR
EEREY/HERER

HK$5,000,000

5,000,000 %7

NT$26,000,000

26,000,000%74 %

KRW250,000,000

250,000,000 57T

AUD100

10027

US$66,000,000

66,000,000 %7

BB A B 1S (&)

Attributable
equity interest
held by the Company
RARREZ
TR
2024 2023
04F | 023%
70% 70%
100% 100%
100% -
100% -
67% 67%

Principal activities

TREK

Import, purchase and sale of
beverage products in Hong
Kong, Macau and Mainland
China

AEE  BFRREALED
REEHHER

Importing and trading of
noodle and confectionery

TERERERLAET

Manufacturing and
sales of snacks
EERBETR

Manufacturing and sales of
frozen foods
EERBERRRS

Manufacturing importing and
exporting instant noodles
products

EEEORMANREER

208 NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB RRER AR



39.  PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES (confnued)

3. MBAREE @)

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ Date of paid ordinary Attributable
registration/ incorporation/ share capital/ equity interest
Name of subsidiaries  operation registration registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
R/ MR,/ BEARME KARREZ
(i PNEEL EENY Eaigzk BERE/ ERER TR TEER
2024 2023
045 | 2023%

HEER(PE) Mainland China 29 October 2001 RMB1,443,797,800 100% 100% Investment holding in Mainland
REERAT China and purchase and
Nissin Foods (China) sale of instant noodles
Holding Co., Limited* products
(Note 1)

BERm (TE)RE  hERS 2015104298 AR1,443,797,800C EPEMEETRAERR
ARAA (MiE1) EEHREER

HEmEER Mainland China 3 July 1993 HK$84,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing and sales of
KERMBRAF instant noodles
Zhuhai Golden Coast
Winner Food Products
Limited*

wETLERKERE  TEAK 1993F7A38 84,000,000/ ERMENREER
BRAR

ERBEAERM Mainland China 13 November 1994 HK$130,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing and and sales of
BRAR instant noodles products
Guangdong Shunde
Nissin Foods
Co., Ltd.* (Note 2)

EREERERRAR THEAN 19945115138 130,000,000/ EERMENREER
2 (fizr2)

REABREERAT  Mainland China 17 October 2013 RMB147,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of packaging
Dongguan Nissin materials of instant noodles
Packaging Co., Ltd.* products
(Note 2)

REAEBRERLT  THEAN 0134104178 AR 147,000,000 7T EENREERDEMH
(Fx2)

HEABREERAE  Mainland China 10 December 2003 RMB107,567,517 100% 100% Manufacturing of packaging
Zhuhai Nissin materials of instant noodles
Packaging Company products
Limited* (Note 2)

WEHEBRERLR  THEAKN 20034124108 AR107,567,517 7T LEDREERDEMH
(FzE2)
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39.  PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES (contnued/ 3. MBAEIFEE (&)

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ Date of paid ordinary Attributable
registration/ incorporation/ share capital/ equity interest

Name of subsidiaries  operation registration registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
R/ AL/ BRTRAR LN A

WEAREE EENE A EEREY/HERER TR TEER

2024 2023

04%F | 203%F

BRAFA@ABAE  Mainland China 19 February 2014 RMB235,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of instant
Fujian Nissin Foods noodles products
Co., Ltd.* (Note 2)

BRAFRRARLE  PERL 014527198 AR¥235,000,0007C EEAREER
(FitzE2)

MIABERMEBRAT  Mainland China 25 November 2014 RMB350,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of instant
Zhejiang Nissin noodles products
Foods Company
Limited* (Note 2)

MIRERREBLE  PERL 214F11 4258 AR 350,000,007 TENRMEER
(FitzE2)

LEREZSERAT  Mainland China 6 March 2021 RMB20,000,000 100% 100% Importation and distribution
Shanghai Eastpeak of food and beverages
Trading Co,. Ltd.* products
(Note 3)

LEREEFERLE  PERL 021%386H  ARH20,000,0007 EORDBRARHKHER
(F3E3)

* For identification purpose only * Es

m NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB RRER AR



39.

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES (continues)

Notes:
1. These companies are directly held by the Company.

2. The subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company through
Nissin Foods (China) Holding Co., Ltd.

3. This subsidiary is indirectly held by the Company through Hong
Kong Eastpeak Limited.

4. All Mainland China subsidiaries are wholly foreign-owned
enterprises registered in Mainland China.

5. No debt securities have been issued by its subsidiaries as at 31
December 2024 and 2023.

6. This subsidiary is acquired by the Company on 3 September 2024.

7. This subsidiary is acquired by the Company on 2 December 2024.

8. This subsidiary is directly held by the Company and formerly
known as: Nissin Demae Iccho Co., Ltd.

The Company considered that its non-wholly owned subsidiaries
with individual non-controlling interests are not material to the
Group. Therefore, no summarised financial information of these
non-wholly owned subsidiaries is presented.

39.

B B REE (&)
B
1. ZENRBAAQREEES °

2. MBRAAAARFEFEBHERR (RE)
REFRABEESES -

3. EZMBRARBARRBEEEREBRA
AREEE -

4. FATERMHIER S RNE EAtE
MMM E DS -

5. 20244 % 2023128318 - HK B
NRIEBEITEGRE S ©

6. ZHIBARIN2024F9 A3BAAREIUK
i o

7. ZHMEARR 2024512 A2BHAARF]
e o

8. ZMBARMBARREESE A B
BHAT—TROBRAFE -

ARARREHABERERERENIEE
EMBRRYAKREMELRNEKX -
bt BMERZEFEEWNBRRZIIME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A31BIEFE

40.  RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING 0 METFEEZAEZLE
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TR EEREEDESE c ABE
(RERe RIIFRSEE) 256 - BEE
FELZABEARSREIRREALR
EREEBEZFERERERTEIER
MEEFHRSRE ©

from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows

2N

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | H

from financing activities.

Lease Dividend

liabilities payable Total

HEAE EBERE et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT FHIT AT

At 1 January 2023 R2023F1H1H 8,375 - 8,375

Financing cash flows BMERSRE (8,080) (158,224) (166,304)

Exchange differences BN ZHH (57) - (57)

New leases entered RISZFTAEAY 9,164 - 9,164

Interest expenses FEMAZ 270 - 270

Dividend declared EEIRRKRE - 158,224 158,224

At 31 December 2023 7R20234F 12 A31H 9,672 - 9,672

Financing cash flows HERERE (6,186) (165,112) (171,298)

Exchange differences PN = (31) - 31

New leases entered BV EiED 4,226 - 4,226
Acquired on acquisition of U B BT B A BIFT 1S

subsidiaries 8,063 - 8,063

Interest expenses FlEF 396 - 396

Dividend declared EEIREE - 165,112 165,112

At 31 December 2024 M2024F 12 A31H 16,140 - 16,140

BRMERADT



41.

COMPANY’S FINANCIAL INFORMATION 4. PRZABER
The following are the statement of financial position of the AT RZANA R 20244 K% 2023 12 A 31
Company as at 31 December 2024 and 2023: Bz B#ikRE
2024 2023
2024 5 2023 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FAET
Non-current Assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E G 549,396 588,942
Right-of-use assets EREEE 4,114 4,296
Trademark [ - 12,116
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIEE 3,026,843 2,621,025
Financial assets of FVTPL RATEFABRZ 2REE 41,438 38,487
Deferred tax assets RIERIBEE - 13,528
Prepayments for acquisition of property, plant UWEE¥% « BE MR ETER KB
and equipment 28,086 10,464
Restricted bank deposits R HIIRITIFR 5,135 -
3,655,012 3,288,858
Current Assets REBEE
Inventories eSS, 96,134 90,052
Trade receivables H AR 1,040 1,543
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits ~ Efth fBULZRIE « FEM B ML & 11,446 11,540
Amount due from ultimate holding company  fEUSAIERL A R FIB 1,050 434
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSEH B A BI5RIA 141,504 136,621
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries TEWH%W% T/TAIE 25,136 10,384
Loan to a subsidiary [ — M B AT E K 67,000
Tax recoverable BRdEEE 9,011 10,092
Financial asset at FVTPL BAVESABGZZEHEE - 215,679
Cash and cash equivalents Be MRS EY 174,023 241,846
526,344 718,191
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NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | B

and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March

2025 and are signed on its behalf of:

KIYOTAKA ANDO

ZHERE
DIRECTOR
EF

E=E A O
RN

BRAA

41. COMPANY'S FINANCIAL INFORMATION fzontineq) M. KRR ZBMBER (&)
2024 2023
2024 % 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiExT FHEIT
Current Liabilities RBAR
Trade payables B S IR 22,174 21,725
Other payables and accruals HAbER B R ERTE A 81,851 108,887
Amount due to ultimate holding company FEN BRI A B FIE 22,284 22,727
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR N ENGIE e 75,923 100,222
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ERRREWB A EJ/TAIE 2,256 1,529
Deferred income PFEIEYTA 3,000 400
Loans from subsidiaries HEAE 20,000 20,000
227,488 275,490
Net Current Assets REBEEFE 298,856 442,701
Total Assets less Current Liabilities HWEERRBERE 3,953,868 3,731,559
Capital and Reserves EXR#HE
Share capital A&7 2,941,441 2,941,441
Reserves i 954,655 744,102
Total Equity S 3,896,096 3,685,543
Non-current Liabilities kRBEE
Deferred income IRIEUA 8,500 1,533
Deferred tax liabilities EXERIBEE 44,137 44,483
Consideration payable FERRIE 5,135 -
57,772 46,016
3,953,868 3,731,559
The Company’s statement of financial position was approved KRB ZBABIRRAREEST G 202543

H26 BHtERZETZEYHUTALRE

RE

SHINJI TATSUTANI
RBERX
DIRECTOR
EF



COMPANY’S FINANCIAL INFORMATION /continueq) 4. PRZABER ()
The followings are the movements in the Company’s reserves: T RARE 2 FEZE)
Shares
held for Share
Share Award award Retained
Scheme reserve profits Total
RER D
Rt El 30
BEZkG REGEE REEF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR TR THET
At 1 January 2023 R2023F1A1H (93) - 528,654 528,561
Profit and total comprehensive income FRENEREZE
for the year Nt - - 373,874 373,874
Recognition of equity-settled MR AR R A LA
share-based payment B BERE R - 1,684 - 1,684
Share purchased from secondary market R38BT EIET A
under share award scheme FE-mBREENRD (1,793) - (1,793)
Share vested under share award scheme iR ER{7 R EN:t BIC BB 1,684 (1,684) - -
Dividend recognised as distribution BRRARLRE
(note 14) (MizE14) - - (158,224) (158,224)
At 31 December 2023 202312 A31H (202) - 744,304 744,102
Profit and total comprehensive income FRENEZE
for the year Nt - - 376,253 376,253
Recognition of equity-settled TR EREE DA
share-based payment BRI BERRFT - 1,992 - 1,992
Share purchased from secondary market ~ F{H#EEITEIET A
under share award scheme _*i%ﬁ%mﬁ’lﬁﬁfﬁ (2,580) - (2,580)
Share vested under share award scheme  RIER 7 EENE EIE 5 1,992 (1,992) - -
Dividend recognised as distribution REDIELIRE
(note 14) GEALY - - (165,112) (165,112)
At 31 December 2024 R2024%12A31H (790) - 955,445 954,655
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

h IS

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
2024 F 20234 2022 4 20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET FAT FAET FAET
(restated)
(gE=75)
Result E
Revenue A 3,811,864 | 3,833,194 4,067,732 3,866,335 3,518,847
Profit before taxation FRAEERTR 302,939 456,965 462,885 441,576 433,942
Income tax expense FriS i (95,478) (123,816) (119,989) (102,341) (101,378)
Profit for the year FERE A 207,461 333,149 342,896 339,235 332,564
Attributable to: AT AR
Owners of the Company ZANSIEZS DN 200,993 330,169 312,761 303,821 301,912
Non-controlling interest FEPERIE RS 6,468 2,980 30,135 35,414 30,652
Total “ast 207,461 333,149 342,896 339,235 332,564
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
2024 20234 2022 4F 20214 2020 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAxT FAxT T FiBT
(restated)
(rE5)
Total Assets BERE 4,756,596 4,683,733 4,599,805 5,259,569 5,183,875
Total Liabilities BfEEE (942,691) (896,185) (926,969)  (1,143,308)  (1,140,692)
Total Equity HEmiaE 3,669,974 | 3,674,703 3,599,662 4,116,261 4,043,183
Net current Assets MENVE EFE 1,477,218 1,607,971 1,569,565 2,048,465 2,231,262

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | B/BR M

BRAA



For the [atest information about the Group, please visit:

BRNEENRHEH & &S5

Nissin Foods’ corporate website —

BERmEEAY -

Corporate and financial information, links to related companies,
subsidiaries and key brands, sustainability highlights and reports, and
media materials, all in one place.

— WA RECERMBEN HERR - MEQ R EEE R E
B AIRERRNEHRME KBS -

www.nissingroup.com.hk

Nissin Foods (Hong Kong) Charity Fund’s website -
BERm (B8 ZSE2M/ -

The charitable arm of the Group formed by way of a trust deed, the
Charity Fund drives projects to advance education, make provisions
for people in need, and carry out charitable works that are beneficial
to the Hong Kong community.

HEHRAEBAETEROD AKILNEERE - ASEEHETSER
2 HMESHHE - BETEATRERE  THRITERESELEN www.nissincharity.com.hk
A

g

Nissin Foodium membership programme on WeChat -

WERBARMBRESEE -

Offering a host of exclusive benefits, exciting rewards, and interactive
games for members to discover and enjoy. In Mainland China, it is
also an e-commerce platform.
RE—RIEZ2E B RERG M E S HENER - &t
EEPRAMITA—EEFRABKFA -

Nissin Foodium Mainland China

FEAL A ERRBRE

Nissin Foodium Hong Kong

BEABERBABRE



BERm

MIX

Paper | Supporting
responsible forestry
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